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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of BENARES HOTELS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Benares Hotels Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of Changes
in Equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter  Description Our Response

Impairment In view of the continuing operating losses made by one Our audit procedures in relation to impairment testing of the unit were:
assessment of  hotel unit (witha carrying value of PPE of INR 1,197.42 lakhs
Property, Plant  as at March 31, 2023), and due to significant management
and Equipment and auditor judgement involved in impairment testing, we
(PPE) of one identified this matter as a Key Audit Matter.

hotel unit. At the end of each year, management reviews the carrying - Evaluatln.g the. reaso.nablleness of the market related
assumptions (including discount rate and long-term

amount of the assets to determine if there is any indication of . ) -
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, management growth rate), judgements and key inputs considered by the
assesses the recoverable amount of those assets. management by comparing those estimates with market data
and company specific information available.

— Understanding the management’s and those charged with
governance (TCWG)'s process for estimating the recoverable
amount of the assets

The Company used the discounted cash flow approach
to determine the recoverable value of those assets. — Tested the company specific assumptions used in the cash flow

Management also carries out an independent market forecasts which includes occupancy rate and average room rate.

valuation of the hotel building once in three years. — To consider forecasting risk, we also performed sensitivity

The estimation of the recoverable amount of the assets analysis over the cash flow projections.

at the unit involves management judgements and is . ,
. - S — Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s assessment
dependent on certain assumptions and significant

inputs which are affected by expected future market by comparing the past estimates to the current year actual
or economic conditions of the hospitality industry. Due performance of the company.
to the level of uncertainties and judgment involved, - Reading the valuation report and validating key assumptions

Fhanges in these assumptions could have significant used in the valuation and rationale for those assumptions.
impact on the recoverable value of those assets.
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Benares Hotels Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report and Management Discussion and Analysis of the
Financial Performance but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by Management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) Withrespecttothe other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:
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Benares Hotels Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note No. 30 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a)
(b)
(c)

v. Q)
b)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

The dividend paid by the company during the year declared for the previous year is in accordance with
Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividends.

As stated in Note No.46 to the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed
the final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding maintenance of Audit trail is

appli

cable for the company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable for the year.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion
toits directors

and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration

paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs

has not prescri

bed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration N0.003990S/5200018

R. SURIYANARAYANAN

Partner

Membership No. 201402
UDIN: 23201402BGYBUC2866

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 19, 2023



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to
the members of Benares Hotels Limited (“the Company”) on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2023.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

6

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all
Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, no physical verification was due in current year.

(c) Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the examination
of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

In respect of immovable properties of land and building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as leasehold
lands / buildings under property, plant & equipment / right of use assets in the financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible
assets during the year and hence t clause (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

a) Theinventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and, the coverage and procedure adopted for such verification by
the management are appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed during such verification which is 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory.

b) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits up to December 16, 2022 in excess of INR five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
a bank on the basis of security of current assets. However, the sanction terms do not provide for filing Quarterly
returns or statements with the bank. No working capital limits were sanctioned by the financial institution.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (a) to
(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has neither
given any loan, guarantees and security nor made any investment during the year covered under section 185 and 186
of the Act. Therefore paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of the Act and the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23



Benares Hotels Limited

Annexure A (Contd.)

(vii) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities, except for minor
delays in a few cases of Tax Deducted at Source, Employee provident fund and employees’ state insurance.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of statutory dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable except Labour Welfare Fund of INR 0.01 lakhs, Provident
Fund of INR 0.15 lakhs and Employees’ State Insurance of INR 0.02 lakhs which have been paid subsequently after
the end of the reporting period.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2023, which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as stated below:

Amount demanded

Nature of the . Amount paid  Period to which amount Forum where dispute is
Name of the Statute (net of amount paid) . .
Dues (INR in lakhs) (INRin lakhs)  relates pending
U.P. Trade Tax Act Demand 10.88 5.00 FY 2006-2007 15t Appellate Authority,
U.P. Trade Tax Act Demand 15.39 5.00 FY2007-2008 UP VAT
Luxury Tax Demand 1.21 - FY2009-2010 to FY Assessing Officer
2013-2014

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, no amount
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a declared willful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there were no term loans taken by the Company and hence the question of the amount of loan so diverted and
the purpose for which it is used does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there
were no funds raised on a short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence the question of the Company taking
loan from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence the question of the Company raising
any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies does
not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A (Contd.)

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including
debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and
hence the question of whether the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act have been complied with
and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised does not arise. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no whistleblower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the Indian accounting
standard Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS 24).

(xiv) (@) Tothe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit.

(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence
the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, and in case the Company is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether
it continues to fulfill such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(d) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are 6 Core
Investment Companies (CICs) in the Group (basis definition of “Companies in The Group” as per Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) as at the end of the reporting period i.e. five CICs which are registered
with the Reserve Bank of India and one CIC which is not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii)Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
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Annexure A (Contd.)

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly paragraph 3, clause (xviii) of
the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due. Also, refer Note No. 43 of the financial statements in this regard.

(xx) (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
other than ongoing projects, the Company having spent the required amount, there is no amount pending to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of
the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not required to transfer unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to
ongoing project to special account in compliance with provision of sub-section (6) of section 135. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration N0.003990S/5200018

R. SURIYANARAYANAN

Partner

Membership No. 201402
UDIN: 23201402BGYBUC2866
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 19, 2023
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Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Benares Hotels Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
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Benares Hotels Limited

Annexure B (Contd.)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note.

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration N0.003990S/5200018

R. SURIYANARAYANAN

Partner

Membership No. 201402
UDIN: 23201402BGYBUC2866
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 19, 2023
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2023

( lakhs)
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 7,163.79 7,638.28
Right of Use Assets 6 118.08 121.11
Capital work-in-progress 4 64.36 22.77
Other Intangible assets 5 30.94 39.43
7,377.17 7,821.59
Financial assets
Other financial assets 7 675.88 516.10
Advance income tax (net) 47.09 98.03
Other non-current assets 8 50.03 44.14
8,150.17 8,479.86
Current assets
Inventories 9 123.41 80.08
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 429.58 138.56
Cash and cash equivalents 11 982.01 73.98
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12 2,032.76 584.55
Other financial assets 7 200.96 75.92
Other current assets 8 113.41 75.30
3,882.13 1,028.39
Total 12,032.30 9,508.25
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 13 130.00 130.00
Other equity 14 9,847.49 7,653.69
Total equity 9,977.49 7,783.69
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Liabilities 15 370.72 363.70
Provisions 16 33.04 26.66
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 559.17 576.14
962.93 966.50
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 - -
Trade payables 19
- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 23.18 31.36
- Due to Others 512.53 268.08
Other financial liabilities 20 254.62 202.64
Other current liabilities 21 273.58 221.30
Provisions 16 27.97 34.68
1,091.88 758.06
Total 12,032.30 9,508.25
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
For and on behalf of the Board

As per our Report of even date attached

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

Chartered Accountants Chairman

Firm Registration No. 0039905/5200018 DIN: 00114728
R.SURIYANARAYANAN HARISH KUMAR
Partner Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. 201402 ICAI M. No - 534449
Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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DR. ANANT NARAIN SINGH

ROHIT KHOSLA

Director

DIN: 07163135

VANIKA MAHAJAN
Company Secretary
ICSI M.No - ACS34515

Date : April 19, 2023
Place : New Delhi



Benares Hotels Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(3 lakhs)
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 22 9,332.50 4,983.96
Other income 23 150.42 9.88
Total Income 9,482.92 4,993.84
Expenses
Food and beverages consumed 24 836.39 445.58
Employee benefit expense and payment to contractors 25 1,171.66 949.90
Finance costs 26 36.77 64.81
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4/5/6 600.91 636.32
Other operating and general expenses 27 3,709.02 2,126.40
Total Expenses 6,354.75 4,223.01
Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,128.17 770.83
Exceptional items - -
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 3,128.17 770.83
Tax expenses
Current tax 28 807.11 21.45
Deferred tax 28 (16.97) 184.10
Total 790.14 205.55
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 2,338.03 565.28
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (14.23) (5.05)
Less :-income tax expense 28 - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (14.23) (5.05)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 2,323.80 560.23
Earnings per share: 35
Basic - () 179.85 43.48
Diluted - (X) 179.85 43.48
Face value per ordinary share - (X) 10.00 10.00
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP DR. ANANT NARAIN SINGH ROHIT KHOSLA
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director

Firm Registration No. 0039905/5200018 DIN: 00114728 DIN: 07163135

R. SURIYANARAYANAN HARISH KUMAR VANIKA MAHAJAN
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 201402 ICAI M. No - 534449 ICSI M.No - ACS34515
Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

 lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax

Adjustments For :

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets

Finance Cost

Interest on lease liability

Provision for Doubtful Debts net of bad debts (reversed)
(Gain)/ Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest Income

Capital and Other Creditors written back

Bad debts written off

Cash Operating Profit before working capital changes
Adjustments For :

Trade Receivables

Inventories

Non Current- Other Financial Asset

Other non-current assets

Current-Other Financial Assets

Other current assets

Trade Payables

Current liabilities- Other Financial Liabilities

Other Liabilities & Provisions

Cash Generated from Operating Activities
Direct Taxes Paid - net
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Interest Received

Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (B)
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3,128.17 770.83
597.88 633.30
3.03 3.03

- 28.75

36.77 36.06
0.01 (11.05)

0.88 -
(117.93) (9.25)
(32.00) -
(18.93) -
469.71 680.84
3,597.88 1,451.67
(272.10) (49.29)
(43.33) 2.23
0.75 -
22.95 10.53
(57.99) (3.44)
(38.11) 40.59
248.99 122.47
92.27 89.35
(14.56) 14.04
(61.13) 226.48
3,536.75 1,678.15
(756.17) (60.19)
2,780.58 1,617.96
(155.80) (38.72)
0.86 -
50.88 5.54
(1,608.74) (1,020.04)
(1,712.80) (1,053.22)




Benares Hotels Limited

Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash Flow From Financing Activities *
Interest Paid - (34.74)
Payment of lease liabilities - -
Payment of interest on lease liabilities (29.75) (28.90)
Repayment of short-term borrowings - (550.00)
Dividend Paid (Including tax on dividend) (130.00) -
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (C) (159.75) (613.64)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 908.03 (48.90)
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening (Refer Note 11) 73.98 122.88
Cash and cash equivalents - Closing (Refer Note 11) 982.01 73.98

* Refer foot note under Borrowings (Note 18) for Net Debt Reconciliation.

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP DR. ANANT NARAIN SINGH ROHIT KHOSLA
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director

Firm Registration No. 003990S/5200018 DIN: 00114728 DIN: 07163135

R. SURIYANARAYANAN HARISH KUMAR VANIKA MAHAJAN
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 201402 ICAI M. No - 534449 ICSI M.No - ACS34515
Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi

15



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

as at March 31, 2023

 lakhs)

Particulars Equity s":;i;i:’;:ﬂ Reserves and Surplus Grand Total
Capital Reserve General Reserve Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2021 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 4,925.38 7,223.46

Changes in accounting policy/prior - - - - -

period errors

Balance at the beginning of the 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 4,925.38 7,223.46

reporting period

Profit for the year ended March 31, 2022 - - - 565.28 565.28

Remeasurements of post employment (5.05) (5.05)

benefit obligation, net of tax (item of

other comprehensive income recognised

directly in retained earnings (Not

reclassified to P&L)

Total Comprehensive Income for the - - - 560.23 560.23

year ended March 31, 2022

Dividends - -

Balance as at March 31, 2022 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 5,485.61 7,783.69

Balance as at April 1, 2022 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 5,485.61 7,783.69

Changes in accounting policy/prior - - - - -

period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 5,485.61 7,783.69

the reporting period

Profit for the year ended March 31, 2023 - - - 2,338.03 2,338.03

Remeasurements of post employment (14.23) (14.23)

benefit obligation, net of tax (item of

other comprehensive income recognised

directly in retained earnings (Not

reclassified to P&L)

Total Comprehensive Income for the - - - 2,323.80 2,323.80

year ended March 31, 2023

Dividends - (130.00) (130.00)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 130.00 0.86 2,167.22 7,679.41 9,977.49

As per our Report of even date attached

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003990S/5200018

R. SURIYANARAYANAN
Partner

Membership No. 201402

Date : April 19, 2023
Place : Mumbai
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For and on behalf of the Board

DR. ANANT NARAIN SINGH

Chairman

DIN: 00114728

HARISH KUMAR
Chief Financial Officer
ICAI M. No - 534449

Date : April 19, 2023
Place : Mumbai

ROHIT KHOSLA

Director

DIN: 07163135

VANIKA MAHAJAN
Company Secretary
ICSI M.No - ACS34515

Date : April 19, 2023
Place : New Delhi



Benares Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1. Corporate Information

Benares Hotels Limited (“BHL” or the “Company”), is a listed public limited company incorporated in 1971. The Company
operates its hotels, viz. Taj Ganges and Taj Nadesar Palace in Varanasi and The Ginger Hotel Balaghat Road, Gondia (Earlier
known as The Gateway Hotel Balaghat Road, Gondia) in Maharashtra. In May, 2011, the Company became a subsidiary of
The Indian Hotels Company Limited, a company promoted by Tata Sons Private Limited.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 19, 2023.

Note 2. Application of new Indian Accounting Standards

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements
are authorized have been considered in preparation of these Financial Statements.

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance:

In accordance with the notification dated February 16, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has
adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) issued under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) with effect from April 1, 2016.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
issued under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). The accounting policies as set out below have been applied
consistently to all years presented in these financial statements.

(b) Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

() New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
April 1, 2022:

i. Ind AS 103 Business Combination — Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed (including contingent
assets and contingent liabilities) must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI).

ii. Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Guidance provided on identifying substantial modification of the terms of
an existing financial liability basis difference in discounted present value of the cash flows between old and
new terms.

iii. Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any,
shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as
part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

iv. Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets —

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(c)

18

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(ii) New accounting standards/amendments notified but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), on March 31, 2023, through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS)) Amendment Rules, 2023 amended certain existing Ind ASs on miscellaneous issues with effect from April 1,
2023. Following are few key amendments relevant to the Company:

(i) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting —

Material accounting policy information (including focus on how an entity applied the requirements of Ind AS)
shall be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as part of financial statements.

(i) Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Information about the measurement basis for financial
instruments shall be disclosed as part of material accounting policy information.

(iii) Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors-Clarification on what constitutes
an accounting estimate provided.

(iv) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes —

In case of a transaction which give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, the initial
recognition exemption from deferred tax is no longer applicable and deferred tax liability & deferred tax asset
shall be recognized on gross basis for such cases.

The Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statements to be material, based on
preliminary evaluation.

Basis of preparation and presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value i.e. Defined Benefit Plans at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course due to the special nature of industry, the same has been
assumed to have duration of 12 months. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-
current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS-1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
and Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal lakhs
except otherwise stated.

Fair value measurement:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability
to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

(a) Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

(b) Level 2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within
level 1 for the asset or liability.

(c) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgments:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

— Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has with the help of group technical
assessment estimated useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the
operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets at the Balance Sheet date. This reassessment may
result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

— Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves
use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins
used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

— Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary
differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and
in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the
related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax
assets and the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgments on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential
outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the
tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being always subject
to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment will
be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgment is made when evaluating, among other
factors, the probability of unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of potential loss.
Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

— Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

— Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain
that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to
the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account
the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The Company revises the lease term
if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

(e) Revenue recognition:

(f)

20

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the
customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and variable consideration
on account of discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of the contract.

Revenue from operations:

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets:

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room
revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied over a period of
occupation, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.
Space and shop rentals:

Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails and office at the properties. These
contracts for rentals are generally of short term in nature. Revenue is recognized in the period in which services are
being rendered.

Other Allied services:

In relation to the, laundry income, communication income, health club income, airport transfers income and other allied
services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered.

Other Income:
Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.

Employee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

i. Provident Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage
of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary), which is recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to the
provident fund set up by the respective Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC). The Company has no further
obligations beyond making the contribution, and hence, it is a Defined Contribution Plan.

ii. Gratuity Fund

The Company makes annual contributions to gratuity funds administered by the trustees for amounts notified by the
funds. The Gratuity plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death or termination

Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23



Benares Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(8)

of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and tenure of employment.
The Company accounts for the net present value of its obligations for gratuity benefits, based on an independent
actuarial valuation, determined on the basis of the projected unit credit method, carried out as at the Balance Sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the other comprehensive income and reflected in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Compensated Absences

The Company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, carried out at the Balance
Sheet date.

iv. Short Term Obligations

The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised during the period in which
the employee renders the related services. The accruals for employee entitlements of benefits such as salaries,
bonuses and annual leave represent the amount which the Company has a present obligation to pay as a result
of the employees’ services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals have been calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on current salary levels at the Balance Sheet date.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of
construction, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), expenses directly related to the location of assets
and making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing
costs. Initial estimate shall also include costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method, as per the useful life
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose
case the life of the assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation made at the group level, taking
into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history
of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

In respect of Leasehold Buildings, depreciation on buildings on leased properties is based on the tenure which is lower
of the life of the buildings or the expected lease period. Improvements to buildings are depreciated on the basis of their
estimated useful lives.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(h)

22

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Estimated Useful

Class of Assets Life
Improvement to the buildings 15 years
Plant and Equipment 10 to 20 years
Electrical Installation and Equipment 20 years
Hotel Wooden Furniture 15 years
End User devices — Computers, Laptops etc 6 years
Operating supplies (issued on opening of a new hotel property) 2 to 3 years
Assets costing less than ¥ 5000 4 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipments are not yet ready for their

intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software and designs, and cost incurred for development of the Company’s
website and certain contract acquisition costs. Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including any
directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. Internally developed intangibles are capitalised if,
and only if, all the following criteria can be demonstrated:

i)  the technical feasibility and Company’s intention and ability of completing the project;

ii) the probability that the project will generate future economic benefits;

iii) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the project; and

iv) the ability to measure the development expenditure reliably.

Expenditure on projects which are not yet ready for intended use are carried as intangible assets under development.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation periods are reviewed and
impairment evaluations are carried out at least once a year. The estimated useful life used for amortising intangible
assets is as under:

Estimated Useful

Class of Assets Life
Website Development Cost 5 years
Software and Licences 6 years
Service and Operating Rights 10 years

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
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proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognized.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised
as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost
as of the transition date.

Impairment of assets:

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign Currency Translation:

The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee.

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair
value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were fair value measured.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. Exchange differences
on restatement of other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-current assets held for sale:

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable and expected to be completed within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
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Assets taken on lease:

The Company as a lessee:

On inception of a contract, Company assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract contains a lease when it conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the lease accounting model
only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any asset restoration
obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the
Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease
term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life
or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and variable lease payments that
depend on anindex or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-substance fixed’ payments are payments that may,
in form, contain variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to exercise and
excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably certain that it will exercise the
option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain it will
purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Company
changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period over
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which guarantee a minimum
amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payment
and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against
the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments are presented
as follows in the Company’s statement of cash flows:

— short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of the lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from operating activities;

- payments for the interest element of recognised lease liabilities are included in ‘interest paid’ within cash flows from
operating activities; and
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— payments for the principal element of recognised lease liabilities are presented within cash flows from financing activities

Refer Note No. 29 of the Financial Statement for details.

Inventories:

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted
Average basis) or net realisable value. Inventory cost includes the cost of fair value of consideration paid including duties
and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.

Government Grants:

Government grants are recognised in the period to which they relate when there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and that the Company will comply with the attached conditions

Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

i. Current tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

ii. Deferredtax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in financial statements, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a binding present obligation. This may be either legal because it derives
from a contract, legislation or other operation of law, or constructive because the company created valid expectations
on the part of third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record such an obligation it must be probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of
the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision and the indicated time range of the outflow of economic benefits
are the best estimate (most probable outcome) of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance Sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time
value of money is material, the non — current provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation and the unwinding of the discount is
recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A Contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to a
qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using the effective interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flows for
the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Effective April 1, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.
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Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year including potential equity shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges
to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting:
The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment
revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Since the Company’s business consists of its hotel operations only, no separate information for segment-wise disclosures
is given.

Financial Instruments:

Financial Assets:
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to loans and advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.
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Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

— The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

— The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which
do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet date, right from its
initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured
at fair value

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23



Benares Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

29



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 4 : Property, Plant and Equipment (Owned, unless otherwise stated)

(% lakhs)
Buildings Capital Work
Freehold 8 Plantand  Furniture and Office . in Progress
Refer . R . Vehicles Total
Land " Equipment Fixtures Equipment Refer
Footnote (i) "
Footnote (ii)
Cost
At April 1, 2021 13.05 4,948.97 3,877.13 1,708.46 112.88 0.12  10,660.61 10.52
Additions - - 20.48 0.43 11.02 - 31.93 44.18
Less: Disposals - - - - 1.90 - 1.90 31.93
At March 31, 2022 13.05 4,948.97 3,897.61 1,708.88 122.00 0.12  10,690.64 22.77
Additions - 0.72 76.40 6.91 22.74 5.05 111.82 173.64
Less: Disposals - - 9.42 - - - 9.42 132.05
At March 31, 2023 13.05 4,949.70 3,964.59 1,715.79 144.74 5.17  10,793.04 64.36
Depreciation
At April 1, 2021 - 643.11 1,205.55 498.47 91.04 - 2,438.17
Add: Charge for the year - 184.33 264.42 155.58 11.76 - 616.09
Less: Disposals - - - - 1.90 - 1.90
At March 31, 2022 - 827.44 1,469.96 654.06 100.90 - 3,052.36
Add: Charge for the year - 184.33 241.73 145.73 11.84 0.93 584.56
Less: Disposals - - 7.67 - - - 7.67
At March 31, 2023 - 1,011.77 1,704.02 799.79 112.74 0.93 3,629.25 -
Net Block
At March 31, 2023 13.05 4,121.53 2,427.65 1,054.83 21.10 0.12 7,638.28 22.77
At March 31, 2022 13.05 3,937.93 2,260.57 916.00 32.00 4.24 7,163.79 64.36
Footnotes :
(i)  Gross block includes:
Buildings constructed on leasehold land - INR 1,889.52 lakhs (previous year - INR 1,889.52 lakhs).
(i) Capital Work in Progress Ageing Schedule:
As on March 31, 2023
(% lakhs)
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Projects in progress 22.87 1.55 6.71 3.56 34.69
(ii) Other Capex 29.67 - - - 29.67
(iii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 52.54 1.55 6.71 3.56 64.36
Other Capex represents routine capex, bought outs, etc.
As on March 31, 2022
(% lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Projects in progress - - - -
(ii) Other Capex 10.95 - - - 10.95
(iii) Projects temporarily suspended 1.55 6.71 - 3.56 11.82
Total 12.50 6.71 - 3.56 22.77

Other Capex represents routine capex, bought outs, etc.
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Note 5 : Intangible Assets (Acquired)

Benares Hotels Limited

(% lakhs)
Cost Softwares Rights
At April 1, 2021 97.21 78.19 175.40
Additions 2.81 - 2.81
Less: Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2022 100.02 78.19 178.21
Additions 4.82 - 4.82
Less: Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2023 104.84 78.19 183.03
Amortisation
At April 1, 2021 79.30 42.26 121.56
Charge for the year 8.76 8.45 17.21
Less: Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2022 88.06 50.71 138.77
Charge for the year 4.87 8.45 13.32
Less: Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2023 92.93 59.16 152.09
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 11.96 27.48 39.43
At March 31, 2023 11.91 19.03 30.94
Note 6. Right of Use Assets

(% lakhs)

Building Total

Gross Block at Cost
At April 1, 2021 130.19 130.19
Additions - -
Less: Disposals - -
At March 31, 2022 130.19 130.19
Additions - -
Less: Disposals - -
At March 31, 2023 130.19 130.19
Depreciation
At April 1, 2021 6.05 6.05
Charge for the year 3.04 3.04
Less: Disposals - -
At March 31, 2022 9.08 9.08
Charge for the year 3.03 3.03
Less: Disposals - -
At March 31, 2023 12.11 12.11
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 121.11 121.11
At March 31, 2023 118.08 118.08
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Note 7 : Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Non Current
Deposits with Public Bodies and Others at amortised costs
Public Bodies and Others 23.21 23.96
Deposits with Banks * 652.67 492.14
675.88 516.10
*includes FDRs having maturity less than 12 months of INR 12.66 lakhs (PY - INR 12.13 lakhs) which are under lien for issuance of Bank Guarantees.
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
B) Current
Deposit with public bodies and others
Others 1.10 0.95
1.10 0.95
Other advances
Considered good* 8.16 26.48
Interest receivable
Bank Deposits 70.82 3.77
70.82 3.77
On Current Account dues :
Related Parties (Refer Note 32) 95.84 28.37
Others 25.04 16.35
120.88 44.72
Total 200.96 75.92
*For related party balances refer Note 32
Note 8 : Other Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Non Current
Capital Advances 29.86 1.02
Prepaid Expenses 10.17 7.82
Export incentive receivable (Refer Foot Note below) - 25.30
Deposits with Government Authorities 10.00 10.00
Total 50.03 44.14
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Foot Note: Export incentive receivable

(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 25.30 25.30
Add: SEIS accrued during the year* - -
Less: Sale proceeds/ reversed during the year 25.30 -
Closing balance - 25.30
*Gain on sale of SEIS scrips of INR 1.79 Lakhs (PY - Nil)
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
B) Current
Prepaid Expenses 59.99 53.55
Indirect tax recoverable 22.11 11.22
Advance to Suppliers 30.55 10.24
Advance to Employees 0.76 0.29
Total 113.41 75.30
Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Food and Beverages 64.49 34.68
Stores and Operating Supplies 58.92 45.40
123.41 80.08
Note 10 : Trade and other receivables
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Unsecured)
Considered good* 429.58 138.56
Balance having significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit impaired 49.00 67.92
Total 478.58 206.48
Less : Provision for impairment (Refer foot note - 1) 49.00 67.92
429.58 138.56

*For related party balances refer Note 32
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Footnote:

1) Provision for Impairment

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 67.92 78.97
Add: Provision created during the year 0.01 -
67.93 78.97
Less: Bad debts written off against past provisions 18.93 -
Less: Reversal of provision no longer required - 11.05
Closing Balance 49.00 67.92
(2) Please refer Note No. 41 for Trade Receivable ageing schedule.
Note 11 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash on hand 6.86 3.55
Balances with bank in current account 135.15 70.43
Balances with bank in call and short-term deposit accounts (original maturity less than 3 months) 840.00 -
982.01 73.98
Note 12 : Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Balances with banks
Call and Short-term deposit accounts 2,656.83 1,042.40
Earmarked balances 28.60 34.29
2,685.43 1,076.69
Less: Term Deposit with Bank maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date and other 652.67 492.14
Earmarked/Margin Money/Pledged deposits classified as Non-Current
2,032.76 584.55
Note 13 : Share Capital
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised Share Capital
Ordinary Shares
15,00,000 (Previous Year- 15,00,000) Ordinary Shares of 310/- each 150.00 150.00
150.00 150.00
Issued Share Capital
13,00,000 (Previous Year- 13,00,000) Ordinary Shares of ¥10/- each 130.00 130.00
130.00 130.00
Subscribed and Paid Up
13,00,000 (Previous Year- 13,00,000) Ordinary Shares of ¥10/- each 130.00 130.00
130.00 130.00
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Footnotes:

(1) The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for
one vote share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim Dividend. In the event of the liquidation, the equity
shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts,
in proportion to the shareholding.

(2) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

(% lakhs)
Opening Balance Fresh issue Closing Balance
Ordinary shares
Year ended 31-03-2023
- Number of shares 13.00 - 13.00
- Amount (Rupees) 130.00 - 130.00
Year ended 31-03-2022
- Number of shares 13.00 - 13.00
- Amount (Rupees) 130.00 - 130.00

(3) Ordinary Shares with voting rights held by Holding Company along with its Subsidiaries & Associate Companies

(T lakhs)
Name of the Compan No. of Shares No. of Shares
pany March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Holding Company
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 6,43,825 6,43,825
Subsidiaries of Holding Company
Piem Hotels Limited 54,063 54,063
Northern India Hotels Limited 150 150
Associate of Holding Company
Oriental Hotels Limited 50 50
(4) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :
(T lakhs)
Name of the Compan No. of Shares No. of Shares
pany March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 6,43,825 6,43,825
% of Holding 49.53% 49.53%

(5) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-up in previous year pursuant to contracts without payment
being received in cash, bonus shares and shares bought back for a period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance
sheet date NIL (previous year NIL).
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(6) Details of Promoter Shareholding -

Number of Equity

Number of Equity

5, nameot romotr T s uoniE S ol o
1  Anant Narain Singh 24,000 1.85% 24,000 1.85% Nil
2 Maharaj Kumari Vishnupriya 18,000 1.38% 18,000 1.38% Nil
3 M K Krishna Priya 17,550 1.35% 17,550 1.35% Nil
4 Maharaj Kumari Hari Priya 17,550 1.35% 17,550 1.35% Nil
5  Anamika Kunwar 7,197 0.55% 7,197 0.55% Nil
6  All India Kashiraj Trust 30,000 2.31% 30,000 2.31% Nil
7  Imlak Varanasi Developments Private 1,050 0.08% 1,050 0.08% Nil
Limited

8 The Indian Hotels Company Limited 6,43,825 49.53% 6,43,825 49.53% Nil
9 Piem Hotels Limited 54,063 4.16% 54,063 4.16% Nil
10 Northern India Hotels Limited 150 0.01% 150 0.01% Nil
11 Oriental Hotels Limited 50 0.00% 50 0.00% Nil
_ Total 8,13,435 62.57% 8,13,435 62.57%
Note 14 : Other Equity

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

a)

Reserves & Surplus

Capital Reserve

General Reserve

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance

Add: Current year profit/ (loss)

Add: Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax (item of other

comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings)

Less : Final Dividend
Closing Retained Earnings
Total

0.86 0.86
2,167.22 2,167.22
2,167.22 2,167.22
5,485.61 4,925.38
2,338.03 565.28

(14.23) (5.05)
(130.00) -
7,679.41 5,485.61
9,847.49 7,653.69

Foot Notes:

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve:

(a)

(b)
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Capital Reserve: Capital reserve mainly consists of balances on account of profit on sale of forfeited shares in

previous years.

General Reserve: General reserve was created from time to time by way of the transfer of profits from retained earnings
for appropriation purposes based on the provisions of the Companies Act prior to its amendment. The reserve is un-
restricted and available for use at any time as required by the Company.
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Note 15 : Lease Liabilities

Benares Hotels Limited

(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non Current
Lease Liabilities 370.72 363.70
Total 370.72 363.70
Note 16 : Provisions
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Non Current provisions
Employee Benefit Obligation (Non-current)
Compensated absences 33.04 26.66
33.04 26.66
B) Current provisions
Employee Benefit Obligation (Current)
Compensated absences 6.21 3.48
Gratuity (Refer Note 33) 21.76 31.20
27.97 34.68
Note 17 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets 666.49 668.20
Total (A) 666.49 668.20
Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for Employee Benefits 9.88 6.22
Provision for doubtful debts 12.33 17.09
Ind AS 116 Impact 63.58 61.05
Others 21.53 7.70
Total (B) 107.32 92.06
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (A-B) 559.17 576.14
Note 18 : Borrowings
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Short term borrowings
Short Term Borrowings
Secured
Total Short term borrowings
Less: Interest accrued (included in Note 20)
Total Borrowings
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Foot Note -1

The company has been sanctioned with a Overdraft/ Working Capital Demand facility in current year of INR 450 lakhs by
Axis Bank. The facility carries interest @ 9.20% p.a. at the year end (MCLR 1 Year plus 125 basis points) and secured against
exclusive charge on the entire current and movable assets of the company, both present and future. Further, negative lien
on the fixed and immovable assets of the company. The balance outstanding at the end of period is INR Nil (PY Nil).

Foot Note - 2
Financial liabilities
Net debt reconciliation

(% lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Netdebt

Cash and cash equivalents 982.01 73.98

Current Investment - -
Short Term Borrowings - -
Long term Borrowings (Including Current portion) - -
Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents 982.01 73.98
b) Other financial Liability
Unclaimed Deposits/Interest - -
Derivative - -
Interest Accrued - -
Total Other financial Liability - -
Grand Total 982.01 73.98

Other Assets Borrowings Otbher financial

boI‘:;:lli:;: abiity Grand Total
Cash and cash Current Short Term
equivalents Investment Borrowings Interest Accrued

Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents 122.88 - (550.00) (427.12) (5.99) (433.11)
as at 1 April 2021
Cash Flows - - -
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash (48.90) - - (48.90) - (48.90)
equivalents
Borrowings - - - - - -
Repayment - - 550.00 550.00 - 550.00
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - -
Interest expense - - - - (28.75) (28.75)
Interest paid - - - - 34.74 34.74
(Net debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents as 73.98 - - 73.98 - 73.98
at 31 March 2022
Net (debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents as 73.98 - - 73.98 - 73.98
at 1st April 2022
Cash Flows
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash 908.03 - 908.03 - 908.03
equivalents
Borrowings - - - - - -
Repayment - - - - - -
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Benares Hotels Limited

Other financial

Other Assets Borrowings s
Liability
b TotaI.Net Grand Total
Cash and cash Current Short Term orrowings
. . Interest Accrued
equivalents Investment Borrowings
Foreign exchange adjustments - - - - - -
Interest expense - - - - - -
Interest paid - - - - - -
(Net debt)/ Cash & Cash Equivalents as 982.01 - - 982.01 - 982.01
at 31 March 2023
Note 19: Trade Payables
(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Footnote - 1)

Vendor Payables (Refer Footnote - 2)
Accrued expenses and others

23.18 31.36
114.58 125.74
397.95 142.34
535.71 299.44

Footnotes:

1) Theamountdueto Microand Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by
the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors. Refer Note 34 for disclosures relating to Micro and Small

Enterprises.

2) For related party balances refer Note 32.

3) Please refer Note 42 for ageing schedule of trade payables.

Note 20: Other financial liabilities

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current financial liabilities

Payables on Current Account dues :
Related Parties*

Others

Total

*For related party balances refer Note 32.
Deposits from others

Unsecured

Total

Creditors for capital expenditure*
Unclaimed dividend (Refer Foot Note - 1)
Employee related liabilities

Others

Grand Total

3.21 2.24
1.87 2.59
5.08 4.83
33.34 30.40
33.34 30.40
40.21 28.22
28.60 34.29
139.41 98.54
7.98 6.36
254.62 202.64

*includes payable to MSME vendors of INR 0.74 lakhs (PY - Nil)
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Foot Note:

1) AsumofINR 7.89 lakhs (PY INR 9.70 lakhs) due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year
has been transferred and there are no dues in this respect which have remained unpaid as at the Balance Sheet date.

Note 21 : Other current Liabilities

(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Advances collected from customers 222.98 182.96
Statutory dues 50.60 38.34
273.58 221.30
Note 22 : Revenue from Operations
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Room Income, Food, Restaurants and Banquet Income 8,976.28 4,758.29
Shop rentals 62.28 49.73
Others 293.94 175.94
Total 9,332.50 4,983.96
Note 23 : Other Income
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost
Inter-corporate deposits
Deposits with banks 111.67 7.29
Others 1.80 1.96
Interest on Income Tax Refunds 4.46 -
Total 117.93 9.25
Exchange Gain (Net) 0.04 0.17
Others 32.45 0.46
Grand Total 150.42 9.88
Note 24 : Food and Beverages Consumed
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Stock 34.68 44.47
Add : Purchases 866.20 435.79
900.88 480.26
Less : Closing Stock 64.49 34.68
Food and Beverages Consumed 836.39 445.58
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Note 25 : Employee Benefit Expense and Payment to Contractors

Benares Hotels Limited

(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc. 679.09 522.72
Company's Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 41.50 45.22
Reimbursement of Expenses on Personnel Deputed to the Company 200.42 227.43
Payment to Contractors 131.97 63.10
Staff Welfare Expenses 118.68 91.43
Total 1,171.66 949.90
Note 26 : Finance costs

(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Interest Expense at effective interest rate on borrowings - 28.75

- 28.75

Interest on Lease liability 36.77 36.06

Total 36.77 64.81
Note 27 : Other operating and general expenses

(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Operating expenses consist of the following :
Linen and Room Supplies
Catering Supplies
Other Supplies
Fuel, Power and Light (Refer footnote (i))
Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Machinery
Repairs to Others
Garden Expenses
Linen and Uniform Washing and Laundry Expenses
Payment to Orchestra Artistes and Security Charges
Guest Transportation
Travel Agents' Commission
Discount to Collecting Agents
Other Operating Expenses
Total
(ii) General expenses consist of the following :
Rent
Licence Fees
Rates and Taxes
Insurance
Advertising and Publicity
Management Fee Expenses
Reimbursable Fees Expenses- Corporate Services and CRS/ CIS
Printing and Stationery
Passage and Travelling
Provision for Doubtful Debts/ Bad debts written off (Refer Note 10)
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Footnote (iii))

163.08 87.51
96.95 49.03
17.26 6.13

507.83 410.70
63.71 44.85
158.91 108.16
25.66 9.84
56.05 24.15
103.56 59.70
42.24 22.45
116.57 55.10
176.21 100.34
85.85 50.28
209.93 82.34

1,823.81 1,110.58
15.86 16.08
28.54 6.88

114.89 106.20
31.85 29.89
349.19 171.27
737.55 336.69
186.27 98.68
19.19 11.23
15.88 9.53
0.01 (11.05)
10.06 12.91
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(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Professional Fees 64.42 24.40
Outsourced Support Services 46.26 35.78
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 0.88 -
Payment made to Statutory Auditors (Refer Footnote (iv)) 7.58 7.23
Directors' Fees and Commission 106.48 33.55
Other Expenses 150.30 126.55
Total 1,885.21 1,015.82
Grand Total 3,709.02 2,126.40
Footnotes:
(i) Expenditure recovered from other parties :
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fuel, Power and Light 9.27 6.61
Total 9.27 6.61
(ii) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 9.98 12.91
(b) Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset
- Building Livelihoods - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
- Being a Responsible Neighbour 3.00 3.00
- Building Livelihoods 7.06 4.96
- Disaster Management - 495
Total Spent 10.06 12.91
(c) Amount unspent Nil Nil
(d) The total of previous years’ shortfall amounts Nil Nil
(iii) Payment made to Statutory Auditors:
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditors 5.00 5.00
As tax auditors 1.50 1.50
For other services - net 0.25 0.25
For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.83 0.48
7.58 7.23
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Note 28: Tax Disclosures

i) Income Tax recognised in Profit or loss:

Benares Hotels Limited

(T lakhs)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Current Tax

In respect of the current year 807.11 21.45
In respect of earlier years
Resulting from reversal of provision for tax for earlier years - -
Other demands and tax paid for earlier years - -
Total income tax expense 807.11 21.45
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year (17.28) 184.10
In respect of earlier year 0.31 -
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (16.97) 184.10
Total tax expense recognised in the current year 790.14 205.55
ii) Reconciliation of tax expense with the effective tax:
(% lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit before tax from continuing operations (a) 3,128.17 770.83
Income tax rate as applicable (b) 25.168% 25.168%
Calculated taxes based on above, without any adjustments for deductions [(a) x (b)] 787.30 194.00
Permanent tax differences due to:
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 2.53 3.25
Others - -
Deferred Tax reversal
Net Impact of the change in the tax rates* - -
Adjustment to Opening Deferred Tax 0.31 8.30
Total tax expense recognised in the current year 790.14 205.55
iii) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income:
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred tax/ Income Tax
(a) Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
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iv) Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Asset and Deferred Tax Liability:

(% lakhs)
. Recognised in R.ecognised in Rec;:]ﬂ;‘:;z‘: .
March 31, 2023 Opening Balance Retained Earning profit or loss - CY comprehensive Closing balance
Impact income
Deferred tax liabilities/ assets in relation to:
Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets 668.20 - (1.71) - 666.49
Provision for Employee Benefits (6.22) - (3.66) - (9.88)
Provisions for Defined benefit obligations - - - - -
Provision for doubtful debts (17.09) - 4.76 - (12.33)
Ind AS 116 impact (61.05) - (2.53) - (63.58)
Others (Expenses disallowed to be allowed in future) (7.70) - (13.83) - (21.53)
Total Deferred Tax Liability 576.14 - (16.97) - 559.17
(3 lakhs)
. Recognised in R.ecognised in Rec;:]ﬂ::::‘:: "
March 31, 2022 Opening Balance Retained Earning profit or loss - CY comprehensive Closing balance
Impact income
Deferred tax liabilities/ assets in relation to:
Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets 664.06 - 4.14 - 668.20
Provision for Employee Benefits (9.73) - 3.51 - (6.22)
Provisions for Defined benefit obligations - - - - -
Provision for doubtful debts (19.87) - 2.78 - (17.09)
Ind AS 116 impact (58.49) - (2.56) - (61.05)
Unused business losses (179.70) 179.70 - -
Others (Expenses disallowed to be allowed in future) (4.23) - (3.47) - (7.70)
Total Deferred Tax Liability 392.04 - 184.10 - 576.14

Note 29: Lease

The Company has taken land and immovable properties on lease which are generally long term in nature with varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights expiring within forty one to sixty years. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

(3 lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Increase in depreciation expense relating to the depreciation of new right-of-use assets recognised. 3.03 3.04
Decrease in Rent expense relating to previous operating leases 29.75 28.90
Increase in Financial expenses relating to the interest expense on additional lease liabilities recognised 36.77 36.06
Increase in net cash from operating activities and decrease in financing activities by the same amount, 29.75 28.90
representing repayments of principal and interest on the recognised lease liabilities.

(T lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Right-of-use assets recognised and presented separately in Company statement of financial position 118.08 121.11
(Refer Note 6)
Lease liabilities recognised and presented separately in Company statement of financial position (Refer 370.72 363.70
Note 15)
Net deferred tax assets increased on account of deferred tax impact of the changes in assets and 63.58 61.05
liabilities (Refer Note 28)
Net effect of these adjustments increased Company’s net liabilities by 189.06 181.54
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B. Ind AS 116 related Other Disclosures:

1. Total lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

Denominated in the following currencies:

Benares Hotels Limited

% lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Indian Rupees 370.72 363.70
Other Currencies - -
Current - -
Non-current 363.70 363.70
Total 370.72 363.70
2.  Amounts recognised in profit or loss

The following amounts were recognised as in profit and loss in the year:

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to variable lease payments

Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets
Interest on lease liabilities

Gain on lease modification

Variable lease payments/ payments for short term leases
Total recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

3.03 3.04
28.54 6.88
36.77 36.06
15.86 16.08
84.20 62.06

Variable lease payments are payable under certain of Company’s hotel leases and arise where Company is committed to

making additional lease payments that are contingent on the performance of the hotels

3. Exposure to future cash flows:

The following are the undiscounted contractual cash flows of lease liabilities. The payment profile has been based on

management’s forecasts and could in reality be different from expectations:

% lakhs)

Maturity analysis:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year.
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
More than 5 years
Total

30.60 29.75
31.45 30.60
96.90 94.35
1,663.08 1,697.08
1,822.03 1,851.78

Note 30: Contingencies and Commitments
Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

a) On account of other disputes in respect of:
i.  Salestax —X36.27 Lakhs (previous year — X 36.27 Lakhs)

ii. Others—=%1.21 Lakhs (previous year — X 1.21 Lakhs)
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b) Others

Management is generally unable to reasonably estimate a range of possible loss for proceedings or disputes other than
those included in the estimate above, including where:

(i) plaintiffs / parties have not claimed an amount of money damages, unless management can otherwise determine
an appropriate amount;

(ii) the proceedings are in early stages;
(iii) there is uncertainty as to the outcome of pending appeals or motions or negotiations;
(iv) there are significant factual issues to be resolved; and/or there are novel legal issues presented.

The Company’s management does not believe, based on currently available information, that the outcomes of the
above matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial statements, though the outcomes could be
material to the Company’s operating results for any particular period, depending, in part, upon the operating results for
such period. It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above.

Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account net of capital advances and not provided
for is X 270.58 Lakhs (Previous year — X 9.70 Lakhs).

Note 31: Segment Reporting

The Company’s only business being hoteliering, disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS108 -
‘Operating Segments’ (Ind AS-108). There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken
in India. Refer Note No. 40 for Company’s Disaggregated Revenue by the type of revenue stream.

32 (a) Related party transactions
Details of related parties:

(i) Holding Company
The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL)
(Tata Sons Private Limited has substantial interest in The Indian Hotels Company Limited)

(ii) Fellow subsidiaries

KTC Hotels Limited

United Hotels Limited

Roots Corporation Limited

Piem Hotels Limited

Taj Trade and Transport Company Limited
Inditravel Limited

Northern India Hotels Limited

Taj Enterprises Limited

Skydeck Properties and Developers Private Limited
Sheena Investments Private Limited

ELEL Hotels & Investments Limited

Ideal Ice Limited

Taj SATS Air Catering Limited

Genness Hospitality Private Limited
Qurio Hospitality Private Limited
Suisland Hospitality Private Limited
Kadisland Hospitality Private Limited

46 Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23



Benares Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Zarrenstar Hospitality Private Limited

Taj International Hotels (H.K) Limited

IHOCO BV

St. James Court Hotels Limited

Taj International Hotels Limited

United Overseas Holdings Inc. including 3 LLCs
PIEM International Hotels (H.K) Limited

IHMS Hotels (SA) (Proprietary) Limited
Goodhope Palace Hotels (Proprietary) Limited

Directors who held the office during the year and
previous year:

Dr. Anant Narain Singh, Chairman

Mr. Rohit Khosla, Non Executive Director

Mr. Moiz Miyajiwala, Non Executive Director &
Independent Director®

Mrs. Rukmani Devi, Non Executive &
Independent Director®

Mr. Puneet Chhatwal, Non Executive Director®
Mr. Beejal Desai, Non Executive Director*

Mr. Puneet Raman, Non Executive Director &

Independent Director®

#Independent directors are included as related parties for the purpose
of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS 24- Related Party Transactions)
only. They are not related under the Companies Act, 2013.

S Resigned with effect from 02 Feb 2023

* Appointed as additional director effective 08 Feb 2023

Key Management Personnel (KMP) for Current
and Previous year:

Mr. Vivek Sharma (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Harish Kumar (Chief Financial Officer)
Ms. Vanika Mahajan (Company Secretary)

Firms/ Corporation in which Directors are
interested with whom transactions were carried
out during the current and previous year:

Maharaja Prabhu Narain Physical Cultural Trust
Aditya Dairies Private Limited

Anant Electric Lamp Works Private Limited
Imlak Varanasi Developments Private Limited
All India Kashiraj Trust

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

(vi) Relatives of the Directors with whom transactions

were carried out during the current and previous year:

Mrs. Anamika Kunwar
MK Krishna Priya

MK Vishnupriya

MK Hari Priya

Mr. Raghubir Singh Gohil
Mrs. Archana Raman

(vii) JV & Associates of the Holding Company and

Entity and Subsidiary, JV & Associates of the
Entity having Significant influence with whom
transactions were carried out during the current
and previous year:

JV & Associates of Holding Company:
Kaveri Retreats & Resorts Limited

Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited

Taj Karnataka Hotels & Resorts Limited
Oriental Hotels Limited

Entity and Subsidiary, JV of the Entity having
Significant influence over holding co:

Tata Sons Private Limited

Supermarket Grocery Supplies Private Limited
Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata Aia Life Insurance Company Limited

Tata Asset Management Private Limited

Tata Medical & Diagnostic Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

Infiniti Retail Limited

Tata SIA Airlines Limited

Tata Communication Limited

Tata Play Limited (Formerly known as Tata Sky
Limited)

(viii) Others

Hotel Taj Ganges Employee Gratuity Trust

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

47



siseg ysed

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

The Indian Hotels Company Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2023

6€9 0c'te - - - - - - - - - - uo IsnJ] Alnjeuo oy uonnquiuo) 8T
- - - 96°C - L8'L - - - e€v's - 8€'19 pled puspinlg - /LT
apew
- - - - - - - - 61°¢E ST'9 669 6€°€C S9149A003Y /paules swodu[JBYIO 9T
(xe3 Butpnput)
- - - - - - - - ST'S 506 - - swooy -swodu| Sunesado 4Byl ST
- - - 90°0 - - - - S0°0 - £€5°18 96°'GET 1502 1e 9suadxd s|gesinquiidy Joylo  vT
- - - - - - - - - - - S9°0 spooo |elde) jo aseydind €1
- - - - - - - - - S8°0¢€ - ov'o $9IAJIBS /SPO0D Jo Bseydind T
- - - - - - - - 95°¢8 SL'TL 8C'LL 68'8€ paJanoday asuadx3 yeis pandsa 1T
uopesaunwal diN)
- - - - - - - - 98°00T LL'6L 9008 T9°€6 ‘oul - 1500 je dsuadx3 yeis paindag 0T
- - - - 1740 - - - €8°LY ES'EY €0'cce  TIT'6TY panJaoe/sa2IAIaS Jay3o Joj pled saad 6
panudoe
- - - - - - - - I 79'C LE'GEE €6'VEL /pied sasuadxs sa9) Juswadeuey 3
- - St'vT 60°0C Syt 60°0C - - - - - - panJdoe/pied sasuadxs s9a4 asuadI] /
- - - SL'ee - - - - - - - - SISeq YSed uo uolssiwwo) J0323l1g 9
- - 080T 0CeT - - - - - - - - $934 Sums 40303413 S
- - - - - - 61°¢ 080 - - - - SAIA 03 Juswssinquiay J3Yy10 14
- - - - - - Yadrdi 9t°'G8 - - - - (T- 910N 1004) uoneJBUNWAL AN €
- - - - - - - - 5/°8T - - - @)1 uo asuadxa 1sa491u| 4
Jeah ayy
- - - - - - - - 00°0SS - - - Sulnp paaigdal @) 40 usawAeday T
:pouad ay3 Suunp suonoesues)
(44114 €20 (44114 €20t (44114 €20¢ (44114 €20t (44114 €20¢ (44114 €20t
TEYMBIN  ‘TEYIBIN ‘TEYIIBIN  ‘TEYIRIN  ‘TEYMBIN  ‘TEYIBIN  ‘TEYIMEIN  ‘TEYIRIN  ‘TEYMBIN ‘TEYIIBIN  ‘TEYIIEIN  ‘TE Yose
Ar/sauelpisqns -oN
$1030241Q 113Y3 Jo dduanjul
40 sanne[ay /parsasajul (dW) 19uuosiag wesyiusis yum Apuz sieinoned E
w0 siopala aJe siopaug jawaseuely Ay 13 Auedwod SuipjoH Aueduio) Buipjon
Ya1ym uj sannul 3Y1 Jo SeOSSY ‘Af
‘sauelpisqns mojja4
(surer 2)

:€£20T ‘Y2Je|Al TE 1€ se Sulpuelsino saduejeq pue £20¢ ‘Y24elAl TE papua Jeah ayy Sulinp suondesuesy Ayed pajejas jo sjieraq (q) z€

Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23

48



Benares Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

"949Y PasO|ISIp 30U pue awes ay3 4o} papiroid si [eaosdde sngiuwo /oyidads ou ‘@auay ‘uordesuesy Ayied pajejas e Jou aJe ‘satied
paie|aJ 01 Ino-Aed Jiay3 pue saiied palejas Jo jjeyaq uo spuny jo 1d193aJ SAJOAUI JBY] ‘Suondesue) YSnodyl — ssed 1Byl SJ9PISU0D pJeod ay |

'S|910H Wdld/TJHI 03 JudWasInquial se pled suonesaunway dIAD

‘9|oym e se Auedwo) ay3 JO UoLlEN|eA [BlIENIOE UE JO SISE(
93 uo papinoid aJe 9say3 dduUls ‘saouasge pajesuadwod pue Aynieds se yons siyauaq aaAojdwa wia} Suo| sapn|oxa uonesaunwal |elsadeuep

[4
T

:9]0N 1004

B B - - - - - - 70 - - - S92UBAPY JBY10 9
- - - S - TS - - - 62'8 - 80'€ s9suadx3 4o UOISINOId S
- - - - - - - - vee 1€ - - sa|geAed Junody uaLIN) v
- - - - - - - - 9T'T 69°€ - - S9|QBAIDI3Y dpel] €
- - - - - - - - vL°0 Ay 0071 '8 sa|qeAed apel]. [4
- - - - - - - - 79’1 7’9 €4'9¢ 07’68 3|geAlad9Yy JUN0JJY JUaLIN) 1
:porsad ayy
J0 pua ay3 1e Suipue)sino saduejeg
720z €202 f£{1r4 €202 T20z €202 [£{1r4 €202 (44114 €202 [£{1r4 €202
TEYIBN  TEYIBN ‘TEYMRIN  TEYMEIN  ‘TEYMBIN  ‘TEYUBIN  ‘TEYMBIN  ‘TEYMBINL  ‘TEYMBN  ‘TEYIEN  ‘TEYMEIN  ‘TE Ydew
s9jenossy
/nr/s3ueipisqns -oN
113y} Jo dduanjjul siejnonJed S

s19Y10

s10323.1q

pa3saJalul aJje s1033a41q
Y2IYM Ut saugu3

(du) [puuosiad
juawaseuey Asy

uedyiusis yum Apua
13 Auedwod SuipjoH
3Y3 JO S21e1O0SSY ‘Al
‘sauielpisqns mojja4

Auedwo) SuipjoH

(suer 2)

49



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

32 (c) Details of material transactions with related party during the year ended 31 March, 2023 and
balances outstanding as at 31 March, 2023:

(% lakhs)
:l.o. Entities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Material transactions during the year
1 The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL)
i Management and operating Fees 734.93 335.37
ii Fee for other Services 419.11 222.03
iii Deputed Staff Expense at cost - incl. KMP remuneration 93.61 80.06
iv Deputed Staff Expense Recovered 38.89 77.28
v Other Income Earned/ Recoveries made 23.39 6.99
vi Other Reimbursable Expense at cost 135.96 81.53
vii Dividend Paid 64.38 -
viii Purchase of Goods/ Services 0.40 -
ix Purchase of Capital Goods 0.65 -
Fellow Subsidiary company
2 United Hotels Limited
i ICD Repayment made - 550.00
i Interest Expense - 28.75
i Deputed Staff Expense at cost 13.27 10.38
3 KMP Remuneration - paid as reimbursement to IHCL/Piem Hotels
i Vivek Sharma 47.02 41.33
i Vanika Mahajan 13.21 11.10
i Harish Kumar 25.22 19.83
(% lakhs)
:I‘o_ Entities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances outstanding at the end of the year:
1 The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL)
i Trade Payables 8.41 44.00
ii  Receivable on Current account dues 89.40 26.73
i Provision for Expenses 3.08 -
2 United Hotels Limited
i Payable on Current account dues 1.15 0.90

Note 33 : Employee Benefits

(@) The Company has recognised the following expenses as defined contribution plan under the head “Company’s
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds” (net of recoveries) :

(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provident Fund 39.12 34.26
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(b) The Company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows :-

Funded : Post Retirement Gratuity

(c) Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity)— As per Actuarial Valuation on March 31, 2023:-

(i) Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet and movement in net liability

Benares Hotels Limited

(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present Value of Funded Obligations 250.18 245.93
Fair Value of Plan Assets 228.42 214.73
Net (asset) / Liability - Current 21.76 31.20
(ii) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Service Cost 17.95 17.31
Interest on Net Defined Benefit Liability 1.44 (0.24)
Total 19.39 17.07
(iii) Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Changes in financial assumptions (10.28) 1.00
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Experience Adjustments 20.64 -
Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 3.87 4.05
Total 14.23 5.05
(iv) Reconciliation of Net Liability/ Asset
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Net Benefit Liability 31.20 6.39
Expense charged to profit and loss 19.39 17.07
Amount recognized outside profit and loss 14.23 5.05
Employer Contribution (31.20) (6.39)
Impact of liability assumed or (settled)* (11.86) 9.08
Closing Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) - Current 21.76 31.20

* On account of inter group transfer
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(v) Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 245.93 233.01
Current Service Cost 17.95 17.31
Past Service Cost - -
Interest on defined benefit obligation 15.58 14.62
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (10.28) -
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) arising on account of experience adjustments 20.64 1.00
Benefits Paid (30.56) (29.09)
Liabilities assumed / (settled)* (9.08) 9.08
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 250.18 245.93
* on account of business combination or inter group transfer
(vi) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 214.73 226.62
Employer Contribution 31.20 6.39
Interest on plan assets 14.14 14.86
Re-measurements due to Actual return on plan assets less interest (3.87) (4.05)
Benefits Paid (30.56) (29.09)
Liabilities assumed / (settled)* 2.78 -
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 228.42 214.73
* on account of business combination or inter group transfer
(vii) Description of Plan Assets
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Government of India Securities 0% 0%
Corporate Bonds 0% 0%
Special Deposit Scheme 4% 4%
Equity 0% 0%
Others - Bank FDR 96% 96%
Grand Total 100% 100%
(viii) Actuarial Assumptions
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.45% 6.80%
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) Staff- 5.00% Staff- 5.00%

Executive-4.00% Executive-4.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations. Further, Mortality has been assumed as per the published notes
under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ult table Change in Benefit Obligation.
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(ix) Maturity Profile

(x)

Maturity Profile Amount in X lakhs
Expected benefits for year 1 68.04
Expected benefits for year 2 21.69
Expected benefits for year 3 24.08
Expected benefits for year 4 19.34
Expected benefits for year 5 33.93
Expected benefits for year 6 34.44
Expected benefits for year 7 7.69
Expected benefits for year 8 5.47
Expected benefits for year 9 24.72
Expected benefits for year 10 & above 210.10

The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 6.51 years.

Effect of Change in Key Assumptions

Year Ended 31st March 2023
% lakhs)

Discount Rate  Salary Escalation Rate

Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -2.94% 3.20%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.13% -3.04%

The expected contribution for the next year is X 20 lakhs.

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority,
promotions and other relevant factors. The above information has been certified by the actuary and has been
relied upon by the Auditors.

Information disclosed above is to the extent provided by actuary.

Exposure to Risks:

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary
risk.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which
is determined by reference to government security yields prevailing as at the Balance Sheet date. If the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. The current plan has made investments in special deposit
schemes of banks & FDRs. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the Trustees of the Fund consider it
appropriate to invest funds in the bank FDRs

Interest risk: A decrease in the Government Securities (G-Sec Bonds) interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants during their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries
of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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Other regulatory matters

Note 34:Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006

(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 23.92 31.36

(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - -

(iif) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond - -
the appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due & payable for the year - -
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when - -
the interest dues as above are actually paid

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 35:Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Earnings Per Share is calculated in accordance with Ind AS 33 — ‘Earnings Per Share’ prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

(T lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/ (Loss) after tax —(X ) 2,338.03 565.28
Number of Ordinary (Equity) Shares in lakhs 13.00 13.00
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary (Equity) Shares in lakhs:
Considered in calculation of Basic EPS 13.00 13.00
Considered in calculation of Diluted EPS 13.00 13.00
Face Value per Ordinary (Equity) Share (X) 10.00 10.00
Earnings Per Share (X):
Basic 179.85 43.48
Diluted 179.85 43.48

Note 36:Financial Instruments

The significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument
are disclosed.

Financial assets and liabilities
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories under the most relevant method i.e. amortised cost is as follows:

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 982.01 73.98
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,032.76 584.55
Trade Receivables 429.58 138.56
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(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loans & Advances - -
Other financial assets - Non Current 675.88 516.10
Other financial assets - Current 200.96 75.92
Total 4,321.19 1,389.11
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings - -
Lease Liabilities - Non Current 370.72 363.70
Lease Liabilities - Current - -
Trade Payables 535.71 299.44
Other financial liabilities - Non Current - -
Other financial liabilities - Current 254.62 202.64
Total 1,161.05 865.78

Fair value of Financial Instruments measured at amortised cost :

The management considers that the carrying amount of assets and liabilities recognised at amortised cost in financial
statements is approximate to their fair value.

Note 37:Financial Risk Management

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management:

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. The Company’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit team. Internal audit
team undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the audit committee.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. The predominant currency of the company
revenue and operating cash flows is the Indian Rupees. A few of the Company’s reported trade payables have exposure
to payables held in US dollars. Movements in foreign exchange rates can affect the Company’s reported profits and
net assets, however, the said impact is not material. The company does not have any investments, hence, price risk is
not applicable.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and deposits with banks, financial institutions and others. The company’s policy is to place cash and cash equivalents and
short term deposits with reputable banks and financial institutions. During the year, following provisions for doubtful
debts has been made (reversed):
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(d)

(e)
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( lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening provision for Impairment 67.92 78.97
Add- Provision made during the year 0.01 -
Less: Credit impaired Debts written off against past provisions 18.93 -
Less: Reversal of provision no longer required - 11.05
Closing provision for doubtful debts 49.00 67.92

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on a credit rating scorecard and individual credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No of Customers who owed more than 10% of the Total receivables 1 1
Contribution of Customers in owing more than 10% of Total receivables 11% 14%

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do
not contain a significant financing component. The application of simplified approach does not requires the company
to track changes in credit risk, rather it recognises impairment loss allowance based on life time expected credit loss at
each balance sheet date, since its initial recognition.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company does
not hold collateral as security. The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s finance department in
accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and
within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s management
on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks
and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. Also, the
company has an WCDL/ overdraft facility from a bank of which details are mentioned below. The balance of borrowings
at year end is Nil.

Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expiring within one year:
Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) and Bank overdraft 450.00 1,000.00
Expiring beyond one year - -
Total 450.00 1,000.00
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The original limits were X 1,000 lakhs which were renewed in December 2022 and reduced to X 450 lakhs on account of
non-utilization of the said facilities by the company. WCDL / Bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time by the

Company.

(f) Other Risk — Impact of Covid 19

The business for the first quarter of previous year was impacted due to the outbreak of third wave of COVID-19. However,
high pace of vaccinations, easing of COVID-19 restrictions and pent-up demand resulted in recovery, mainly in domestic
leisure travel, in the second and subsequent quarters of financial year 2021-22. During the current year, the Company
saw strong rebound in the business aided by leisure travel and gradual pick up in business travel. The Company will
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions on account of COVID-19 to assess any

possible impact on the Company.

Note 38:

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

(% lakhs)
Due in 1%t year Duein2™year  Duein 3" to 5th year Due fmmo‘:-::vzf:; Total

Year ended 31 March 2023
Borrowings (for renewal) - - - - -
Trade and other payables 535.71 - - - 535.71
Lease Liabilities 30.60 31.45 96.90 1,663.08 1,822.03
Other financial liabilities - Non Current - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - Current 254.62 - - - 254.62

Year ended 31 March 2022
Borrowings ( for renewal) - - - - -
Lease Liabilities 29.75 30.60 94.35 1,697.08 1,851.78
Trade and other payables 299.44 - - - 299.44
Other financial liabilities - Non Current - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - Current 202.64 - - - 202.64

Note 39:Guarantees given

The company has given Bank Guarantees of X 3.25 lakhs (PY - X 3.25 lakhs) and Fixed Deposits of X 6.00 lakhs (PY - X 6.00
lakhs) to various government authorities & other parties for registrations and business purposes. These guarantees were
issued against the Fixed Deposits of X 3.25 lakhs made with the bank and a lien has been created on the Fixed Deposits of X

6.00 lakhs excluding accrued interest.

57



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 40: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115/ Ind AS 108

Contract With Customers

1

58

Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its statement of
Profit and loss. There are no variable considerations, returns or material discounts.

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Contract With Customers

Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its statement of Profit and loss.
There are no variable considerations, returns or material discounts.

Income from operations:

a) Room Income, Food & Beverages and Banquets 8,976.28 4,758.29
b) Shop Rentals 62.28 49.73
c) Others 293.94 175.94
Total Revenue from operations 9,332.50 4,983.96
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivable during the year: 18.93 (11.05)

*includes bad debts written off of INR 18.93 lakhs in CY (PY - Nil)
Disaggregate Revenue:

The following table presents company revenue disaggregated by type of revenue stream and by reportable segment (Refer Note 31
for Segment Reporting):

Revenue based on geography:

India 9,332.50 4,983.96
Overseas - -
Revenue based on product and services:

a) Room Income (recognised over a period of time) 5,234.59 2,633.44
b) Food & Beverages and Banquets (recognised at a point in time)* 3,741.69 2,124.85
c) Shop Rentals (recognised over a period of time) 62.28 49.73
d) Others revenue from contract with customers (recognsied at a point in time)* 293.94 175.94

* At a point in time: Since transfer of goods or services happen across the counter, there are no significant judgements involved in determining
when the customer obtains control of promised goods and services.

The Company has adopted the time proportion method (elapsed time during the reporting period / contract period) for revenue
recognition. As the services are available to customer uniformly throughout the period, the Company believes that this method
provides a fair depiction of the transfer of services.

Contract balances

The following tables present information about trade receivables, contract assets, and deferred revenue:

Trade Receivables (net of provision for impairment) 429.58 138.56
Deferred Revenue -

Advance Collections (net of GST) 222.98 182.96

Advance Collections, deposits from customer

Advance Collections is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This
includes advances received from the customer towards rooms/restaurant/Banquets. Revenue is recognised once the
performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services. Refer Note
No. 3 on significant accounting policies for details of performance obligation and revenue recognition.
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Benares Hotels Limited

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

At 01st April 182.96 155.95

At 31st March 222.98 182.96
Analysed as:

Current 222.98 182.96

Non-current

Revenue recognised during the period that was included in the opening balance of Customer Advances amounted to

INR 182.96 Lakhs (PY - INR 155.95 Lakhs)

Note 41: ‘Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

As on 31st Mar 2023
(T lakhs)
Unbilled Lessn::::h(: 6 m01n ;2: 1- 2 years 2-3 years More t::;_: Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 35.86 361.60 32.12 429.58
good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - 11.42 25.89 11.69 49.00
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 35.86 361.60 32.12 11.42 25.89 11.69 478.58
Less : provision for credit impairement 49.00
Net Receivables outstanding at the end of the year 429.58
As on 31st Mar 2022
(% lakhs)
Unbilled Lessn::::h(: 6 monthys;a:ll' 1- 2 years 2- 3 years More tl;:ra\r?; Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 18.83 108.56 11.17 - - - 138.56
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - 30.10 15.29 14.20 59.59
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - 8.33 8.33
Total 18.83 108.56 11.17 30.10 15.29 22.53 206.48
Less : provision for credit impairement 67.92
Net Receivables outstanding at the end of the year 138.56

* The above aging schedules have been prepared on the basis of transactions dates.

59



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 42: ‘Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

As on 31st Mar 2023
(% lakhs)
Particulars Unbilled Dues  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More t::;‘rz Total
(i) MSME - 23.18 - - - 23.18
(i) Others 397.95 104.55 5.72 0.73 3.58 512.53
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 397.95 127.73 5.72 0.73 3.58 535.71
As on 31st Mar 2022
(% lakhs)
Particulars Unbilled Dues  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More t:::rz Total
(i) MSME - 31.36 - - - 31.36
(i) Others 142.34 108.63 1.13 9.11 6.87 268.08
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 142.34 139.99 1.13 9.11 6.87 299.44
* The above aging schedules have been prepared on the basis of transactions dates.
Note 43: Ratio
(% lakhs)
S.No. Ratio intimes/% Numerator Denominator Current Year PreViYZ:: Variance
a) Current Ratio intimes  Current Assets Current Liabilities excluding 3.56 1.36 162%
current maturities of long
term borrowings
b) Debt - Equity intimes  Non - Current Borrowings +  Total Equity NA NA NA
Current Borrowings
c) Debt service coverage intimes  Earnings available for debt  Debt Service NA NA NA
service
d) Return on Equity in% Profit/(Loss) after tax Average Total Equity 26% 8% 249%
e) Inventory Turnover NA NA NA NA NA
f) Trade Receivable intimes  Revenue from operations * Average Trade 32.85 45.98 -29%
Turnover Receivables
g) Trade Payable Turnover intimes  Total expenses - Depreciation * Trade Payables 10.89 10.80 1%
- Interest - Payroll Cost
h) Net Capital Turnover intimes  Net Sales * Working Capital i.e 6.10 -32.85 -119%
(Avg Current Assets - Avg
Current Liabilities)
i) Net Profit Ratio in% Profit/(Loss) after tax Total Income 25% 11% 118%
j) Return on capital in % EBIT * Avg Equity + Avg Debt + 34% 10% 240%
employed Avg Leases
k) Return on Investment in% NA NA NA NA NA

* Average = (Opening + Closing)/2
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Foot Notes:

(1) The ratios have improved in the current year vis a vis last year mainly on account of increase in business due to strong
rebound in the business aided by leisure travel.

(2) As the Company is primarily engaged in hospitality sector (Service Industry), Inventory turnover ratio and Return on
Investment ratio are not applicable to the Company.

(3) The company has not availed any borrowings during the year, hence, Debt Equity Ratio and Debt Service Ratio are not
applicable.
Note 44:0ther Statutory Information:

i. Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

ii. Wilful Defaulter

The company has not been declared Wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

iii. Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

iv. Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year.

v. Loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and other Related Parties

During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors,
KMPs, and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other
person that are either:

(@) repayable on demand or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

vi. Loans and Advances

A. The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

B. The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
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vii. Undisclosed income

The company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

viii. Details of Crypto currency or Virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

ix. Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property

The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or
both during the current or previous year.

X. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:

The Company is not required to register any charge and also not required to file any satisfaction of charges during the
year with the Registrar of Companies. Hence, this is not applicable.

xi. Title deeds

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of
the company.

xii. Fair Valuation of Investment Properties

The Company does not hold any investment property and hence the disclosure on fair valuation of investment property
is not applicable to the Company.

Xiii. Returns to Banks

The sanctioned terms of the overdraft & working capital facility do not specify for filings of any returns to bank. Also, the
company has not utilised the sanctioned facility during the year. Further, the company has not availed any borrowings
from the financial institutions. Hence, this is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. Transactions with Struck off Companies
There are no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

Note 45:There are no financial liabilities and assets that are set off as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Note 46: Dividends

The dividends paid during the fiscal year 2023 represent an amount of X 130 lakhs @ X 10.00 per equity share towards
dividend for fiscal 2022.

The dividends declared by Benares Hotels Limited are in Indian Rupees and are based on the profits available for distribution
as reported in the statutory financial statements of Benares Hotels Limited. Subsequent to March 31, 2023, the Board of
Directors of Benares Hotels Limited have proposed a dividend of X 260.00 Lakhs (X 20.00 per share) in respect of fiscal 2023.
The proposal is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, and if approved, would result in a
cash outflow of approximately X 260.00 lakhs.

Note 47:Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern through a judicious mix for short
term and long term sources. The structure is managed to maintain an investment grade credit rating, to provide ongoing
returns to shareholders and to service debt obligations, whilst maintaining maximum operational flexibility. Consistent with
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others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by Equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current term loans’ as shown in the
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents and Current Investment.

The Company has borrowings of X Nil lakhs (previous year: X Nil lakhs) and Net Debts of X Nil lakhs (previous year: X Nil lakhs)
as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the Company has Nil gearing ratio (Net Debt/ Total Equity) as at 31- Mar
-2023 and 31- Mar -2022.

Note 48:0Others:

The date of implementation of the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits is yet to be
notified by the Government and when implemented will impact the contributions by the Company towards benefits such
as Provident Fund, Gratuity etc. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and give effect in the financial statements
when the Code and Rules there under are notified.

Note 49:Events Occurring After The Balance Date:

Effective April 01, 2023, The Gateway Hotel, Gondia has been rebranded as Ginger Gondia. This transition will benefit the
hotel in terms of market positioning and profitability. Further, there are no adjusting events occurring after the balance sheet
date for the financial year 2022-23.

Note 50:The disclosure required to be made in terms of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirement)
2015 is not applicable to the company.

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP DR. ANANT NARAIN SINGH ROHIT KHOSLA
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director

Firm Registration No. 0039905/5200018 DIN: 00114728 DIN: 07163135

R. SURIYANARAYANAN HARISH KUMAR VANIKA MAHAJAN
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 201402 ICAI M. No - 534449 ICSI M.No - ACS34515
Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023 Date : April 19, 2023
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of INDITRAVEL LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Inditravel Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance
sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement Of
Changes In Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules , 2015, as amended , (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India,

(@) Inthe case of the Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023;

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), of the loss for the year ended
on that date;

(c) Inthe case of the Statement of Changes in Equity, of the changes in Equity for the year ended on that date; and

(d) Inthe case of the Statement of Cash flows, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards of Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
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Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

2.  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.
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h)  Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

a. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial
statements — Refer Note 19 to the financial statements;

b. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

c. there are no amounts that are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

d. (i) themanagement hasrepresented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) the management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances;
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under clause d
sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e. the Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect
from April 01, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114260W

(HEMA S IYER)

Partner

Membership No.186953

Mumbai, April 19, 2023 UDIN: 23186953BGZBAW6510
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(Referred to in Paragraph 1 Under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our Report to
the Members of Indi Travel Limited of Even Date)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(@) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a programme of physical verification of its Property Plant and Equipment, by which all Property,
Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the
year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, we report that the title deeds, comprising all the immoveable properties (other than property where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the company as at the Balance sheet date.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year, accordingly, sub clause (d) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder; accordingly, sub clause
(e) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

The Company is a service company accordingly; it does not have any inventories. Thus, sub clause (a) & (b) of clause (ii)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Thus,
clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities as applicable. The company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees
or securities to the parties covered under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of the Act and the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provision of section 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provision of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the said
order is not applicable.

The company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under subsection 1 of section
148 of the Act. Accordingly, clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

(vii). a.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
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Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities applicable undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable,
however there has been a slight delay in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
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income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company,
there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:

Name of the Statue Nature of Dues Amount Period to which the Forur.n where dispute is
amount relates pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax X27,55,410/- Assessment Year Commissioner of Income
2011-12 Tax (Appeals), Mumbai

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, clause (viii) of paragraph
3 of the said order is not applicable.

(ix) (a)

(x)

(xi)

(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company,
the company has not taken any loans or other borrowings. Accordingly sub clause (a) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3
of the said order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly sub clause (b) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the said order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company,
the company has not obtained any term loan. Accordingly sub clause (c) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the said
order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company,
no funds have been raised on short term basis. Accordingly sub clause (d) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the said
order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company,
the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly sub clause (e) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the said order
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company
the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures,
or associate companies. Accordingly sub clause (f) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, subclause (a) of clause
(x) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally convertible) during the
year. Accordingly, subclause (b) of clause (x) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

69



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Annexure — A To The Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

(c) Tothe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no whistle blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company.
Accordingly, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us the company has an internal audit system that is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal audit reports of the company for the period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors during
the year. Hence the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(xvi) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities hence sub
clause (b) of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, subclause (c) of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, there are 6 core investment companies (CIC’s) in the Group (basis definition of “Companies in the Group”
as per Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 as at the end of the reporting period.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the company has
incurred cash losses of X31,59,329/- during the year but has not incurred cash losses during the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, accordingly, clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the
said order is not applicable.

70 Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23



Inditravel Limited

Annexure — A To The Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to spend
any amount under section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year. accordingly, sub clause (a) & (b) of
clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the said order are not applicable.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable.

For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114260W

(HEMA S IYER)

Partner

Membership No.186953

Mumbai, April 19, 2023 UDIN: 23186953BGZBAW6510

71



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Annexure ‘B’ To The Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1(f) Under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements Section of our Report
to the Members of Indi Travel Limited of Even Date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indi Travel Limited (“the Company”) as of March
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114260W

(HEMA S IYER)

Partner

Membership No.186953

Mumbai, April 19, 2023 UDIN: 23186953BGZBAW6510
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4
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 1,15,30,131 1,18,26,273
Capital work-in-progress 3
Investment Property {refer note 32} 23,56,313 23,98,272
Intangible assets 4 - 7,128
1,38,86,444 1,42,31,673
Financial Assets
Investments 5 6,99,76,890 6,99,76,890
Income Tax Assets 1,60,26,977 2,12,01,421
Other Financial Assets
Security Deposit 26,000 26,000
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 32,13,408 32,13,408
Total Non-Current Assets 10,31,29,719 10,86,49,392
Current Assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables - -
Cash and cash equivalents 7 32,39,525 66,70,964
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8 5,97,28,496 3,87,49,296
Loans 9 - 1,86,00,000
Other current assets 10 6,48,805 6,49,942
Total Current Assets 6,36,16,826 6,46,70,202
Total 16,67,46,545 17,33,19,594
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 11 (A) 72,00,120 72,00,120
Other equity 11 (B) 15,54,97,295 15,89,47,011
Total Equity 16,26,97,415 16,61,47,131
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Provisions 12A 27,85,352 23,51,660
Total Non-Current Liabilities 27,85,352 23,51,660
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13
A) Total dues of Micro and Small enterprises
B) Total dues other than Micro and small enterprises 8,99,309 26,38,109
Other current liabilities 14 2,91,661 21,23,232
Provisions 12B 72,808 59,462
Total Current Liabilities 12,63,778 48,20,803
Total 16,67,46,545 17,33,19,594
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements from 1 to 37
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
HEMA S. IYER FAISAL MOMEN NABAKUMAR SHOME HIMANSHU JAIN
Partner Director Director Director
Membership No. 186953 DIN : 00064878 DIN : 03605594 DIN : 06890639

Firm Registration No. 114260W

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 19, 2023
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3
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations - -
Other income 15 68,70,630 2,22,89,285
Total Income 68,70,630 2,22,89,285
Expenses
Changes in Inventories 24
Employee benefit expense 16 61,28,394 49,46,576
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6,588 6,588
Other operating and general expenses 17 20,78,807 1,06,91,643
Total Expenses 82,13,789 1,56,44,807
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (13,43,159) 66,44,478
Tax Expense
Current tax - 4,76,980
MAT Credit utilised - (4,57,311)
Deferred tax - 12,29,304
Short / (Excess) provision for the earlier years - (11,13,727)
Total - 1,35,246
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax for the Year from Continuing Operations (13,43,159) 65,09,232
Profit/ (Loss) from Discontinuing Operations 18 (20,39,268) (19,51,484)
Tax Credit of Discontinuing Operations
Profit/ (Loss) Including Discontinuing Operations (After Tax) (33,82,427) 45,57,748
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that will not be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (67,289) 56,323
(67,289) 56,323
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (34,49,716) 46,14,071
Profit/ (Loss) for the Period Attributable to:
Owners of the Company (33,82,427) 45,57,748
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period Attributable to
Owners of the Company (34,49,716) 46,14,071
Earnings per share:
Basic - () (4.70) 6.33
Diluted - (X) (4.70) 6.33
Face value per ordinary share - (X) 10 10
Summiary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements from 1 to 37

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO.

Chartered Accountants

HEMA S. IYER FAISAL MOMEN NABAKUMAR SHOME HIMANSHU JAIN
Partner Director Director Director
Membership No. 186953 DIN : 00064878 DIN : 03605594 DIN : 06890639

Firm Registration No. 114260W

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 19,2023
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3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (33,82,427) 46,92,994
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortisation 2,23,098 2,23,098
Loss on sale of assets 30,715 -
Interest Income (53,86,801) (20,60,066)
Asset written off 83,666 -
Provision for Employee Benefits 3,79,749 2,17,756
(46,69,573) (16,19,212)
Cash Operating Profit before working capital changes (80,52,000) 30,73,782
Adjustments for (Increase)/ Decrease in Operating Assets:
Short-term loans and advances 1,136 (38,072)
Other Non-Current Assets (4,40,384) (29,88,488)
(4,39,248) (30,26,560)
Adjustments for Increase/ (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Trade Payables (17,38,800) 11,18,105
Short term provisions - (16,68,775)
Long term provisions - 1,47,255
Other Current Liabilities (18,31,571) 27,19,624
(35,70,371) 23,16,209
Cash Generated from Operating Activities (1,20,61,619) 23,63,431
Direct Taxes (Paid)/ Refunded 56,14,828 2,20,46,881
Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities (A) (64,46,791) 2,44,10,312
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 7,750 -
Sale of current Investments - -
Interest Received 53,86,801 20,60,066
Fixed deposits matured 31,23,141 2,00,00,000
Fixed Deposit placed (2,41,02,340) (2,44,93,104)
Net Cash Generated/(Used) In Investing Activities (B) (1,55,84,648) (24,33,038)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
ICD Placed by Company - (1,86,00,000)
ICD matured 1,86,00,000 -
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) In Financing Activities (C) 1,86,00,000 (1,86,00,000)
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3

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) (34,31,439) 33,77,274
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening (Refer Note No.8) 66,70,964 32,93,690
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing (Refer Note No.8) 32,39,525 66,70,964
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements from 1 to 37

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO.

Chartered Accountants

HEMA S. IYER FAISAL MOMEN NABAKUMAR SHOME HIMANSHU JAIN

Partner Director Director Director

Membership No. 186953 DIN : 00064878 DIN : 03605594 DIN : 06890639

Firm Registration No. 114260W

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 19,2023

77



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate Information

Inditravel Ltd is incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Mandlik House, Mandlik Road, Colaba,
Mumbai 400 001. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Travel related services.

Note 2: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

78

Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The accounting policies as set out below
have been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from April 01, 2022

Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

— Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: The Company has estimated useful life of each class
of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history
of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and Intangible assets at the Balance Sheet date. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in
future periods.

— Impairment Testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves
use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins
used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.
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(f)

— Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary
differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and
in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the
related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax
assets and there the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential
outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the
tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

— Fair Value Measurement of Derivative and Other Financial Instruments: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant judgements to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date.

— Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being always subject
to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a payment
will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when evaluating,
among other factors, the probability of unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount
of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions made for the changes in facts
and circumstances.

— Defined Benefit Plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

- All assets and liabilities are classified into current and noncurrent generally on the criteria of realisation /settlement within
twelve months period from the Balance sheet date.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue and cost are recognized and accounted on accrual basis. Sale of goods is net of Indirect tax, returns and
trade discounts. Service Income is net of Indirect tax and is recognized when earned in accordance with the terms of
the contract.

Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.
Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes all expenditure incidental to acquisition
and installation.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater that it’s estimated recoverable amount.
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(8)

(h)

80

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the Balance Sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Estimated Useful

Class of Assets Life
Buildings 60 years
Plant & Machinery / Office Equipment 15 years
Furniture & Fixtures 15 years
Electrical fittings 10 years
Computers 6 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress represents property, plant and equipment’s are not yet ready for their intended use and are
carried at cost determined as aforesaid.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software and Licenses. Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition
cost including any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. The estimated useful life used
for amortizing intangible assets are as under:

Nature of Assets Useful life adopted

Software and Licenses 6 years

Impairment of Assets:

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(i)

(k)

(i) Foreign Currency Translation :
Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are
carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rates that existed when the values were the fair value measured.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. Exchange
differences on restatement of other monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable and expected to be completed within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current Tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures where
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the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer
a reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation and
the unwinding of the discount is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due to occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company, or where
any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of
the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable
outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

Employee Benefits

(i) Provident Fund: The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a
specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary), which is recognized
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. The contributions as specified under the law are
paid to the provident fund set up as irrevocable trust by the Company or to respective Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. The Company is generally liable for annual contributions and any shortfall in the fund assets based
on the minimum rates of return prescribed by the Central Government and recognizes such contributions and
shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year in which the corresponding services are rendered by the Company.

(ii) Gratuity Fund

The Company follows Unfunded Gratuity scheme and carry a provision based on actuarial valuation in the books
of accounts. The Gratuity plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement, death or
termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and tenure of
employment. The Company accounts for the net present value of its obligations for gratuity benefits, based on an
independent actuarial valuation, determined on the basis of the projected unit credit method, carried out as at
the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the other comprehensive income
and reflected in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.
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(iii) Compensated Absences

The Company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, carried out at the Balance
Sheet date.

(iv) Other Employee Benefits

Other benefits, comprising of discretionary Long Service Awards and Leave Travel Allowances, are determined on
an undiscounted basis and recognized based on the entitlement thereof.

Cash and Cash Equivalent (For the Purpose of Cash Flow Statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for
the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year including potential equity
shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after
tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Financial Instruments:

Financial Assets:
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement:

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Debt Instruments at Amortized Cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that
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are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to loans and advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classified as at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried at cost less impairment,
if any. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Investment in equity — others is carried at lower of cost or fair value

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

— The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

— The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do
not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet date, right from its initial recognition.
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Financial Liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured
at fair value

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or Losses on Liabilities Held for Trading are Recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Note 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment (Owned, Unless Otherwise Stated)

Improvements
to Leasehold
buildings

Freehold Land

Plant and
Equipment

Furniture and
Fixtures

Office Equipment

Total

Cost

At April 01, 2021
Additions
Adjustments
Disposals/ Transfer
At March 31, 2022
Additions
Adjustments
Disposals/ Transfer
At March 31, 2023
Depreciation

At April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Adjustments
Disposals

At March 31, 2022
Charge for the year
Adjustments
Disposals

At March 31, 2023
Net Block

At March 31, 2022
At March 31, 2023

1,06,73,111

16,24,088

13,98,295

59,244

5,917

1,37,60,655

1,06,73,111

16,24,088

13,98,295

13,04,949

59,244

5,917

1,37,60,655

13,04,949

1,06,73,111

16,24,088

93,346

59,244

5,917

1,24,55,706

4,92,267
1,69,856

12,30,252
6,162

28,168
4,695

2,556
426

17,53,243
1,81,139

6,62,123
1,69,857

12,36,414
6,162

11,89,947

32,863
4,695

2,982
426

19,34,382
1,81,140

11,89,947

8,31,980

52,629

37,558

3,408

9,25,575

1,00,10,988

16,24,088

1,61,881

26,381

2,935

1,18,26,273

98,41,131

16,24,088

40,717

21,686

2,509

1,15,30,131

Note 4 : Intangible Assets (Acquired)

Software

Cost

At April 01, 2021
Additions
Adjustments
Disposals

At March 31, 2022
Additions
Adjustments
Disposals

At March 31, 2023
Amortisation

At April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Adjustments
Disposals

At March 31, 2022
Charge for the year
Adjustments
Disposals

At March 31, 2023
Net Block

At March 31, 2022
At March 31, 2023

50,955

50,955

50,955

43,827

43,827

43,827

43,827

7,128
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Note 5 : Investments

3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non Current Investments Holdings . Holdings .
As at As at
Fully Paid Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investments in Other companies (At Cost)
Taj Trade & Transport Compnay Ltd shares of 10/- each fully 5,50,766 2,83,11,373 5,50,766 2,83,11,373
paid-up
Taj Safaris Ltd of 10/- each, fully paid-up * 1,11,70,380 11,17,03,800 1,11,70,380 11,17,03,800
1,17,21,146 14,00,15,173 1,17,21,146 14,00,15,173
Total Non-current Investments - Gross 14,00,15,173 14,00,15,173
Less : Provision for Diminution in value of Investments ** (7,00,38,283) (7,00,38,283)
Total Non-current Investments - Net 6,99,76,890 6,99,76,890
Footnotes :
1) Aggregate of Unquoted Investments - Gross 14,00,15,173 14,00,15,173
2) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (7,00,38,283) (7,00,38,283)
3) *These companies are the fellow subsidiaries of Inditravel limited
4) ** Provision for diminution in value has been made on the basis of fair valuation of the shares of the company
Note 6 : Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for Employee Benefits 4,54,362 4,54,362
MAT Credit Entitlement 17,07,311 17,07,311
Others 19,53,861 19,53,861
Total (A) 41,15,534 41,15,534
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets (9,02,126) (9,02,126)
Total (B) (9,02,126) (9,02,126)
Net Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities) (A+B) 32,13,408 32,13,408
Note 7 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with bank in current account 32,39,525 66,70,964
32,39,525 66,70,964
Note 8 : Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Balances with banks
Call and Short-term deposit accounts more than 3 months and less than 12 months # 5,97,28,496 3,87,49,296
5,97,28,496 3,87,49,296

#Fixed deposit of 1,00,000/- previous year X1,00,000 has been placed as deposit with VAT Authorities
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Note 9 : Loans

3

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Current

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Related parties

Considered Good

Considered Doubtful

Less:
Provision for Doubtful Advances

- 1,86,00,000
72,32,200 72,32,200
72,32,200 2,58,32,200

(72,32,200) (72,32,200)

- 1,86,00,000

Note 10 : Other Current Assets

3

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Receivables from Related Parties
Interest Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Total

1,72,063 -
4,51,039 6,32,919

25,703 17,023
6,48,805 6,49,942

Note no. 11 (A) Share Capital Consist of the Following

3

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Share Capital
1 Authorised Share capital
a) Equity Shares
750000 (Previous Year 750000) Equity Shares of X10 each

b) Preference Shares

12000000 (Previous Year 12000000) 6 % Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of
%10 each

¢) Unclassified Shares
17250000 (Previous Year 17250000) Unclassified Shares of 10 each

2 Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
a) Equity Shares
720012 (Previous Year 720012) Equity Shares of 10 each fully paid

75,00,000 75,00,000
12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000
17,25,00,000 17,25,00,000
30,00,00,000 30,00,00,000

72,00,120 72,00,120

72,00,120 72,00,120
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Promoter shareholding

Inditravel Limited

3

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Name of the promoter

The Indian Hotels Company Ltd

Number of shares held 3,39,009 3,39,009
Percentage of total shares 47.09% 47.09%
Percentage change during the year NIL NIL
a. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of the Company
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
Equity share of X10/-each fully paid
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 3,39,009 47.09% 3,39,009 47.09%
Taj Trade and Transport company Limited 72,001 10.00% 72,001 10.00%
Piem Hotels Limited 1,89,002 26.25% 1,89,002 26.25%
Taj Enterprises Limited 72,000 10.00% 72,000 10.00%
b. Reconcilation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period
3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of the Company
No. of Shares b No. of Shares b
Opening Balance 7,20,012 72,00,120 7,20,012 72,00,120
Add : Issued during the year - - - -
Less : Redeeemed / Bought Back - - - -
Closing Balance 7,20,012 72,00,120 7,20,012 72,00,120

c. Shares in the Company held by its ultimate holding company including shares held by subsidiaries or associates of
ultimate holding company

4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name of the Company
No. of Shares holding No. of Shares holding
Shares held by Ultimate Holding Company
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 3,39,009 47.09% 3,39,009 47.09%
3,39,009 47.09% 3,39,009 47.09%
Shares held by Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding
Company
Piem Hotels Limited 1,89,002 26.25% 1,89,002 26.25%
Taj Trade and Transport Company Limited 72,001 10.00% 72,001 10.00%
Taj Enterprises Limited 72,000 10.00% 72,000 10.00%
Northen Indian Hotels Limited 24,000 3.33% 24,000 3.33%
3,57,003 49.58% 3,57,003 49.58%

d. The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of X10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share held. The Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General meeting, exepct in case of interim dividend. In event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remianing assets of the Company after distribution of all perferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
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Note: 11 (B) Statement of Changes in Equity

A.
(1)

()
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Equity Share Capital
Current Reporting Period
3
Changes in Equity Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period Share Capital dueto  beginning of the current share capital during the current reporting
prior period errors reporting period the current year period
72,00,120 - - - 72,00,120
Previous Reporting Period
3
Changesin Equity  Restated balance at the Changes in equity Balance at the end of
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting period Share Capital due to  beginning of the current share capital during the current reporting
prior period errors reporting period the current year period
72,00,120 - - - 72,00,120
3
Other Equity
Share Equity Mon
Application Component Reserves and Surplus R 9 e;l
Particulars Money of Other Againsetcsell-l‘;ere Total
i i i Securiti
Pending  Financial Capital r:cel::iu: General o ecerves Retained Warrants
Allotment Instruments Reserve Reserve Earnings
Account
Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 15,50,000 - 5,19,18,242 12,00,00,000 (1,91,35,302) 15,43,32,940
Profit for the year ended 45,57,748 45,57,748
March 31, 2022
Other Comprehensive
Income for the year ended
March 31, 2022, net of
taxes, (excluding actuarial
gain/ losses, given below)
Remeasurements of post 56,323 56,323
employment benefit
obligation, net of tax
Total Comprehensive - - - - 46,14,071 46,14,071
Income for the year ended
March 31, 2022
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - - 15,50,000 - 5,19,18,242 12,00,00,000 (1,45,21,231) 15,89,47,011
Profit for the year ended (33,82,427) (33,82,427)
March 31, 2023
Other Comprehensive -
Income for the year ended
March 31, 2023, net of
taxes, (excluding actuarial
gain/ losses, given below)
Remeasurements of post (67,289) (67,289)
employment benefit
obligation, net of tax
Total Comprehensive - - - - (34,49,716) - (34,49,716)
Income for the year ended
March 31,2023
Balance as at March 31,2023 - 15,50,000 - 5,19,18,242 12,00,00,000 (1,79,70,947) 15,54,97,295
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Note 12: Provision

3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Long Term Provisions
Employee Benefit Obligation (Non-current)
Leave Encashment 6,13,406 5,21,629
Gratuity 21,71,946 18,30,031
27,85,352 23,51,660
B) Short Term Provisions
Employee Benefit Obligation (Current)
Leave Encashment 62,273 51,809
Gratuity 10,535 7,653
72,808 59,462
Note 13: Trade Payables
3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Micro and Small Enterprises ( Refer Note No 25 ) - -
Vendor Payables 1,95,103 11,47,590
Accrued expenses and others 7,04,206 14,90,519
8,99,309 26,38,109
Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023
3
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unﬁ:le;ui Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3 years More t:::: Total
(i) Trade Payables - MSME -
(i) Trade Payables - Others 1,95,103 - 1,95,103
(iii) Accrued Expenses 7,04,206 7,04,206
(iv) Disputed dues - MSME -
(v) Disputed dues - Others -
Total - 8,99,309 - - - 8,99,309
As at March 31, 2022
4
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Un’\l:,lle[t)iui Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3 years More ﬂ;::r: Total
(i) Trade Payables - MSME -
(i) Trade Payables - Others 11,47,590 11,47,590
(iii) Accrued Expenses 1,90,519 13,00,000 14,90,519
(iv) Disputed dues - MSME -
(v) Disputed dues - Others -
Total - 13,38,109 - - 26,38,109
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Note 14 : Other Current Liabilities

4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Income received in advance - 14,71,693
Statutory dues 1,46,860 2,35,863
Related Parties 1,44,801 4,15,676
2,91,661 21,23,232
Note 15 : Other Income
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Income From Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Interest Income on
Deposits with banks (Tax deducted at source X2,10,644/- 21,19,920 20,43,759
(Previous Year X2,03,092/-)
Deposits with Related Parties 14,71,693 16,307
35,91,613 20,60,066
Interest on Income Tax Refunds 17,95,188 1,03,87,250
Total 53,86,801 1,24,47,316
Miscellaneous Income 14,83,829 98,41,969
Total 68,70,630 2,22,89,285
Note 16 : Employee Benefit Expense and Payment to Contractors
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc. 26,04,122 24,30,629
Company's Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 5,68,071 3,94,822
Reimbursement of Expenses on Personnel Deputed to the Company 26,37,781 17,99,197
Staff Welfare Expenses 3,18,420 3,21,928
Total 61,28,394 49,46,576
Note 17 : Other Operating and General Expenses
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Expenses Consist of the Following :
Repairs to Buildings 59,655 1,20,347
Rent Rates and Taxes 39,607 66,172
Insurance 1,15,189 76,991
Printing and Stationery - 6,114
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 1,91,902 1,70,782
Legal and Professional Charges 9,53,462 23,42,399
Payment made to Statutory Auditors (Refer Footnote (i)) 42,500 42,200
Bad Debts - 78,07,181
Miscellaneous Expenses 5,62,111 59,457
Loss on Sale of Assets 30,715 -
Assets Written Off 83,666 -
Total 20,78,807 1,06,91,643
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() Payment made to Statutory Auditors:
2

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditors 40,000 40,000
For out-of pocket expenses 2,500 2,200
42,500 42,200
Note 18 : Profit/ (Loss) on Discontinued Operations
3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income from Discontinued Operation
Profit on Relinquishment of Land - -
Rental Income - -
Miscellaneous Income - -
Expenses from discontinued operation
Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc. 14,72,076 13,19,558
Rates and taxes - -
Repairs & Maintenance 2,47,712 56,016
Legal & Professional Expenses 88,000 3,51,250
Electricity 14,970 8,150
Depreciation 2,16,510 2,16,510
20,39,268 19,51,484
Total (20,39,268) (19,51,484)
19. Contingent Liabilities:
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the Extent Not Provided For)
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
(i) Income tax demand under appeal 27,55,410 37,97,405
27,55,410 37,97,405

Employee Related Matters

Some casual workers had claimed minimum wages/permanency in the company. The amount is unascertainable and the
matter is pending in court.

The management believes that the outcome of the proceedings will not have an adverse effect on the company’s financial
position and results of the operation.
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20. Deferred Tax:

Following are the major components of deferred tax asset/(liability):

3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Assets:
Gratuity & Leave Encashment 4,54,362 4,54,362
Unabsorbed Depreciation 22,21,457 22,21,457
Others (2,67,596) (2,67,596)
MAT credit entitlement 17,07,311 17,07,311
Total of Deferred Tax Assets (A) 41,15,534 41,15,534
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Depreciation on Fixed assets (9,02,126) (9,02,126)
Total of Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) (9,02,126) (9,02,126)
Deferred Tax Net - Assets / (Liabilities) - (A-B) 32,13,408 32,13,408
21. Income Tax expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss A/c:
Income Tax Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss A/C:
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Tax
In respect of the current year - 4,76,980
In respect of earlier years - (11,13,727)
- (6,36,747)
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year - 12,29,304
MAT Credit - (4,57,311)
- 7,71,993
Total Tax Expense Recognised in the Current Year
- 1,35,246
Reconciliation of Tax Expense with the Effective Tax
4
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/loss before tax (a) (33,82,427) 46,92,994
Income tax rate as applicable (b) 26.00% 26.00%
Calculated Taxes based on above, without any adjustments for (8,79,431) 12,20,178
deduction [(a) x (b)] - ¢
Permanent tax differences due to:
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (like dividend income) - -
Permanent disallowances 14,439 (7,43,198)
Others (Difference due to change in rate of tax) - -
Deferred tax liability no longer required - -
Deferred tax assets not created due to no probable certainty 8,64,992 -
Deferred tax assets reversed due to no probable certainty - -
Deferred tax assets no longer required - 7,71,993
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3

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

d 8,79,431 28,795
Tax for current year (c+d) - 12,48,973
Prior year taxes as shown above - (11,13,727)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - 1,35,246

22. Particulars of Earnings Per Share:

3

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Net profit /(loss) for the year as per the statement of profit and loss (33,82,427) 45,57,748
Profit / (loss) to equity share holders (33,82,427) 45,57,748
Weighted average number of equity shares 7,20,012 7,20,012
Nominal value per share 10 10
Earnings per share — Basic & Diluted (4.70) 6.33

23. Closure of Units:

a)

The Company discontinued its printing, electroplating and other operations and Car Hire division with effect from

March 2001 and December 2014 respectively. As on the dates of closure, the Company carried the following assets and

liabilities of discontinued operations:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Divisions
Others 1,46,53,512 - 1,46,95,471 -
Car Hire 1,00,000 - 1,00,000 -
Total 1,47,53,512 - 1,47,95,471 -

The Market values of these Assets are higher than the carrying value.

The Company has incurred Loss of X20,39,268/-(Previous Year Profit of 19,51,484/-) from discontinued business, which

is included in the Profit and Loss Account, break-up of which is given as under:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Particulars

Revenue Expenses Profit/(Loss) Revenue Expenses Profit/(Loss)
Divisions
Others - 5,67,192 (5,67,192) - 6,31,926 (6,31,926)
Car Hire 14,72,076 (14,72,076) 13,19,558 (13,19,558)
Total - 20,39,268 (20,39,268) - 19,51,484 (19,51,484)
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24. In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized in the
ordinary course of the Company’s business.

25. Amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

(i) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act,2006” has been determined to the extend such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

(ii) The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:

3

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(a) Principal amount due thereon remaining Unpaid to any supplier at end of each - -
accounting year.

(b) Interest due there on remaining unpaid to supplier as at end of each accounting year. - -

(c) The amount of interest paid in terms ofSection 16 of Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under this Act

(e

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting - -
year.

(f) The amount further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually - - paid to the small

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section

23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

26. Employee Benefits
Applicable Disclosures as per IND AS19:

The Company has calculated the various benefits to employees as under:
(A) Defined Contribution Plans

The company has recognized the following expenses as defined contribution plan under the head “Company’s
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds (net of recoveries)

g
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provident fund 1,73,962 1,70,393
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(B)

(€

Defined Benefit Plans
The company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows:
(i) Post retirement gratuity — Non Funded

Defined benefit plans(Gratuity) — as per actuarial valuation on March 31, 2023: -

Principal Actuarial Assumptions as at March 31, 2023.

Inditravel Limited

3
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet and Movement in net Liability
Present Value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 21,82,481 18,37,684
Net (Assets)/ Liability 21,82,481 18,37,684
(ii) Expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service Cost 90,631 1,29,318
Interest Cost 1,24,702 1,59,646
Total 2,15,333 2,88,964
(iii) Expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurements Due to:
Changes in financial assumptions (1,70,987) 9,427
Experience adjustments 2,38,276 (65,750)
Adjustment to recognize the effect of asset ceiling - -
Total 67,289 (56,323)
(iv) Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation:
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 18,37,684 30,07,949
Current Service Cost 90,631 1,29,318
Interest Cost 1,24,702 1,59,646
Remeasurements due to actuarial loss/(gain) arising from
Changes in financial assumption - -
Experience adjustments 67,289 (56,323)
Benefits Paid - (14,02,906)
Liabilities assumed/ Settled* 62,175 -
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 21,82,481 18,37,684
* On account of Business combination or intergroup transfer
(v) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Contribution by Employer - 14,02,906
Benefit Paid - (14,02,906)
Closing of Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
(vi) Actuarial Assumptions :
Discount rate(p.a.) in % 7.45% 6.80%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) in % 7% 7%

Pension Escalation Rate (p.a.) in % -
Annual Increase in Healthcare cost (p.a.) -
Mortality Table (LIC) -
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(vii) Sensitivity Analysis

March 31, 2023

Discount Rate (%)

Salary Escalation

Rate (%)
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -5.47% 5.95%
Impact of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 5.95% -5.52%

(viii) Data Summary:

No. of Employees 6 5
Total Monthly Salary 1,10,266 82,739
Total Average Past Service 19.08 20.79
Value of liability 21,82,481 1,837,684

(ix) Any other additional disclosure given in the report

Mortality Table * - Table1

Mortality in Service - Table 1

Mortality in Retirement - NA
*Table 1- Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.

27. Related Party Disclosure AS — 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

A. Holding Company
B. Subsidiaries of Holding Company
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KTC Hotels Limited

United Hotels Limited

Roots Corporation Limited

Piem Hotels Limited

Taj Trade and Transport Company Limited
Northern India Hotels Limited

Taj Enterprises Limited

Benares Hotels Limited

Luthria & Lalchandani Hotel & Properties Pvt. Ltd.
Skydeck Properties and Developers Private Limited
Sheena Investments Private Limited

ELEL Hotels & Investments Limited

Ideal Ice Limited

Genness Hospitality Private Limited

Qurio Hospitality Private Limited

Taj International Hotels (H.K) Limited

IHOCO BV

St. James Court Hotels Limited

Taj International Hotels Limited - London
IHMS LLC

IHMS LLC - San Francisco

IHMS LLC - USA

PIEM International Hotels (H.K) Limited
BAHC5

United Overseas Holdings Inc.

IHMS Hotels (SA) (Proprietary) Limited
Goodhope Palace Hotels (Proprietary) Limited
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C. Joint Ventures of Holding Company Taj Kerala Hotels & Resorts Limited
Taj SATS Air Catering Limited
Taj Safaris Limited
Kaveri Retreat & Resorts Limited
Taj Karnataka Hotels & Resorts Ltd
Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Ltd
TAL Hotels & Resorts Ltd
D. Details of Transactions with Related Parties are as Follows:
3
Holding Company Subsidiaries of Holding Company
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Reimbursement of Deputed Staff Salary 12,10,885 4,18,096 11,57,114 13,81,101
Sale or services received - - 1,18,784 7,00,000
Due on Current Account (1,44,801) (76,547) 343 (3,39,129)
3
Associates of Holding Company
2022-23 2021-22
Inter Corporate Deposits given - 1,86,00,000
Inter Corporate Deposit Repaid 1,86,00,000 -
Interest Received on Inter Corporate Deposits 14,71,693 16,307
Interest Income received in advance - 14,71,693
Due on Current Account 1,71,720 -
E. Statement of material transactions:
3
Company name March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Holding Company
The Indian Hotels Company Limited
Reimbursement of Deputed Staff Salary 12,10,885 4,18,096
Current Account dues (1,44,801) (76,547)
Subsidiaries of Holding Company
Taj Trade & Transport Company Limited
Professional Services Income 1,18,784 7,00,000
Reimbursement of Deputed Staff Salary & Wages 11,57,114 13,81,101
Current Account Dues 343 -3,39,129
Associates of Holding Company
Taida Trading & Industries Limited
Inter Corporate Deposits Given - 1,86,00,000
Inter Corporate Deposit Repaid 1,86,00,000 -
Interest Income on Inter Corporate Deposits 14,71,693 16,307
Interest Income received in advance - 14,71,693
Current Account Dues 1,71,720 -
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28. Satisfaction of Charges with ROC:

There is no secured loan in the books, however for few old loans (as mentioned below) charges are yet to be satisfied
with Registrar of Companies. Satisfaction of charges are pending as details of the loan closure documents are yet to be
received from the bank.

Details of Charges

Bank Charge Amount Date of Creation
Canara Bank 10,00,000.00 February 27, 1990
Canara Bank 82,50,000.00 April 29, 1985
Canara Bank 6,50,000.00 March 01, 1983
Canara Bank 50,51,000.00 August 02, 1985
Canara Bank 4,50,000.00 October 26, 1982

29. The details of provisions as required by the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 37 “Provisions, contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” are as under:

i

Nature of Provision Leave Encashment &

Gratuity
Opening Balance 24,11,122
Additional provisioning 4,47,038
Amounts used during the year -
Amounts reversed during the year -
Closing Balance 28,58,160

30. The Company3s only business being travel related services, disclosure of segment—wise information is not applicable
under Indian Accounting Standard — Segmental Information (AS — 108 notified by the Company’s (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006. There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India.

31. The Companyis carrying an investment of 1,11,70,380 Shares of Taj Safari Limited Face value 10 each, at %4,16,65,517/-
(P.Y. %4,16,65,517/-). During the year no (P.Y. XNIL) additional provision for diminution in value of investments has been
made in the existing provision based on fair valuation of the shares of the company.

32. The Company hasinvestment in property amounting to X23,56,313/- (PY X23,98,272/-) where the right to title is executed

through registered power of attorney.

33. Additional Information:

3

Sr

No. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i)  Value of imports on CIF basis Nil Nil
(i) Expenditure in Foreign Currency - Nil Nil
(iii) Earnings in foreign exchange Nil Nil

34. Sale of Services:

g
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Car Hire and Other services NIL NIL
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35

36
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

. As at March 31, 2023, the company’s current liabilities do not exceed its current assets. The Company also has enough
Cash and Bank balances for the next 12 months to prevent disruption of the operating cash flows and enable the
Company to meet its debts and obligations as they fall due.

Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis.

. Additional Regulatory Information:

Details of Benami Property held

The Company neither holds any benami property nor has it entered in to any benami transactions as prohibited under
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the
company for holding any benami property under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended
from time to time) and the rules made thereunder.

Transactions with struck off companies

The Company has not entered in to any transactions and no balances are outstanding with companies struck off under
section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Undisclosed income

Undisclosed income or property has not been the subject matter of tax assessment and no adjustments are made thereto
in any of the previous financial years. Hence, the Company is not required to account for any previously unrecorded
income or unrecorded assets that has been surrendered or disclosed during tax assessments of previous financial years.

Wilful defaulter

The Company has not availed, utilised, or got sanctioned any limit funded or unfunded from any bank or financial institutions.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction thereof yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period in the name of the Company.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currencies or virtual currencies during the financial year.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company have complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds

a. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(i) Ratio Analysis:

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 Numerator Denominator
(a) Current Ratio, 50.3 13.4 Current Assets Current Liabilities excluding
current maturities of long term
borrowings
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, NA NA NA NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, NA NA NA NA
(d) Return on Equity Ratio, -2.06% 2.78%  Profit/(Loss) after  Average Total Equity
tax
(e) Inventory turnover ratio, NA NA NA NA
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, NA NA NA NA
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio, NA NA NA NA
(h) Net capital turnover ratio, NA NA NA NA
(i) Net profit ratio, -49.23% 20.45% Profit/(Loss) after  Total Income
tax
(j) Return on Capital employed, -2.06% 2.86% EBIT Avg Equity + Avg Debt + Avg
Leases
(k) Return on investment. NA NA NA NA

1. Change in current ratio is on account of reduced trade payables and income received in advance.

2. Reduced return on equity, net profit and return on capital employed ratio is as a result of loss incurred during the year
compared to profits during the preceding year.

37. Previous year figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to match with current year’s classification.
Signature to Notes Forming Part of Financial Statements 1 to 37

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For CHANDRASHEKAR IYER & CO.

Chartered Accountants

HEMA S. IYER FAISAL MOMEN NABAKUMAR SHOME HIMANSHU JAIN
Partner Director Director Director
Membership No. 186953 DIN : 00064878 DIN : 03605594 DIN : 06890639

Firm Registration No. 114260W

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 19, 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of IDEAL ICE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ideal Ice Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance
sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2023, and Loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Managementand and Board of Directors for Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by Management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The audited financial statements of the Company for the corresponding year ended March 31, 2022 prepared in accordance
with Ind AS included in these financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditors whose audit report dated
April 22, 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023; and

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 39
to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
39 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

105



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has not paid/declared any dividend during the financial year. Accordingly, reporting on compliance
with the provisions of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year, hence reporting under this clause is not applicable

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/5200018

ATHIYAN R

Partner

Membership No. 237588
UDIN : 23237588BGZRYG2727

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: April 21, 2023
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Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to
the members of Ideal Ice Limited (“the Company”) on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2023

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(a)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all
Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, physically verification is not due in the current year and hence no verification
has been carried out during the year

The Company does not have any immovable property, hence sub-clause (c) is not applicable

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible
assets during the year and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods in transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.
In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. The discrepancies
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records are not 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventory.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
been sanctioned loan in excess of five crore rupees from banks or financial institution on the basis of security of
current assets and hence the question of filing quarterly returns or statements by the company with such banks or
financial institutions does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has made
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as follows:

(A) Other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues

Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year X1
- Other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date X1
- Other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the investments made
are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
given any loans or advances in the nature of loans. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(d),(e) and (f) are not applicable

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not given
any loan, guarantees and security, nor made investment during the year covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act.
Therefore paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(v) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of the Act and the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material statutory dues as applicable with
the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases of Profession tax

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues were in arrears, as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, no amount
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a)

(b)

(f)

(x) (a)

(b)
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Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a declared willful defaulter by
any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained;

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there
were no funds raised on short term basis by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence the question of the Company taking
loan from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the
Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence the question of the Company raising
any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies does
not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence the question of whether money
raised were applied for the purposes for which those are raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made preferential allotment or private
placement of shares during the year and requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013
have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised,
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(xi) (a) Tothe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no whistle blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions
entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177 and Section 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the Indian accounting
standard Related Party Disclosures (Ind AS 24)

(xiv) (@) Tothe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit.

(xv) On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence
the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, and in case the Company is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether
it continues to fulfill such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group has five CICs which are
registered with the Reserve Bank of India and one CIC which is not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank
of India.

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses of X 415.25 lakhs in the financial year and X NIL in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii)There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into consideration the issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix) On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report of the
Company’s capability of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
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neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not
required to spend the amount for corporate social responsibilities as required under section 135 of the Companies Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/5200018

ATHIYAN R

Partner

Membership No. 237588
UDIN : 23237588BGZRYG2727

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: April 21, 2023
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Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ideal Ice Limited (“the Company”) as
of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/5200018

ATHIYAN R

Partner

Membership No. 237588
UDIN : 23237588BGZRYG2727

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: April 21, 2023
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Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2023

(% lakhs)
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 639 386
(b) Capital work-in-progress 35 82 -
(c) Right of use assets 31a 1,427 -
(d) Intangible assets 4 888 991
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 0 -
(ii) Other financial assets 6 155 23
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 132 -
(g) Advance Tax assets (net) 8 76 7
(h) Other non current asset 9 17 17
3,416 1,424
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 172 96
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 229 466
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 102 351
(iii) Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 1 1
(iv) Other financial assets 6 233 85
(c) Other assets 13 143 150
880 1,149
TOTAL ASSETS (1+2) 4,296 2,573
1l. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Share capital 14 1,499 588
(b) Other equity 15 (738) (220)
761 368
Liabilities
(2) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 1,490 1,040
(ii) Lease liability 16 1,292 -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 - -
(b) Provisions 18 18 11
2,800 1,051
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 - 160
(ii) Lease liability 16 176 -
(iii) Trade payables
a) Dues of micro and small enterprises 19 10 -
b) Dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 19 429 418
(iv) Other financial liabilities 17 91 562
(b) Other liabilities 20 27 13
(c) Provisions 18 2 1
735 1,154
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES(1+2+3) 4,296 2,573
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants Ideal Ice Limited
ICAI firm registration number: 0039905/5200018
ATHIYAN R PRABHAT VERMA NABAKUMAR SHOME
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 237588 DIN: 06548864 DIN: 03605594
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai
Date: 21st April 2023 Date: 21st April 2023
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Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(T lakhs)
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I  Revenue
Revenue from operations 21 2,464 701
Other income 22 7 73
Total income 2,471 774
I EXPENSES
Food & beverages consumed 463 87
Employee benefits expense and payment to contractors 23 755 274
Finance costs 24 293 8
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 378 45
Other operating and general expenditure 26 1,232 400
Total expenses 3,121 814
Il Loss before exceptional items and tax (650) (40)
IV Exceptional items - -
V  Loss before tax (I-1I-111-1V) (650) (40)
Tax expense/(Income) 27
i) Current tax - 2
ii) Deferred tax (132)
VI Total tax/(Income) expense (132) 2
VIl Loss for the year/ period (V - VI) (518) (42)
VIl Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or (loss)
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit asset / (liability) 0
(ii) Income tax effect
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year/period, net of income tax 0 -
IX Total comprehensive income for the year/ period (VII + VIII) (518) (42)
Earnings per equity share (X) 28
(a) Basic (8.31) (1.40)
(b) Diluted (8.31) (1.40)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants IDEAL ICE LIMITED
ICAI firm registration number: 003990S/5200018

ATHIYANR PRABHAT VERMA
Partner Director
Membership Number: 237588 DIN: 06548864
Place: Bengaluru Place:

Date: 21st April 2023 Date: 21st April 2023
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Statement of Changes in Equity

as at March 31, 2023

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Equity shares of 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Ideal Ice Limited

(% lakhs)
No. Amount
As at March 31, 2021 9,79,700 98
Issued during the year 48,98,224 490
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
As at March 31, 2022 58,77,924 588
Issued during the year 91,10,781 911
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,49,88,705 1,499
B. OTHER EQUITY
(T lakhs)

Attributable to the equity holders

Particulars Reserves and Surplus
_— Total
Retained earnings

As at March 31, 2021 (178) (178)
Profit/Loss for the year (42) (42)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -

As at March 31, 2022 (220) (220)
As at March 31, 2022 (220) (220)
Profit/Loss for the year (518) (518)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 0 0

As at March 31, 2023 (738) (738)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants IDEAL ICE LIMITED
ICAI firm registration number: 0039905/5200018

ATHIYANR PRABHAT VERMA NABAKUMAR SHOME
Partner Director Director

Membership Number: 237588 DIN: 06548864 DIN: 03605594

Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: 21st April 2023 Date: 21st April 2023
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Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (650) (40)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation 378 45
Liabilities / provision no longer required written back (1) (73)
Interest income (6) -
Finance cost 293 8
Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes 14 (60)
Working capital adjustments:
Inventories (76) (96)
Trade and Other Receivables 237 (466)
Other current financial assets (149) (84)
Other non-current financial assets (132) (17)
Other Current Assets 7 (148)
Other Non Current Assets (69) (14)
Trade Payables 20 412
Other Current Liabilities (456) 570
Short term provisions 1 1
Long-term Provisions 7 11
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations (595) 108
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities (595) 108
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets, including capital advances (308) (1,423)
Interest Income 6
Bank Balances not considered as Cash & Cash Equivalents 1
Deposits realised/(given) with other companies (23)
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities (302) (1,445)
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Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Ideal Ice Limited

 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of share capital 911 490
Proceeds from long term Loans 1,200 1,200
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 100 200
Finance costs (174) (3)
Repayment of borrowings (1,010) (200)
Repayment of Lease liability (380)
Net cash (used in)/ from financing activities 647 1,687
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (249) 351
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 351 0
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 102 351
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks- on current accounts 102 351
Balances with banks- deposits with original maturity of less than three months - -
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12) 102 351

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI firm registration number: 0039905/5200018

For and on behalf of the Board
IDEAL ICE LIMITED

ATHIYANR PRABHAT VERMA
Partner Director
Membership Number: 237588 DIN: 06548864

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 21st April 2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21st April 2023

NABAKUMAR SHOME
Director
DIN: 03605594
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)
for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1. Corporate Information

Ideal Ice Limited (formerly Ideal Ice Cold Storage Co. Ltd.) is incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office
at Mandlik House, Mandlik Road, Colaba, Mumbai 400 001. The name of the company was changed to Ideal Ice Limited w.e.f
September 16, 2021

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 21, 2023

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

()
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Statement of Compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

Accounting policies have been applied consistently except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing accounting require a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

All amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lakhs of Indian rupees (X) except share and per share
data, unless otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up
precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute figures.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to:

— Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has estimated useful life of each class
of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history
of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and Intangible assets at the Balance Sheet date. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in
future periods.

— Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur or
changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves
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use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins
used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

— Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary
differences can be realised. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and
in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the
related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax
assets and their tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential
outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the
tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

— Defined benefit plans: The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based
on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, etc. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

(d) Revenue Recognition:

(e)

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the
customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and discounts.

Revenue towards satisfaction of performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable
consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is
net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of contract.

Management and Operating Fees: Management fees earned from bungalows managed by the Company are usually
under long-term contracts with the bungalow owner. Under Management and Operating Agreements, the Company’s
performance obligation is to provide bungalow management services and/or a license to use the Company’s trademark
and other intellectual property. Management and incentive fee is earned as a percentage of revenue and/or profit and
are recognised when earned in accordance with the terms of the contract based on the underlying revenue, when
collectability is certain and when the performance criteria are met. Both are treated as variable consideration.

Food and Beverage Income: Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance
obligation. Revenue from food and beverage sale which is recognised once the food and beverages are sold.

Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Employee Benefits (other than for persons engaged through contractors):

i.  Provident Fund: The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident
fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a
specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary), which is recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. The contributions as specified under the law are
paid to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.

ii. Gratuity Fund

The Company accounts for the net present value of its obligations for gratuity benefits, based on an independent
actuarial valuation, determined on the basis of the projected unit credit method, carried out as at the Balance Sheet
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date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the other comprehensive income and reflected in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Compensated Absences

The Company has a scheme for compensated absences for employees, the liability for which is determined on
the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, carried out at the Balance
Sheet date.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of
construction, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), expenses directly related to the location of assets
and making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing
costs. Initial estimate shall also include costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater that its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Estimated Useful

Class of Assets Life

Improvement to the buildings 10 years
Computers 6 to 10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years
Office equipment 10 years
Plant & Machinery 7 to 10 years

For the assets acquired from Tata consumer products limited, management has re assessed and considered the useful
life based on its technical evaluation.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment’s are not yet ready for
their intended use and are carried at cost determined as aforesaid.

Intangible Assets (Trade marks):

Trademarks acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at the fair value of consideration paid. Following
initial recognition, trademarks are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
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(i)

Trademarks having finite lives have been ascribed a useful life of 10 years based on technical evaluation.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation periods are reviewed and
impairment evaluations are carried out at least once a year.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment of Assets:

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign Currency Translation :
Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions (other than advance receipt or payment of foreign currency)
receipts or payments are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. The foreign currency transactions received or paid in
advance are accounted at the date of receipt or payment of foreign currency.

Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost and denominated in a foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair
value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were the fair value measured.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. Exchange differences
on restatement of other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective April 1, 2018 the company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a
foreign currency. The effect on account of adoption of this amendment was insignificant.
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Non-Current Assets held for Sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available forimmediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable and expected to be completed within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Assets taken on Lease:

On inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease when it
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the
contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost and they are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.
Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end
of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated
useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain to exercise. Lease
liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Company changes
its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and any lease modification.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and the principal portion of the lease
payments have been disclosed under cash flow from financing activities.

Inventories:

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted
Average basis) or net realisable value. Cost include the cost of fair value of consideration paid including duties and
taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(i) Current Tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences in the foreseeable future and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation and
the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognised only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due to occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company, or where
any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of
the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable
outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to a
qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using the effective interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalent (for the purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for
the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year including potential equity
shares, if any, on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting:
The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the committee that makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment
revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair
value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on reasonable basis have been included under “unallocated revenue / expenses / assets/liabilities”.

Financial Instruments:

Financial Assets:

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not
at fair value through profit or loss directly attributable transaction costs. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
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fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.
Debt Instruments at Amortised Cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to loans and advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

— The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

— The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

(@) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do
not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet date, right from its initial recognition.
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Financial Liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured
at fair value.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 — “Financial Instruments” are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as Fair Value through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”), fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”). These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement
of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’). The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company:

On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable
from April 1, 2022, Key amendments are as below:

i. Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and Equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall
not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost
of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

ii. Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract).

Above mentioned amendments do not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:

The following Accounting Standards have been modified on miscellaneous issues with effect from April 1, 2023. Such
changes include clarification/guidance on:

(i) Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Ind AS — Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities to be recognised for all
temporary differences associated with ROU assets, lease liabilities, decommissioning / restoration / similar liabilities.

(ii) Ind AS 107 —Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments
shall be disclosed as part of material accounting policy information.

(iii) Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting — Material accounting
policy information (including focus on how an entity applied the requirements of Ind AS) shall be disclosed instead
of significant accounting policies as part of financial statements.

(iv) Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors — Clarification on what constitutes an
accounting estimate provided.

(v) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes — In case of a transaction which give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, the initial recognition exemption from deferred tax is no longer applicable and deferred tax liability &
deferred tax asset shall be recognised on gross basis for such cases effective 1st April 2022.

The Company is in process of evaluating the impact of the above amendments which is not expected to have any
material impact on the financial statements of the Company. It may be noted that we expect there would be a change
in Accounting policies section of the financial statements as the standard would require presentation of ‘material
accounting policies’ as against ‘significant accounting policies’ disclosed so far.
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3  Property, Plant and Equipment

(% lakhs)
Plant and equipment Office equipment Furniture and Fixture imprl;é\!:sr:}:rjllt: Total
Gross block
Additions 91 8 57 232 389
Disposals - - -
As at March 31, 2022 91 8 57 232 389
Additions 102 37 138 57 334
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 194 45 195 289 723
Depreciation
Charge for the period 0 0 2 0 2
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 0 0 2 0 2
Charge for the year 23 4 21 32 81
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 23 4 23 32 84
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 91 9 55 232 386
As at March 31, 2023 170 41 172 256 639
4 Intangible Assets
 lakhs)
Operating ights Total
Gross block
Additions 1,034 1,034
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 1,034 1,034
Additions -
Disposals
As at March 31, 2023 1,034 1,034
Amortisation
Charge for the period 43 43
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 43 43
Charge for the year 103 103
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2023 146 146
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 991 991
As at March 31, 2023 888 888
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5 Investments *

Ideal Ice Limited

(Unquoted)
(T lakhs)
Non-current
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Investment in equity shares 0
Total Investments 0 -
* Investment of 1 equity share of X 1 each in Kadisland Hospitality Private Limited
6 Other Financial Assets
(% lakhs)
Non-current Current
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)
Receivable from related party (refer note 32) - -
Others 155 23 - 85
Other advances / receivable on current account dues
Receivable from related party (refer note 32) 197
Others 36
Total Other financial assets 155 23 233 85
7 Deferred tax assets (Net)
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
a) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10)
b) Provision for employee benefits 5
c) Leases 10
d) Unabsorbed losses 127
Total deferred tax assets (net) 132 -
Note:
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net):
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount (charged) / credited in Statement of Profit and Loss 132 -
Amount (charged) / credited in OCI - -
Closing balance 132 -
8 Tax assets (net)
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Tax deducted at source 76 7
Total tax assets 76 7
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9 Other non current assets

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Capital advance 17 17
Total other assets 17 17
10 Inventories
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Food and beverages 78 22
Stores and operating supplies 94 74
Total inventories 172 96
11 Trade Receivables
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Considered good
Receivable from related party (refer note 32) 110 -
Others 119 466
Total trade receivable 229 466
Refer note 37 for Trade Receivables aging schedule
12 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with banks
i) incurrent accounts 95 348
Cash in hand 7 3
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent
Call and short term deposit accounts 1 1
Total cash and cash equivalents 103 352
13 Other current assets
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Prepaid expenses 68 -
GST receivables 52 149
Other current assets 0 -
Advance to suppliers 1
To others 23
Total other assets 143 150
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14 Share capital

Ideal Ice Limited

Number X lakhs
Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
As at March 31, 2022 1,50,00,000 1,500
Increase/ (decrease) during the year
As at March 31, 2023 1,50,00,000 1,500
(a) Issued equity capital
Number X lakhs
As at March 31, 2022 58,77,924 588
Increase/ (decrease) during the year 91,10,781 911
As at March 31, 2023 1,49,88,705 1,499
(b) Subscribed and fully paid up :
Number X lakhs
As at March 31, 2022 58,77,924 588
Increase/ (decrease) during the year 91,10,781 911
As at March 31, 2023 1,49,88,705 1,499
(c) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Name of share holder

Equity shares of X10 each with voting rights Number of % of holding in that Number of % of holding in that
shares held class of shares shares held class of shares
Indian Hotels Company Limited 1,49,88,705 100% 58,77,924 100%

Rights, preferences and contingencies attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares, having a par value of X 10. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one
vote per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual
assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amount. However, as on date no such preferential amounts exist. The distribution

will be in proportion to number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company has not allotted any fully paid equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of
equity shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for

consideration other than cash.
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(d) Shares held by promoters
% Change during the year

(% lakhs)

Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares . % Change

during the year

Indian Hotels Company Limited 58,77,924 100% -

As at March 31, 2022 58,77,924 100% -
Indian Hotels Company Limited 1,49,88,705 100%
As at March 31, 2023 1,49,88,705 100%

15 Other Equity

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retained earnings
Opening balance (220) (178)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (518) (42)
Less : Other comprehensive income 0 -
Closing balance at the end of the year (738) (220)
16 Borrowings & Lease Liabillity *
(% lakhs)
Non-current Current
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings 1,490 1,040 - 160
Lease liability 1,292 - 176

* During the current year, the Company has taken loan from holding company (IHCL) it carries interest at applicable at 9% p.a. . Maturity date is Sep 2025 & Dec 2025

* Refer Note 31 for lease liability

17 Other Financial Liabilities

( lakhs)
Non-current Current

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employee related liabilities 51 7
Capital creditors - R
Payable to related party (refer note 32) - -
Others 478
Payables on Current Account dues - Related parties 40
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 5
Security deposits - 72
Total other financial liabilities - - 91 562
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18 Provisions

(% lakhs)
Non-current Current
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for gratuity 6 7 0 1
Provision for compensated absences* 12 4 2 0
Total provision for employee benefits 18 11 2 1
*Refer note 29.
19 Trade Payables
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade payable to related parties (refer note 32) 68
Trade payable to others 371 418
439 418
The above amount includes
Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises 10
Trade payables due to other than micro and small enterprises 429 418
439 418

a) Theidentification of micro, small and medium enterprise suppliers as defined under the provisions of “The Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on management’s knowledge of their status. The disclosures
relating to micro and small enterprises is as below:

(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a. Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier at the end of the year 10 -
b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier at the end of the year - -
c. Total interest paid on all delayed payments during the period under the provisions of the Act - -
d. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -

e. the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until - -
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose

of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

b) Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing
- The dues to related parties are unsecured.

c) Refer note 36 for Trade Payables aging schedule.
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20 Other Liabilities

(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory liabilities 24 13
Advance received from customers -
Others 2 -
Total other liabilities 27 13
21 Revenue From Operations
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale of Food & Beverages 1,567 284
Management & Operating Fees 865 409
Others Operating Income 32 8
Total revenue from operations 2,464 701
22 Other Income
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on deposits with Banks 1 -
Interest income on other financial asset 5 -
Other Non operating income 1 73
Total Other income 7 73
23 Employee Benefit Expenses
(3 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and wages 355 117
Contributions to provident and other funds 18 1
Reimbursement of expenses on personnel deputed to the company 168 76
Payment to contractors 197 76
Staff welfare expenses 18 4
Total employee benefit expenses 755 274
24 Finance Costs
(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest on lease liability 119 -
Interest on borrowings 174 8
Total finance costs 293
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25 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 81 2
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets 193 -
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 103 43
Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 378 45
26 Operating and General Expenses

(T lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Operating expenses consists of the following :
Linen and room supplies 12 2
Catering supplies a4 12
Other supplies 8 5
Fuel, power and light 68 20
Repairs to buildings 14
Repairs to machinery 17
Repairs to others 2
Travel agents’ commission - 12
Discount to collecting agents - 0
Other operating expenses 22 -
General expenses consists of the following :
Rent 57 38
Variable lease payments 244 -
Rates and taxes 27 25
Insurance 12 -
Advertising and publicity 393 172
Printing and stationery 8 1
Passage and travelling 19 1
Professional fees 107 59
Outsourced Support Services 9 6
Freight, Cartage & Porterage 95 -
Advances written off 11 -
Provision for Doubtful debts 3 -
Other expenses 11 23
Reimbursable Fees Expenses 25 -
Communication charges 16 9
i. Asauditors 6 2
ii. For taxation matters - -
iii. For management services - -
iv. For other services - 5
v. For reimbursement of expenses - -
Total other expense 1,232 400
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27 Income Tax

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consists of the following:

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(a) Current tax -

(b) Deferred tax (132) -

Total taxes (132) -
Other comprehensive income (OCl)

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year :
Net gain/ loss on remeasurement of defined benefit plans -
Total - -

Reconciliation of taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before taxes
is summarized below:

( lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loss before taxes (650) (40)
Applicable tax rates in India 25% 25%
Computed tax charge (164) (11)
Tax effect on permanent non deductible expenses 25 5
Tax effect on items recognised in OCI during the year - -
Other Adjustments 6 8
Total tax expenses (133) 2
Income tax reported in the statement of profit and loss (132) -

28 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company has not
issued any dilutive instruments.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

(% lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Face value of equity shares (X per share) 10 10
Loss attributable to equity shareholders (X in lakhs) (518) (42)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing basic and diluted earning per 62,27,379 58,77,924
share (number in million)
EPS- basic and diluted (X) (8.31) (0.72)
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29 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a)

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

Ideal Ice Limited

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. Under the act, every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on departure
at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The level of benefits provided depends on

the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for gratuity benefit.

Net benefit expenses (recognised in the statement of profit and loss):

 lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 2 0
Past service cost 0
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligations/ (assets) 0
Net benefit expenses 3
Remeasurement (gains)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income:

 lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations arising from changes in financial assumptions (0) -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations arising from changes in experience adjustments 0 0
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income (0) 0
Net defined benefit liability:

 lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation 6 4
Plan liability 6 4
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 4
Current service cost 2 0
Past service cost 0
Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation
Acquisition adjustment 4
Closing defined benefit obligation 6 4
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v. The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s plans are shown below:

(3 lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate (in %) 7.45% 6.80%
Salary escalation (in %) 4.00% 4.00%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of IALM
2012-14 2012-14
Employee turnover (in %)
Retirement age 60 Years 60 years
Attrition / Withdrawal rates, based on age
21-44 years 10% 10%
45 and above years 1% 1%
vi. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
(% lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate
Defined benefit obligation due to 0.5% increase in discount rate -4.91% -4.93%
Defined benefit obligation due to 0.5% decrease in discount rate 5.33% 5.37%
Salary escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation due to 0.5% increase in salary escalation rate 5.49% 5.49%
Defined benefit obligation due to 0.5% decrease in salary escalation rate -5.08% -5.08%
Commitments and contingencies
Capital and other commitments
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Nil 26
(net of advances)
Contingent liabilities
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Bank guarantees Nil Nil
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31 Leases

a. Right-of-use Assets

(T lakhs)
Building Vehicles Total
Gross block
Additions during the period - - -
Disposals/transfer - - -
At March 31, 2022 - - -
Additions during the year 1,676 144 1,821
Disposals/transfer 213 - 213
At March 31, 2023 1,463 144 1,607
Amortisation and impairment
Amortisation charge for the period
Disposals/transfer
At March 31, 2022 - - -
Amortisation charge for the year 171 22 193
Disposals/transfer 13 - 13
At March 31, 2023 158 22 181
Net book value
At March 31, 2022 - - -
At March 31, 2023 1,305 122 1,427
b. Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (undiscounted value)
 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within one year 314 -
After one year but not more than five years 1,072 -
More than five years 1,073 -
Total 2,459 -
c. Interest expense on lease liabilities
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

119 -
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32 Related parties

(a) Names of related parties and description of relationship:
Holding Company
The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL)
Directors
Sarabjeet Singh
Nabakumar Nikhilrajan Shome
Prabhat Sahay Verma
Himanshu Jain
Subsidiary of Parent Company
Piem Hotels Limited (PIEM)
Benaras Hotels Limited
Roots Corporation Limited
Taj Trade & Transport Company Limited
United Hotels Limited
Kadisland Hospitality Private Limited
Jointly Controlled Entities of the Company
Taj Sats Air Catering Limited. (Taj Sats)
Taj Madras Flight Kitchens Limited (TMFK)
Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited (Taj GVK)

Associates of the Company
Oriental Hotels Limited (OHL)

Subsidiaries / JV of Tata Sons Private Limited (Ultimate holding company)
Tata Capital Finance Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata Digital Limited

Tata Consumer products Limited

Tata Payments Limited

Tata Power Company Limited
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(b) Transactions during the period

 lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Management and Operating fees

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 256 145

Taj SATS Air Catering Limited 23 10

Taj Madras Flight Kitchens Limited (TMFK) 0 1

Piem Hotels Limited 105 64

Roots Corporation Limited 29 2

Benares Hotels Limited 3 1

United Hotels Limited 7 3

Oriental Hotels Limited 35 22

Tata Power Company Limited 25

Tata Digital Private Limited (formerly Tata Digital Limited) 1

Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited - 3

Tata Consumer products Limited 1

Tata Capital Finance Limited 0

Purchase of raw materials and stores and spares

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 1 5

Taj SATS Air Catering Limited 38

Deputed Staff Salaries

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 206 86

Taj Trade & Transport Company Limited 6 2

Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited - 3

Advertisement and Business Support Service

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 25 29

Tata Digital Private Limited (formerly Tata Digital Limited) 6 5

Tata Payments Limited 1 -

Finance Costs

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 171 7

United Hotels Limited 2 -

Lease Cost

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 18 -

Rent

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 54 14

License

Tata Consultancy Services 7

Others

Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited 0

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 18

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 985

Investment in Equity share

Kadisland Hospitality Private Limited 0

Equity contribution made during the period

The Indian Hotels Company Limited (IHCL) 490
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(c) Outstanding balances as at the year ended

(% lakhs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables 110 245
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 60 166
Piem Hotels Limited 10 33
Roots Corporation Limited 6 1
Benares Hotels Limited 0 2
United Hotels Limited 1 6
Oriental Hotels Limited 2 27
Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited - 0
Taj Sats Air Catering Ltd. (Taj Sats) (6) 11
Taj Madras Flight Kitchens Limited (TMFK) 0 1
Tata Capital Finance Limited - -
Tata Consumer products Limited 34 -
Tata Power Company Limited 2 -

Tata Digital Limited

Tata Payments Limited -

Inter corporate Deposit

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 1,490 1,200
Deputed staff Receivable

The Indian Hotels Company Limited 1 19
Tata Power Company Limited 1

Trade payables (68) (167)
The Indian Hotels Company Limited (61) (159)
Tata Digital Ltd. - (5)
Oriental Hotels Limited - (0)
Piem Hotels Limited - (1)
Tata Consumer products Limited (1) -

Tata Payments LTd - -
United Hotels Limited - -

Taj Trade &Transport - (2)
Tata Capital Finance Limited 0 (1)
Tata Payments Limited (0) -
Taj Sats Air Catering Ltd. (Taj Sats) (7)
Other Financial Liabilities (40)
The Indian Hotels Company Limited (40)
United Hotels Limited (0)
Piem Hotels Limited (0)
Oriental Hotels Limited (0)
Other Financial assets 197
Tata Power Company Limited 173
The Indian Hotels Company Limited 3

Roots Corporation Limited

Taj Sats Air Catering Limited. (Taj Sats)

Taj GVK Hotels & Resorts Limited (Taj GVK) 6
Others 14
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(d)

33

34

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

(T lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Remuneration NIL NIL

Notes

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company
has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties . This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Segment information- Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segment’

(a) Basis of identifying operating segments:

The Company is in the hospitality business and the business of food delivery ,Restaurant & home stays are part of the
hospitality business. Hence disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS108 - ‘Operating
Segments’. There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India.

Disclosures on financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional
information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities

The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as
at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

(% lakhs)
Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars _— Amortised cost FVTPL
March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments - - - -
Other financial assets 389 389 - -
Trade receivables 229 229 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 104 104 - -
Total assets 722 722 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Lease liability 1,468 1,468 -
Borrowings 1,490 1,490
Other financial liabilities 91 91 -
Trade payables 439 439 -
Total liabilities 3,488 3,488 - - - -
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(b)

(T lakhs)
Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars _— Amortised cost FVTPL
March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments - - - -
Other financial assets 108 108 - -
Trade receivables 466 466 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 352 352 - -
Total assets 926 926 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Lease liability - - -
Borrowings 1,200 1,200
Other financial liabilities 562 562 -
Trade payables 418 418 -
Total liabilities 2,181 2,181 - - - -
Interest income/ (expense), gain/ (losses) recognized on financial assets and liabilities
(% lakhs)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Financial asset at FVTPL
Income due to change in fair value - -
(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Interest expenses on borrowings, lease liabilities 293 8

Fair Value Hierarchy

An analysis of financial instruments (as indicated in the table above) that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, are as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by
reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists
of investment in quoted equity shares, and mutual fund investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities,
measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): This level of hierarchy includes financial
assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither
supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data.

(i) Borrowings, loans, short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately
equal to their fair value.

(ii) Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. As such, fair
value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported
at each reporting date.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates
and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments.

(i) create astable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations
on the Company’s business plan.

(ii) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected earnings in advance.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables
and unbilled receivables). Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally
consist of trade receivables, loans receivables and cash and cash equivalents provided by the Company.

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
was X720 and X 925 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, being the total carrying value of investments,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company does not hold collateral as security.

With respect to Trade receivables/unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted the terms to review the
receivables on periodic basis and to take necessary mitigations, wherever required.

The Company’s has three customers individually contributing more than 10% of outstanding accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue as at March 31, 2023 and one customers individually contributing more than 10% of outstanding
accounts receivable as of March, 2022.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity

risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.
The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, which carry no or low market risk.

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis.

The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the
Company’s financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value.

On demand 0 to 12 months 1to 5 Years > 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2023
Lease liability - 314 1,072 1,073 2,459
Borrowings - 1,490 1,490
Trade payables - 439 - - 439
Other financial liabilities - - - - -
- 753 2,562 1,073 4,388

As at March 31, 2022
Lease liability - - - - -
Borrowings 160 1,040 1,200
Trade payables - 418 - - 418
Other financial liabilities - 562 - - 562
- 1,141 1,040 - 2,181
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(f) Market risk- Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities.

The Company does not have any significant foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as at

March 31, 2023

35 Capital Work-in-Progress aging schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

More than 3

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
Projects in progress 82 - - - 82
Projects temporarily suspended -
As at 31 March 2023 82 - - - 82

Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
As at 31 March 2022

36 Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Notdue Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
(i) MSME - 10 - 10
(ii) Others 314 78 37 429
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -
As at 31 March 2023 314 88 37 - - 439
(i) MSME - - - - - -
(i) Others 185 234 - - - 418
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
As at 31 March 2022 185 234 - - - 418
37 Trade Receivables aging schedule
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment*
Particulars
Not Due Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 Total
months 1year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 225 2 3 - - 229

— considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
— considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered doubtful
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Ideal Ice Limited

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment*

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months -

1year 1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 Total
years

(v) Unbilled revenue receivables
As at 31 March 2023

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables
— considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables
— considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables
considered doubtful

(v) Unbilled revenue receivables
As at 31 March 2022

225

- 229

466

- 466

466

- 466

38 Financial ratios

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Numerator

Denominator

(a) Current Ratio,
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, *

Rl

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, *

(d) Return on Equity Ratio,*

(e) Inventory turnover ratio,*

(f) Trade Receivables turnover
ratio,*

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio,*

(h) Net capital turnover ratio,*

(i) Net profit ratio, *
(j) Return on Capital employed,*

(k) Return on investment.

1.20
3.89

0.02

-92%
11.72
7.09

4.00
16.96

-21%
-16%

NA

1.00
2.83

1.70

29%
2.97
3.01

1.16

(123.23)

-6%
-9%

NA

Current assets

Debt consists of borrowings and
lease liabilities.

Earning for Debt Service = Net
Profit after taxes + Non-cash
operating expenses + Interest +
Other non-cash adjustments

Total Comprehensive income
Sales of products
Revenue from operations

Total purchases
Revenue from operations

Total Comprehensive income

Profit before tax and finance
costs

Income generated from invested
funds

Current liabilities
Total Equity

Debt service = Interest and
lease payments + Principal
repayments

Average total equity
Average Inventory
Average Trade Receivables

Average Trade Payables
Current assets - Current
liabilities

Revenue from operations

Capital employed = Net worth
+ Lease
liabilities - Deferred tax liability

Average invested funds in
treasury investment

Reasons for variance in financial ratios

* The company has commenced its commercial operations during Nov 2021, accordingly the comparative numbers are not representative of the full financial year
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39 Additional disclosures

Additional information and disclosures as required under Schedule Il to the act to the extent applicable to the company
has been disclosed.

40

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against
the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off except as disclosed in Note 40

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies
beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31 March 2023

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered

De

or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

tails of transactions with Struck off companies

Name of struck off Company - Frangipani Estate Private Limited

Receivable (Other financial asset) as on 31st March 2023 - X 2,92,982 which is full provided in books

For PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants IDEAL ICE LIMITED
ICAI firm registration number: 003990S/5200018

ATHIYAN R PRABHAT VERMA NABAKUMAR SHOME
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 237588 DIN: 06548864 DIN: 03605594

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 21st April 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,

The Members of KTC Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

1.

2.

Opinion

1.1

1.2

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KTC Hotels Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
( “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 133
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and
its Loss, Other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

21

We conducted our audit of the financial statements, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’'s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

3.1 We draw attention to Note No. 23 of Notes to the financial statements wherein a fraud on the Company to an

extent of ¥97,04,753 has been reported by the Company. We have been informed that the Company have initiated
steps for recovery of the amount. Pending recovery, as a matter of prudence, the Company has made a provision
in the books of account for an amount of ¥7704,753 (net of subsequent recovered amount).

3.2 Our opinion is not modified in respect of above stated matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

149



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report (Contd.)

5.

150

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1. Evaluation of Uncertain Tax Positions Principle Audit Procedures
The Company has material uncertain tax positions including Obtained details of completed tax assessments and demands
matters under dispute which involves significant judgementto  for the year ended March 31, 2023 from management. We
determine the possible outcome of these disputes. have evaluated the management’s underlying assumptions in

estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of the
disputes. We have also considered legal precedence and other
rulings in evaluating management’s position on these uncertain
tax positions. Further, we considered the effect of additional
information in respect of uncertain tax positions as on date

of signing, to evaluate whether any change was required to
management’s position on these uncertainties.

Recoverability of Indirect tax Receivables Principle Audit Procedures

As at March 31, 2023, non-current assets represent Balance We have reviewed the nature of the amounts recoverable

with Government Authorities in the nature of service tax and the likelihood of recoverability upon final resolution. We

recoverable amounting to 636 and deposit for disputed taxes  have evaluated the management’s underlying assumptions

amounting to ¥152 which are pending adjudication. in considering these amounts as recoverable based on the
legal counsel’s views on the pending appeals in estimating the

Refer Note 5 to the Financial Statements. likelihood of recoverability of amounts paid and the possible

outcome of the disputes.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

51

5.2

5.3

5.4

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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7.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

7.1

7.2

7.3

74

7.5

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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8.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.1 Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

8.2

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

c)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, there was no
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 19.1 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
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directly orindirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v. The Company has not paid/ declared any dividends during the year under review. Hence, compliance of
Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad

Partner
Place: Chennai Membership No. 203377
Date: UDIN:
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vi.

vii.

154

(@) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records, showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets as at the year ended March 31, 2023.

(b) We are informed that the Property, Plant and Equipment and other assets have been physically verified by the
Management during the year which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets and that no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(@) The Company is a service company, primarily engaged in business of renting of immovable property. Accordingly,
it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our verification of the records of
the Company, the Company has not availed working capital facilities from banks or financial institutions. Thus,
paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us and based on verification of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms Limited Liability Partnerships, or
any other parties during the year. Hence, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company for the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans, made
investments, given any guarantees and security for which the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to deposits to which the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provision of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder, apply. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our verification of the records of the
Company, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, Cess and other statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities. There
are no outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and as per the records of the Company examined by
us, the following disputed amount of statutory dues have not been deposited with the relevant authorities as per
details given below:
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Referred to in Paragraph 8 of our Report of Even Date

Amount  Period to which the amount

Nature of the Statute Nature of dues (Zinthousands) relates Forum where dispute is pending
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 959*  Assessment year 2005-06  CIT (Appeals), Kozhikode
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 992 Assessment year 2020-21  Rectification Petition u/s 154 is being
filed.
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 2247  Financial year 2007-08 and Office of the Commissioner of Central
2008-09 Excise, Customs and Service Tax
(Appeals), Kochi
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 1705 Financial year 2009-10 and Central Excise Service Tax Appellate
2011-12 Tribunal (CESTAT), Bengaluru

*Qut of the above, an amount of 524 have been adjusted against the refund due for the Assessment year 2009-10.

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

Xi.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(c)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by the bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

The Company has not availed term loan during the year from bank and the term loan availed in an earlier year have
been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

The Company has not raised any short-term funds during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the
order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting under
clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence reporting under
clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our verification of the records of the
Company, no fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit during the year.
As reported by the Company and as elaborated in note no. 23 of the notes to the financial statements, a fraud was
committed on the Company for an amount ¥97,04,753 in fixed deposit account. We have been informed that the
Company have initiated steps for recovery of the balance amount.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
up to the date of this report.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were
no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of this report).
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Refe

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

Xviii.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

rred to in Paragraph 8 of our Report of Even Date

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification of the records of the Company,
as per Section 138 read with applicable rules, appointment of internal auditor is not applicable to the Company. Thus,
paragraph 3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

(@) Inouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are 5 Core Investment Companies (CICs) in the
Group (basis definition of “Companies in the Group” as per Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016) as at the end of the reporting period. In addition to this there is one CIC which is not required to be registered
with RBI.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(@) Inour opinion Section 135(5) of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) Inour opinion Section 135(6) of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not having any subsidiaries and therefore not required to draw any consolidated financial statements.
Hence, the reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad
Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No. 203377

Date
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KTC Hotels Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial Statements of KTC Hotels Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAl and the Standards of Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirement and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of certain transactions as mentioned in note no.23 of notes to financial
statements involving recording of bank transactions and the Company need to strengthen internal control system
surrounding the recording of bank transactions on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, to the
best of our information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting and with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad
Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No. 203377
Date: UDIN:
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Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2023

KTC Hotels Limited

(% in thousands)

. As at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 27,437 28,070

27,437 28,070
Financial Assets
Income tax assets (Net) 572 -
Other non-current assets 5 788 788
Total Non-Current Assets 28,797 28,859
Current Assets
Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables 6 931 1,204
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7(a) 2,199 674
iii) Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 7(b) 17,147 26,000
iv) Loans 8 - -
v) Other financial assets 4 2,587 1,226
Other current assets 5 - 12
Total Current Assets 22,864 29,116
Total Assets 51,661 57,975
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 9 6,040 6,040
(b) Other Equity 10 18,997 24,637
Total Equity 25,037 30,677
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 11 1,447 1,317

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12 5,477 5,597

Other non-current Liabilities 13 19,040 19,621
Total Non-Current Liabilities 25,964 26,535
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i) Trade payables 14 41 75

Current tax liabilities (Net) - 58

Other current liabilities 13 619 630
Total Current Liabilities 660 763
Total Liabilities 26,624 27,298
Total Equity And Liabilities 51,661 57,975
Accounting Policies 1-2
Additional Information 19-30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of

KTC Hotels Limited

Gautam Sethi
Director
(DIN: 08571659)

Place:
Date:

Prabhat Verma

(DIN: 06548864)

Place: Chennai
Date:

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad
Partner
Membership No. 203377

As per our report of even date attached
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Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(% in thousands)

e e o e
Income
Revenue from operations 15 3,092 2,295
Other income 16 896 1,226
Total Income 3,988 3,521
Expenses
Finance costs 17 130 119
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 3 634 634
Provision for Doubtful Advances (Refer Note No. 23) 7,505 -
Other expenses 18 869 118
Total Expenses 9,138 871
(Loss)/ Profit Before Exceptional Items (5,150) 2,650
Exceptional Items - -
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (5,150) 2,650
Tax Expense
(1) Current tax 599 782
(2) Deferred tax (120) (115)
(3) Income tax relating to earlier years 11
Profit for the Year (5,640) 1,983
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (5,640) 1,983
Earnings Per Equity Share — Basic and Diluted (3) (9.34) 3.28
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,04,000 6,04,000
(face value of ¥10/- each)
Accounting Policies 1-2
Additional Information 19-30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
KTC Hotels Limited

Gautam Sethi
Director
(DIN: 08571659)

Place:
Date:
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Prabhat Verma
Director
(DIN: 06548864)

As per our report of even date attached

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad

Partner

Membership No. 203377

Place: Chennai

Date:



Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

KTC Hotels Limited

(% in thousands)

Note Equity shares Amount
Equity Shares of ¥10 each issued at par, subscribed and fully paid-up
As at March 31, 2021 9 6,04,000 6,040
Changes in equity share capital during 2021-22 - -
As at March 31, 2022 6,04,000 6,040
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 - -
As at March 31, 2023 6,04,000 6,040
B. Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Total Equity
. Attributable to Equity
particulars General Reserve Retained Earnings Shareholders of the
Company
As at March 31, 2021 3,300 19,354 22,654
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year ended March 31, 2022
Profit for the year - 1,983 1,983
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes - - -
Total Comprehensive Income - 1,983 1,983
Transactions with Owners, Recorded Directly in Equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividend paid - - -
Dividend Tax - - -
Total Contributions by and Distributions to Owners - - -
As at March 31, 2022 3,300 21,337 24,637
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(Loss)/ Profit for the year - (5,640) (5,640)
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 3,300 (5,640) (5,640)
Transactions with Owners, Recorded Directly in Equity
Contributions by and Distributions to Owners
Dividend paid - - -
Dividend tax - - -
Total Contributions by and Distributions to Owners - - -
As at March 31, 2023 3,300 15,697 18,997

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
KTC Hotels Limited

Gautam Sethi Prabhat Verma
Director Director
(DIN: 08571659) (DIN: 06548864)

Place:
Date:

As per our report of even date attached

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad

Partner

Membership No. 203377

Place: Chennai

Date:
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(% in thousands)

Statement of Cash Flows March305  Manh 12022
Cash Flow from Operating Activities:-

Profit Before Tax (5,150) 2,650
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 634 634
Provision for doubtful advances 7,505 -
Interest Receivable Written off 714 -
Interest on Lease Deposit 130 119
Lease Income on Deposit (581) (581)
Interest Income (896) (1,226)
Total Adjustments 7,506 (1,055)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,356 1,595

Adjustments for:

Trade receivables 273 (960)
other financial assets 1,316 0

other assets 12 0

Other financial liabilities, provisions and other liabilities (45) (62)
Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 3,912 573

Income tax paid (1,240) (647)
Net Cash from/ (used) in Operating Activities 2,672 (74)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,147) (10,000)
Interest income received - -

Net Cash from/ (used) In Investing Activities (B) (1,147) (10,000)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Deposit from holding company - -

Interest on lease Deposit - -

Net Cash from/ (used) In Financing Activities (C) - -

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 1,525 (10,074)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 674 10,747

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No:7a) 2,199 674

Net Increase/ (Decrease) as Disclosed Above 1,525 (10,074)

Significant Accounting Policies — See Note No. 1 & 2

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
KTC Hotels Limited

Gautam Sethi Prabhat Verma
Director Director

(DIN: 08571659) (DIN: 06548864)
Place:

Date:
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As per our report of even date attached

For Brahmayya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000511S

R. Nagendra Prasad

Partner

Membership No. 203377

Place: Chennai
Date:



KTC Hotels Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate Information

KTC Hotels Limited (“the Company”), was set up in the year 1984 and has its registered office at The Gateway Hotel, Marine
Drive, Ernakulam, Kochi — 682 011. The Major shareholders of the Company are The Indian Hotels Company Limited. The
Company is engaged in the business of renting of immovable property.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on April 24, 2023.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in Thousands, except share data, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle of 12 months
which is based on the nature of business of the Company. Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected
to be realised within 1 year and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year
being reckoned from the reporting date.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the reported
balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
pertain to:

Critical Accounting Estimates

a) Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Company has estimated useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of
the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc.
The Company reviews the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets at the Balance
Sheet date. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

b) Impairment Testing

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events occur or changes in
circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The
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Notes to financial statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(f)

(8)
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recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation
involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates
and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and
market conditions.

c) Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences
can be realised. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and
in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery
of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation
of deferred tax assets and the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law
and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore
the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax
assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

d) Litigation
From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being always subject
to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable that a
payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made when
evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavourable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable
estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions
made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition
or construction less accumulated depreciation/ amortisation and impairment, if any. Cost includes purchase price, taxes
and duties, labour cost and directly attributable overheads incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as separate asset is derecognsed
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Profit or Loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss within other gains/ (losses).
Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Management estimate of useful life of property plant and equipments is as follows:

Particulars Useful life estimated by management

Buildings 60 years
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(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Revenue Recognition

(i) License fees are recognised in accordance with contractual terms under completed contract service method.
(i) Interestaccrued isrecognised in time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding and rates applicable.

(iii) Other incomes are recognised on accrual basis except when there are significant uncertainties.

Assets Taken on Lease

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All the other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis,
unless another basis is more representative of the time pattern of benefits received from the use of the assets taken
on lease or the payments of lease rentals are in line with the expected general inflation compensating the lessor for
expected inflationary cost. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

Assets held under finance lease are capitalised at the inception of the lease, with corresponding liability being recognised
for the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the statement of Profit or Loss so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term

For leases which include both land and building elements, basis of classification of each element is assessed on the date
of transition, April 01, 2015, in accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(1) Current Tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

In terms of Taxation Laws ( Amendment) Act, 2019, the Company can avail of an irreversible option to pay tax at

lower rates subject to non-availment of certain exemptions and deductions u/s 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961

and the Company has decided to avail of this option from the financial year 2019-2020 begining from April 01, 2019.
(2) Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
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and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to a
qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using the effective interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalent (For the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and Cash Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for
the year is classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year including potential equity shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges
to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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(p) Financial Instruments

Financial Assets:
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL) on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and Measurement:

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Debt instruments at Amortised Cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.
Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

(@) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.
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Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do
not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured
at fair value.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term

Gains or Losses on Liabilities Held for Trading are Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 — “Financial Instruments” are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as Fair Value through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”), fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”). These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement
of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(a)

(r)

(s)

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

Disputed liabilities and claims against the Company including claims raised by fiscal authorities pending in appeal for
which no reliable estimate can be made and or involves uncertainty of the outcome of the amount of the obligation
or which have remote chance for crystallisation are not provided for in accounts but disclosed by way of notes to the
accounts. However, present obligation as a result of past event with possibility of outflow of resources, when reliable
estimation can be made of the amount of obligation, is recognised in accounts in terms of discounted value, if the time
value of money is material using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risk specific to the liability. Contingent assets
are not recognised in the accounts but are disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so These items are
identified by virtue of either their size or nature or incidence. The following items are considered to be exceptional in
nature for reporting

- Impairment losses for non-current investments

— Gain or loss of Investments or a hotel/ undertaking

Derivative loss/ gain

— Exchange gain/ loss on long-term external borrowings”

Standards Issued but not yet Effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements — This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of
the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — This amendment has introduced a definition
of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of thisamendment is annual periods beginning on
or after April 01, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.
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Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes — This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does
not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption
of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment
and there is no impact on its financial statement.

Note 3: Property, Plant & Equipments

(% in thousands)

Particulars Land Buildings Total (A)+(B)

Gross carrying value

Balance at April 01, 2019 42,52,675 2,82,57,172 3,25,09,847
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 42,52,675 2,82,57,172 3,25,09,847
Balance at April 01, 2021 4,253 28,257 32,510
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 4,253 28,257 32,510
Balance at April 01, 2022 4,253 28,257 32,510
Additions -

Deletions -

Balance at March 31, 2023 4,253 28,257 32,510
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at April 01, 2019 - 38,05,561 38,05,561
Depreciation - 634 634
Deletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 - 3,806 3,806
Balance at April 01, 2021 - 3,806 3,806
Depreciation - 634 634
Deletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 - 4,439 4,439
Balance at April 01, 2021 - 3,806 3,806
Depreciation - 634 634
Deletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2022 4,439 4,439
Balance at April 01, 2022 - 4,439 4,439
Depreciation - 634 634
Deletions - - -
Balance at March 31, 2023 5,073 5,073
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2023 4,253 23,184 27,437
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2022 4,253 23,818 28,070
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Note 4: Other Financial Assets

(% in thousands)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Interest Accrued but not due 387 1,226
Other Advances Recoverable 9,705 -
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (7,505) -
2,200
2,587 1,226

Note 5: Other Assets

(% in thousands)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current
Unsecured, considered good
Others — Balance with Government Authorities ( refer Note below) 636 636
Deposit for disputed taxes 152 152
788 788
Note: Service tax paid and claimed as refund pending and filed an appeal before appellate authorities.
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Others — Balance with Government Authorities - 12
- 12

Note 6: Trade Receivables

(% in thousands)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Unsecured
Considered good 931 1,204
931 1,204
Net Trade Receivables 931 1,204

(Refer Note 6.1)

Note 6.1 Trade Receivables

(% in thousands)

Outstanding for Following Periods from Due Date of Payment

As at March 31, 2023

. Less than 6 months - More than
Unbilled Dues 6 months 1 year 1- 2 years 2- 3 years 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — - 931 - - - 931
considered good
Total - 931 - - - - 931

171



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to financial statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(% in thousands)

Outstanding for Following Periods from Due Date of Payment

As at March 31, 2022
Unbilled Dues Less than 6 6 months - 1- 2 years 2- 3 years More than Total
months 1year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — - 960 245 - - - 1,204
considered good
Total - 960 245 - - - 1,204
Note 7(a): Cash and Cash Equivalents
(% in thousands)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balance with bank in current accounts 2,199 674
2,199 674
Note 7(b): Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalent
(% in thousands)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
In Deposit Accounts 17,147 26,000
17,147 26,000
Note 8: Loans
(% in thousands)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Others - -
Note 9: Share Capital
(% in thousands)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Equity Share Capital
Authorised
15,00,000 (15,00,000) equity shares of ¥10/- each 15,000 15,000
(March 31, 2021: 15,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each)
15,000 15,000
Equity Share Capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares
Face Value per ordinary share
6,04,000 equity shares of ¥10/- each 6,040 6,040
(March 31, 2021: 6,04,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each)
6,040 6,040
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The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥10/-. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event
of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reported period

Equity Shares March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No. of shares No. of shares
At the beginning of the period 6,04,000 6,04,000
Issued during the period - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 6,04,000 6,04,000

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022
Class of shares/ Name of shareholder

No. of shares % of holding

Indian Hotel Company Ltd. 6,04,000 100%

Note 10: Other Equity

(% in thousands)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Reserves & Surplus
General Reserve 3,300 3,300
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 21,337 19,354
(Loss)/ Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss (5,640) 1,983
Total 15,697 21,337
Total Reserves and Surplus 18,997 24,637

Note 11: Borrowings

(% in thousands)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current
From Related Party
Long-term deposit at amortised cost 1,447 1,317
Total 1,447 1,317
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Note 12: Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(% in thousands)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
On excess of net book value over income tax written down value of fixed assets 5,477 5,597
Total (A) 5,477 5,597
Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for doubtful debts - -
Others - -
Total (B)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (A-B) 5,477 5,597
Note 13: Other Liabilities
(% in thousands)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current
Advances
Advance lease rental — Lease Deposit 19,040 19,621
19,040 19,621
Current
Income Received in Advance 581 581
Statutory dues 38 49
619 630
Note 14: Trade payables
(% in thousands)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer Note 14.1) - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 41 75
41 75

14.1 Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“the Act”)

based on the information available with the Company are given below:

(% in thousands)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year

The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid under the Act, along with the amounts of the payment made beyond the
appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act
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Note 14.2 Trade Payables

(% in thousands)

Outstanding for Following Periods from Due Date of Payment#

Mar-23

Ef(\;:;usee: Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3 years More t::;‘rz Total

(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(i) Others - 45 - - - 45
Total - 45 - - . - 45
(% in thousands)

Outstanding for Following Periods from Due Date of Payment#

Mer22 E:;::‘u:e(: Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More ﬂ;::r?; Total
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(i) Others - - 75 - - - 75
Total - - 75 - - - 75

Note 15: Revenue from Operations

(¥ in thousands)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
License Fees 2,511 1,714
Lease rental income on deposit 581 581
3,092 2,295

Income from Operation is derived from the following services:
Management & Operating Fees 3,092 1,714
3,092 1,714

Note 16: Other Income

(% in thousands)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Income 896 1,226
Total 896 1,226

Note 17: Finance Costs

(% in thousands)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Expense on Lease deposit 130 119
Total 130 119
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Note 18: Expenses

(% in thousands)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Payment to Auditors —
i. Statutory Audit Fees 45 75
ii. Taxation Matters 5 5
Other expenses 105 38
Interest Receivable Written Off 714 -
869 118

Note 19: Additional Information

Note 19.1: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the Extent not Provided for in the Accounts)

(% in thousands)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

I.  Contingent Liabilities:
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Income Tax Demands disputed in Appeals not provided for AY 2005-06 and AY 2020-2021 1,951 959
(Refer note 19.1.a)
Income Tax refund for the AY 2020-21 reduced as per intimation u/s 143(1) pending 36 36
rectification by the Income Tax Authorities
Service Tax Demands disputed in Appeals not provided for 2007-08 to 2011-12 3,952 2,247
(b) Bank Guarantee Nil Nil
(c) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable Nil Nil
Il. Commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Nil Nil
(b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid Nil Nil
(c) Other Commitments Nil Nil
Note 19.1.a

In respect of above, the Company has good chance of getting orders in favour of the Company and hence no provision is
considered necessary at this stage.

Note 19.2: Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Earnings Per Share is calculated in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 — ‘Earnings Per Share’ — (Ind AS-33)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(% in thousands)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (5,640) 1,983
Number of Equity Shares:

Weighted average number of equity share considered in calculation of EPS 6,04,000 6,04,000
Considered in calculation of diluted EPS 6,04,000 6,04,000
Face value per equity share 10 10

Earnings per share:
Basic (9.34) 3.28
Diluted (9.34) 3.28
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Note 19.3: Disclosure of Related Party Transactions in Accordance with IND AS 24 “ Related Party Disclosures”

A. Related Party and Nature of Relationship:

(a) Holding Company Indian Hotels Company Ltd.
(b) Key Management Personnel i.  Gautam Sethi
ii. Ashok Binnani
iii. Prabhat Verma
(c) Relatives of Key Management Personnel Nil
(d) Enterprises over which the key managerial personnel and their relatives are able to exercise Nil

significant influence having transactions with the Company

The details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as follows:
®)

. . Year ended Year ended
Particulars Nature of Transactions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Indian Hotels Company Ltd. (Holding Company) License fee 2,511 1,714

The details of amounts (due to) or due from related parties as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are as follows:

®)

. . Year ended Year ended
Particulars Nature of Transactions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Indian Hotels Company Ltd. (Holding Company) Refundable Security Deposits (35,000) (35,000)

Receivables 931 1,204

No amount has been provided/ written off as doubtful debts or advances written back in respect of payables due from or to
any of the above related parties.
Note 20: Financial Instruments Measurements and Disclosures

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Company’s
Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments

— Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

- Interest Rate Risk

— Foreign Currency Risk
- Capital Management

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.
Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers or counterparty to financial instruments may not be able to meet their
obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investments. To manage this, the
Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current
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economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Credit risks arises from cash and cash
equivalents, deposits with banks, financial institutions and others, as well as credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables.

The Company’s policy is to place cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits with reputable banks and
financial institutions.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness
before entering into contract. Sale limits are established for each customer, reviewed regularly and any sales exceeding
those limits require approval from the appropriate authority. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Company. The Company establishes a loss allowance that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
and other receivables and investments.

The Company’s risk exposure in investment is limited to investing in associates. The Company does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these Associates.

The Company’s risk exposure in loans is limited to loan to holding company, associates and group companies. The Company
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter parties

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt investments at an
amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities (other than trade payables) over the succeeding 60 days.
The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash
outflows on trade and other payables.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other market changes
that affect market risk-sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk- sensitive financial instruments
including foreign currency receivables and payables and loans and borrowings. There is no significant concentration of
market risk within the Company as the billings for the services rendered by the Company are in home currency and further
the borrowings/ advance by the Company are also at fixed rate.

Interest Rate Risk

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss in interest rates for borrowings.

Particulars Impact in Statement of Profit and Loss for 1% change

Interest sensitivity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Change by 100 basis points (100 bps) - R

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value.

The Company’s financial strategy aims to support its strategic priorities and provide adequate capital to its businesses for
growth and creation of sustainable stakeholder value. The Company funds its operations through equity and borrowings.
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The Company aims at maintaining a strong capital base largely towards supporting the future growth of its businesses as a
going concern.

As at March 31, 2022, the Company has only one class of equity shares.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has always
been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

For trade receivables, as a practical expedient, the Company computes credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix.
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates and also takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors.
Movement in Expected Credit Loss Allowance on Trade Receivables

(% in thousands)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year -
Loss allowance measured at lifetime expected credit losses - -

Balance at the end of the year - -

Details of Financial Assets (Trade Receivables) that are Neither Past Due nor Impaired and that are Past Due but
not Impaired

(% in thousands)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 931 1,204
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired -

Financial assets that are past due and impaired - -
Total 931 1,204

Note 21: Accounting Classifications and Fair Values

Fair Values vs Carrying Amounts
Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly.
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of current trade receivables, current trade payables and other Current financial assets and liabilities is considered
to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position, of March 31, 2023 are as follows.

(% in thousands)

Particulars Fair Vi';;::?;i: Amortised Cost th::L;\I:aéjlg
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - 2,199 -
Balance other thanCash and cash and equivalent 17,147

Trade receivables - 931 -
Investments - -
Loans - - -
Other Financial Assets - 2,587 -
Total - 22,864 -
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables - 41 -
Borrowings - 1,447 -
Total - 1,488 -

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of
financial position, of March 31, 2022 are as follows.

(% in thousands)

Particulars Fair V?,II:;I:?L‘:) g:; Amortised Cost th:;il;zalou;
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 674 -
Balance other thanCash and cash and equivalent 26,000

Trade receivables 1,204 -
Investments - -
Other Financial Assets - -
Loans - -
Total - 27,878 -
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables - 75 -
Other Financial liabilities - 630 -
Borrowings - 1,317 -
Total - 2,021 -
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Note 22: Tax Disclosures

i) Income Tax Recognised

KTC Hotels Limited

(T in thousands)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Income Tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Tax

Deferred Tax in relation to origination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax relating to items recognised in OCI during the period
Total

599 782
(120) (115)

11 -
490 667
490 667

ii) Reconciliation of the Income Tax Provision to the Amount Computed by Applying the Statutory Income Tax

Rate to the Profit Before Tax is Summarised Below:

(T in thousands)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Loss)/ Profit before tax (a) (5,150) 2,650
Income tax rate as applicable (b) 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on above (1,296) 667
Less: Permanent differences - Ind-AS adjustments on lease deposits (113) -
Less: Permanent differences - Provision for doubtful advances 1,889 -
Others 11 0
Income Tax Expense Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss 490 667

iii) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

(% in thousands)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax
Total

iv) Analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:

(% in thousands)

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

5,477

5,712

5,477

5,712

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

(% in thousands)

Recognised in

Recognised in Other

Particulars Opening Balance Statement of Profit Comprehensive Closing Balance
and Loss income

Depreciation 5,597 (120) - 5,477

Total 5,597 (120) - 5,477
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Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

(% in thousands)

Recognised in Recognised in Other
Particulars Opening Balance Statement of Profit Comprehensive Closing Balance
and Loss income
Depreciation 5,712 (115) - 5,597
Total 5,712 (115) - 5,597

Note 23: The Company has identified a fraud on the Company in the fixed deposit accounts of the Company during the
year. Based on the information and explanations available, the Company is investigating the matter and the amount involved
is estimated to be ¥97,04,753/-. Pending recovery of the full amount, as a matter of prudence, the Company has made a
provision for ¥75,04,753/- net of recovery amount of ¥22,00,000 after the balance sheet date and disclosed as “Provision
for doubtful advances” in the statement of profit and loss. The Company is investigating the matter and have initiated steps
for recovery of the balance amount.

Note 24: Segment Reporting

The Company’s only business being in the business of renting of immovable property, disclosure of segment-wise information
is not applicable under Ind AS108 — ‘Operating Segments’ (Ind AS-108). There is no geographical segment to be reported
since all the operations are undertaken in India.

Note 25: Remittance in foreign currencies on account of dividend

(i)  Number of Non-resident share holders — Nil (Previous year Nil)
(i)  Number of shares held by them — Nil (Previous Year Nil)

(iii) Dividend remitted in Foreign Currency — Nil (Previous year Nil)

Note 26: The Company has an internal control system in place, including in relation to internal controls over financial
reporting, which is commensurate with the nature and size of its operations. These internal controls are reviewed/ tested
by the management on an ongoing basis and there are no material weaknesses/ deficiencies except for the possible effects
of certain transactions as mentioned in note no. 23 involving recording of bank transactions and the Company has taken
steps to strengthen internal control system surrounding the recording of bank transactions. Further strengthening of the
internal control system/ improvements thereof are being assessed/ carried out by the management on a continuing basis.

Note 27: In the opinion of the Directors, Loans and Advances and Other Current Assets, have the value at which they are
stated in the Balance Sheet, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

Note 28: Impairment of Assets: As per the assessment of the management, there is no impairment in-value to any or all
assets of the Company with reference to the values at which they are recorded in the books of account.
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Note 29: Additional Disclosure Under the Regulatory Requirements:

(a) Ratios:

KTC Hotels Limited

Reason for Variance

Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 % Variance by more than 25% as
compared to Previous year
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 34.65 38.15 (9.19)
(b) Return on Equity Net Profits after Average -22.53% 6.46% (448.53) reduced on account of
Ratio taxes Shareholder's Equity loss due to provisions
made as against profit
in previous year
(c) Trade Total Sales Average Accounts 2.35 2.36 (0.56)
Receivables Receivable
Turnover Ratio
(d) Net Capital Total Sales Working Capital 0.11 0.06 88.11 Increased due to higher
Turnover Ratio income and lower
receivables.
(e) Net Profit Ratio  Net Profits after Total Sales -224.66% 115.73% (294.12) reduced on account of
taxes loss due to provisions
made as against profit
in previous year
(f) Returnon Earning before Capital Employed -15.71% 7.36% (313.27) reduced on account of
Capital interest and taxes (Net Worth + Total loss due to provisions
Employed (Profit before tax+  Debt + Deferred made as against profit
Finance Costs) Tax Liability - OCI in previous year
adjustments for Fair
Value of Investments
Recognised )
(g) Returnon Income from Cost of Investments
Investment Investments
1. Fixed Deposits 8,96,106 1,60,00,000 5.20% 5.20% -

(b) Transaction with Struck off Companies:

The Company has reviewed transactions to identify if there are any transactions with struck off companies. To the extent
information is available on struck off companies, there are no transactions with struck off companies.

(c) The title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the Company as
at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property.

(e) There are no borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

(g) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency of Virtual currency during the financial year.

183



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to financial statements (Contd.)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

(h) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested any funds to any persons or entities including foreign entities
(intermediates) with the understanding that the intermediary shall

(a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate benefeciaries.

(i) The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities including foreign entities (intermediates) with
the understanding that the intermediary shall

(i) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the funded party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate benefeciaries.

(j). The Company does nto have any transacion which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered,
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(k) The compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the Company.

Note 30:

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s
classification/ disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of As per our report of even date attached
KTC Hotels Limited

For Brahmayya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000511S

Gautam Sethi Prabhat Verma R. Nagendra Prasad
Director Director Partner

(DIN: 08571659) (DIN: 06548864) Membership No. 203377
Place: Bengaluru Place: Chennai

Date: Date:
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Northern India Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Northern India Hotels Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
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controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’ s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us

i)  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv)] a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.
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v) a) Thecompany has notdeclared any final dividend during the previous year and any interim dividend during
the current year and hence compliance to Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

b) Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

vi) a) As per proviso to rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 is applicable for the company only
w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

3 With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) according to the information
and explanations given to us, remuneration was not paid by the Company to its directors during the current year.

For O.P.DADU & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 001201N

Place : New Delhi (ABHEY DADU)
Dated : 17t April, 2023 Partner
UDIN : 23093313BGZGSB3683 M.no0.093313
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In our opinion, and in so far as we have been able to ascertain from the records produced, Information furnished and the
explanations given to us by the Company.

(i) ()

(b)

(c)

(e)

(i) (a)

(i) (a)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(f)

(A) The company has maintained the proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

(B) The company has maintained the proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which
all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the
management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification

According to the information & explanation given to us, the title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed
in the financial statements are held in the name of the company and title deeds in respect of Land admeasuring
14744.60 Sq. Yards, the gross carrying value of ¥1,93,649/- are pending for Registration.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not revalued any Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information & explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against
the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

The company does not hold any inventory during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

The Company does not have any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(A) The company has not provided loan, provide advance in the nature of loan, stood guarantee, provided security
to its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,

B) The company has not provided loan, provide advance in the nature of loan, stood guarantee, provided security
to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate

According to the information & explanation given to us, the term and condition of the grant of unsecured loans
provided in earlier year are not prejudicial to the company interest.

According to the information & explanation given to us, payment of principal and payment of interest in respect
of unsecured loans provided in earlier year has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular..

According to the information & explanation given to us, there is no overdue amount, in respect of loan provided in earlier year.

According to the information & explanation given to us, no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has
fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing
loans given to the same parties.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has compiled with provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act with respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.

(v) The company has not accepted any deposited from the public. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable
to the company.
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(vi) As far as, we are aware, the central government has not specified the maintenance of cost records by the company
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act.

(vii) (@) The company isregularin depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities wherever applicable to.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of statutory
dues as including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues on 31.3.2023 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not surrendered or disclosed any income
during the year in its tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), which has not been recorded in the
books of accounts. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(ix) The company does not have any loan or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the order is
not applicable to the company.

(x) (a) The company does not raise any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) The company does not make any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the order is not applicable
to the company,

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, No fraud by the company or no fraud on the company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) No, report u/s 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 filled by the auditor in form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of the companies (Audit and Auditor) rules, 2014 with Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the companies has not received any compliant from the
whistle-blower.

(xii) Inour opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required
by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit system and is not
required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013.”

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) (@) The company is not required to registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted Non-Banking Financial
or Housing Finance activities.

190 Subsidiaries Accounts 2022-23



Northern India Hotels Limited

Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report (Contd.)

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not Core Investment Company (CIC) ,
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(xvii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the Statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xviii) of the order is
not applicable to the company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) (a) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, the provision of section 135 of the companies Act,2013
are not applicable on the company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xx) (a) and (b) of the order are not applicable to
the company.

For O.P.DADU & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 001201N

Place : New Delhi (ABHEY DADU)
Dated : 17t April, 2023 Partner
M.no.093313

Annexure B to The Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Northern India Hotels Limited (“the Company”) as
of 31, March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on, “the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.
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Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based
on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For O.P.DADU & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 001201N

Place : New Delhi (ABHEY DADU)
Dated : 17t April, 2023 Partner
M.no0.093313
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Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2023

Northern India Hotels Limited

% lakhs
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,134.18 25.66
Capital work-in-progress 220.42 868.34
Other Intangible Assets 4 0.02 0.02
2,354.62 894.02
Financial Assets
Investments 5 10.43 10.43
Other 7 0.59 0.59
Current Tax Assets(Net) 31.40 14.56
Other Non-current Assets 8 15.64 27.75
Total Non-current Assets 2,412.68 947.35
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 9 64.00 19.78
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 384.42 743.93
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 891.61 1,494.87
Loans 6 - 375.00
Other Current Assets 8 108.18 1.97
Total Current Assets 1,448.21 2,635.55
Total Assets 3,860.89 3,582.90
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share capital 12 44.15 44.15
Other Equity 13 3,534.72 3,439.47
Total Equity 3,578.87 3,483.62
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 35.46 5.31
35.46 5.31
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities 15 225.97 58.45
Other current liabilities 16 20.59 35.52
246.56 93.97
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,860.89 3,582.90
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 1-21

In terms of our report attached.

For O. P. Dadu & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001201N

Abhey Dadu
Partner

Membership No.093313

New Delhi, April 17, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Sudhir L. Nagpal

DIN No.- 00044762

Mumbai, April 17,2023

Rajesh R. Nagpal
Director
DIN No.- 00032123

Mumbai, April 17,2023
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023

T lakhs
Note Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from Operations
Income from Hotel Operations 17 147.89 69.16
Other Income 18 90.33 158.71
Total 238.22 227.87
Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation 3&4 93.82 0.95
Other Operating and General Expenses 19 16.53 22.93
Total 110.35 23.88
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional items 127.87 203.99
Exceptional Items 20 - -
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 127.87 203.99
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 2.04 52.15
Deferred Tax 30.15 (0.22)
Short/ (Excess) Provision of Tax/ Deferred Tax of Earlier Years (net) 0.43 0.17
Total 32.62 52.10
Profit/ (Loss) for the period after tax 95.25 151.89
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax - -
Other Comprehensive income for the period, net of tax - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 95.25 151.89
Earning Per Equity Share
a) Weighted average number of shares 4,37,600 4,37,600
b) Nominal value of shares (3) 10 10
c) Basic and diluted earnings per share (%) 21.77 34.71
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 1-21

In terms of our report attached.

For O. P. Dadu & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001201N

Abhey Dadu Sudhir L. Nagpal
Partner Director

Membership No.093313 DIN No.- 00044762
New Delhi, April 17, 2023 Mumbai, April 17,2023
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Northern India Hotels Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended March 31, 2023

3 lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax 127.87 203.99
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortisation 93.82 0.95
Dividend Income (0.01) (0.02)
Interest Income (90.32) (158.30)
Provision for Employee Benefits
3.49 (157.37)
Cash Operating Profit before working capital changes 131.36 46.62
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Trade and Other Receivables (44.23) 5.16
Other Current Assets (106.21) (1.85)
Other Non-Current Assets 12.11 (27.75)
(138.33) (24.44)
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Other Current Liabilities (14.93) 31.47
Other Financial Liabilities 167.52 46.07
152.59 77.54
Cash Generated from Operating Activities 145.62 99.72
Direct Taxes (Paid)/ Refunded (19.30) (59.63)
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A) 126.32 40.09
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (1,554.42) (868.34)
Interest Received 90.32 158.30
Dividend Received 0.01 0.02
ICD’s Given/Refund 375.00 (375.00)
Proceeds from maturity of short-term deposits with banks 603.27 1,781.18
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (B) (485.83) 696.16
Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Net Cash Generated/ (Used) In Financing Activities (C) - -
Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (359.51) 736.25
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening 743.93 7.68
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing (Refer Note 10) 384.42 743.93
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements 1-21

In terms of our report attached.

For O. P. Dadu & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001201N

Abhey Dadu Sudhir L. Nagpal Rajesh R. Nagpal
Partner Director Director

Membership No.093313 DIN No.- 00044762 DIN No.- 00032123
New Delhi, April 17, 2023 Mumbai, April 17,2023 Mumbai, April 17,2023
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

as at March 31, 2023

% lakhs
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Equity Share . .
Particulars Capital . Retained Earning Grand Total
Subscribed Retained - Other
Earning General  Profit & Loss reserves
Reserve B/fd
Balance as at March 31, 2022 44.15 3,439.47 - 3,439.47 - 3,483.62
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors -
Restated balance as at March 31, 2022 44.15 3,439.47 - 3,439.47 - 3,483.62
Profit for the year - 95.25 - 95.25 - 95.25
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of taxes, - - - - - -
excluding actuarial gain/ losses
Actuarial Gains/Losses (Not Reclass to P&L) - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 95.25 - 95.25 - 95.25
Dividends - - - - -
Tax on Dividend - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 44.15 3,534.72 - 3,534.72 - 3,578.87
In terms of our report attached.
For O. P. Dadu & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001201N
Abhey Dadu Sudhir L. Nagpal Rajesh R. Nagpal
Partner Director Director
Membership No.093313 DIN No.- 00044762 DIN No.- 00032123
New Delhi, April 17, 2023 Mumbai, April 17,2023 Mumbai, April 17,2023
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Northern India Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1. Corporate Information

Northern India Hotels Limited (“NIHL” or the “Company”), is a public limited company incorporated in 1971 and has its
registered office at Tajview Hotel, Fatehabad Road, Taj Ganj, Agra — 282001. It is subsidiary of PIEM Hotels Ltd., Mumbai.
The company is primarily engaged in the business of owing hotel.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issued on April 17, 2023.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies.

Significant accounting policies and recent accounting pronouncements.

(a) Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The accounting policies as set out below
have been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements.

New Accounting Standards/Amendments notified and adopted by the Company:

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
April 1, 2022:

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment-

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item
of property, plant, and equipment.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets —

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’.
Costs that related directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract

(Examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract).

The above amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), on March 31, 2023, through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS))
Amendment Rules, 2023 amended certain existing Ind ASs on miscellaneous issues with effect from 1st April 2023.
Following are few key amendments relevant to the Company:

i. Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting —

Material accounting policy information (including focus on how an entity applied the requirements of Ind AS) shall
be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as part of financial statements.

ii.  Ind AS 107 —Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments
shall be disclosed as part of material accounting policy information.

iii. Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors-Clarification on what constitutes an
accounting estimate provided.
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for year ended March 31, 2023

(b)

()
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iv. Ind AS 12 —Income Taxes —

In case of a transaction which give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, the initial recognition
exemption from deferred tax is no longer applicable and deferred tax liability & deferred tax asset shall be recognized
on gross basis for such cases.

The Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statements to be material, based on
preliminary evaluation.

Basis of preparation and presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

— Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company has estimated useful life of each
class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset,
past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. The Company reviews the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets at the Balance Sheet date. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation expense in future periods.

— Impairment testing: Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment when events
occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost
to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings
multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate,
future economic and market conditions.

— Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible
temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current
tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations regarding the manner
and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax
liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and there the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law
and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore
the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax
assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the statement of profit or loss.
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Northern India Hotels Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for year ended March 31, 2023

(d)

(e)

— Fair value measurement of financial instruments: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant judgements to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date.

— Litigation: From time to time, the Company is subject to legal proceedings the ultimate outcome of each being always
subject to many uncertainties inherent in litigation. A provision for litigation is made when it is considered probable
that a payment will be made and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant judgement is made
when evaluating, among other factors, the probability of unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a reasonable
estimate of the amount of potential loss. Litigation provisions are reviewed at each accounting period and revisions
made for the changes in facts and circumstances.

Revenue recognition :

Revenue from Services

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service
to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and variable
consideration on account of discounts and schemes offered by the company as part of the contract.

Income from operations

Revenue comprises Licence Fee relating to hotel operations. Licence fee earned is under long-term contracts with the
PIEM Hotels Limited and is recognised when earned in accordance with the terms of the contract.

Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of
construction, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), expenses directly related to the location of assets
and making them operational for their intended use and, in the case of qualifying assets, the attributable borrowing costs
(refer note no. 2(j) below). Initial estimate shall also include costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater that its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

199



The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for year ended March 31, 2023

(f)

200

In respect of Leasehold Buildings, depreciation on buildings on leased properties is based on the tenure which is lower
of the life of the buildings or the expected lease period. Improvements to buildings are depreciated on the basis of their
estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life
Improvements to Buildings 60 years
Improvements to Buildings 15 Years

Plant and Equipment 10 to 20 years
Electrical installation and Equipment 20 years

Hotel Wooden Furniture 15 years

Hotel Non-Wooden Furniture 8 years

End User devices — Computer, Laptops, etc. 6 years

Assets costing less than ¥ 5000 4 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognized as of April 1, 2015 (transition date ) measured as per the pervious GAAP and use that carrying
value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software. Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including
any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use. Internally developed intangibles are capitalised
if, and only if, all the following criteria can be demonstrated:

i)  the technical feasibility and Company’s intention and ability of completing the project;

ii) the probability that the project will generate future economic benefits;

iii) the availability of adequate technical financial and other resources to complete the project; and
iv) the ability to measure the development expenditure reliably.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation periods are reviewed and
impairment evaluations are carried out at least once a year. The estimated useful lives used for amortising intangible
assets are as under:

Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life

Software 6 years

An intangible assets is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use of disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset
is derecognized.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

for year ended March 31, 2023

(8)

(h)

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognized
as of April 1, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost
as of the transition date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
immediately recognized.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in profit or loss section
of the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately.

Income Taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current tax:

Current Tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision
for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred tax:

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
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recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer
a reasonable certainty to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Accounting for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized, when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation and
the unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, due to occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Company, or where
any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources, or where a reliable estimate of
the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable
outflow of resources are provided for.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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(m)

(n)

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to a
qualifying asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss using the effective interest method.

Cash and Cash Equivalent (for the purpose of cash flow statements):

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of no cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for
the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year including potential equity
shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after
tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity
shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Financial Instruments:

Financial Assets:
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial Recognition and measurement:

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies
to loans and advances, deposits, trade and other receivables.
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Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classified as at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried at cost less impairment,
if any. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

For equity instruments classified as FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss,
even on sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

— The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

— The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
and bank balance.
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b) Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which
do not contain a significant financing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each Balance Sheet date, right from its
initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured
at fair value

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Note 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment (Owned, unless otherwise stated)

% lakhs
Freehold Land (Refer FootBr:)iIt:i?iﬁ E:E:;ae:: Fumitl:;;:rz: Equip?nfilc: Vehicles Total
Gross Block at Cost
At March 31, 2022 3.79 28.51 0.01 - - - 32.31
Additions 738.90 988.21 472.74 2.49 2,202.34
Adjustments -
Disposals -
At Mrach 31, 2023 3.79 767.41 988.22 472.74 2.49 - 2,234.65
Depreciation
At March 31, 2022 - 6.65 - - - - 6.65
Charge for the year 27.89 37.32 28.25 0.36 93.82
Disposals -
At Mrach 31, 2023 - 34.54 37.32 28.25 0.36 - 100.47
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 3.79 21.86 0.01 - - - 25.66
At Mrach 31, 2023 3.79 732.87 950.90 444.49 2.13 - 2,134.18
1) Gross block including freehold land admeasuring 14744.60 Sq.yd Aggregating to ¥1,93,499/- pending conveyance.
Note 4 : Intangible Assets (Acquired)
T lakhs
Website Software and Service and Intangible
Development Licenses Operating Total assets under
Cost Rights development
At March 31, 2022 - 0.51 - 0.51 -
Additions - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
At March 31, 2023 - 0.51 - 0.51 -
Amortisation
At March 31, 2022 - 0.49 - 0.49 -
Charge for the year - - - - -
Adjustments - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
At March 31, 2023 - 0.49 - 0.49 -
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 - 0.02 - 0.02 -
At March 31, 2023 - 0.02 - 0.02 -
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Note 5 : Investments

Northern India Hotels Limited

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
foce Yalue H°"£:§: % lakhs H°"£:§i Zlakhs
Non Current
Trade Investments
Fully Paid Quoted Equity Investments :
Investments in Fellow Subsidiary
Beneras Hotels Limited 10 150 0.02 150 0.02
0.02 0.02
Fully Paid Unquoted Equity Investments : - -
Investments in Associate Companies
Taida Trading and Industries Limited 100 4,000 0.09 4,000 0.09
Inditravel Limited 10 24,000 2.40 24,000 2.40
Taj Trade and Transport Company Limited 10 49,998 7.91 49,998 7.91
10.40 10.40
Total Trade Investment 10.42 10.42
Non-trade Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments
Fully Paid Unquoted Equity Instruments
Sarswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. 10 1,000 0.10 1,000 0.10
0.10 0.10
Total Non-current Investments - Gross 10.52 10.52
Less : Provision for Diminution in value of Investments 0.09 0.09
Total Non-current Investments - Net 10.43 10.43
Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Cost 0.02 0.02
Market Value 4.87 3.06
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Cost 10.50 10.50
Note 6 : Loans
3 lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Current
Short-term Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
ICD to Related Parties - 375.00
Others - -
- 375.00
- 375.00
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Note 7 : Other Financial Assets

% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Non Current
Deposits with Public Bodies and Others at amortised costs
Term Deposit with Bank maturing after 12 months - -
Public Bodies and Others 0.59 0.59
0.59 0.59
Less: Provision for Deposits doubtful of recovery - -
0.59 0.59
B) Current
Interest receivable
Related Parties - -
Others - -
Note 8 : Other Assets
T lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Non Current
Capital Advances 15.64 27.75
15.64 27.75
B) Current
Others - -
Amount Recoverable against Exp 3.41 1.85
Balance with Revenue Authorities 104.65
Deposits adjustable against future payments 0.12 0.12
108.18 1.97
9: Trades Receivales
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
Trade Receivable 64.00 19.78
64.00 19.78
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Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

As at 31st March,2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

6 months-
1Year

Less than

6 months 1-2 Year

2 -3 Year

More than-

3 Year

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable-considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivable-which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable-credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivable-considered Good

(v) Disputed Trade receivable-which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivable-credit impaired

64.00 - - -

64.00

As at 31st March,2022

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

6 months-
1Year

Less than

6 months 1-2 Year

2 -3 Year

More than-

3 Year

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivable-considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivable-which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable-credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivable-considered Good

(v) Disputed Trade receivable-which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivable-credit impaired

19.78 - - -

19.78

19.78 - - -

19.78

Note 10 : Cash and Cash Equivalents

3 lakhs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Cash in Hand
Balance with Bank in current A/C
Balance with Bank in call and short Term deposit account

0.11 0.31
34.31 46.12
350.00 695.50
384..42 743.93
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Note 11 : Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other Balances with banks
Call and Short-term deposit accounts 891.61 1,494.87
891.61 1,494.87
Less: Term Deposit with Bank maturing after 12 months from the balance sheet date and other - -
Earmarked/Margin Money/Pledged deposits classified as Non-Current
891.61 1,494.87
Note 12 : Share Capital
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
5,50,000 (Previous year - 5,50,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 55.00 55.00
Preference Shares
5,000 (Previous year - 5,000) Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each 5.00 5.00
60.00 60.00
Issued Share Capital
4,37,600 (Previous year - 4,37,600) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 44.91 44.91
44,91 44.91
Subscribed and Paid Up
4,37,600 (Previous year - 4,37,600) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 43.76 43.76
Add 11450 Shares Forfeited 0.39 0.39
44.15 44.15

Footnotes :

(i) The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii)  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of shares z No. of shares g
As at the beginning of the year 4,37,600 43,76,000 4,37,600 43,76,000
Add/ less : Shares issued during the year - - -
Add/ less : Shares bought back during the year - - -
As at the end of the year 4,37,600 43,76,000.00 4,37,600 43,76,000
(iii)  Shares Held by Holding Company
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid
No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
PIEM Hotels Limited 4,12,083 94.16% 4,12,083 94.16%
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(iv)  Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :

Northern India Hotels Limited

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid
No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
PIEM Hotels Limited 4,12,083 94.16% 4,12,083 94.16%

(v) Details of Promotors :

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

No. of shares % of Holding No. of shares % of Holding
PIEM Hotels Limited 4,12,083 94.16% 4,12,083 94.16%
Note 13. Other Equity
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Reserves & Surplus
Retained Earning
Surplus/Deficit in the Profit And Loss b/f 3,439.47 3,287.58
Add: Current Year profits 95.25 151.89
Closing retained earning 3,534.72 3,439.47
Other Comprehensive Income
Total 3,534.72 3,439.47
Note 14 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, Plant & Equipment 35.46 5.31
Total (A) 35.46 5.31
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (A-B) 35.46 5.31
Note 15: Other Financial Liabilities
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A) Non Current financial liabilities
B) Current financial liabilities
Creditors for capital expenditure 224.82 56.56
Others 1.15 1.89
225.97 58.45
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Note 16 : Other Current Liabilities

% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
B) Current
Income received in advance - 29.26
Statutory dues 20.59 6.26
20.59 35.52
Note 17 : Revenue from Operations
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income from Hotel Operations 147.89 69.16
Total 147.89 69.16
Note 18 : Other Income
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Income
Inter-corporate deposits
Related Parties 29.43 0.74
29.43 0.74
Deposits with banks 60.89 157.56
Total 90.32 158.30
Dividend Income on investments held at the end of period/ year
From others 0.01 0.02
Others - 0.39
Total 90.33 158.71
Note 19 : Other Operating and General Expenses
% lakhs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
General expenses consist of the following :
Printing and Stationery 0.38 0.33
Telephone Expenses 0.36 0.36
Professional Fees 2.30 5.05
Payment made to Statutory Auditors (Refer Footnote (i) 1.49 1.35
Service Charges 11.23 12.74
Other Expenses 0.77 3.10
Total 16.53 22,93
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() Payment made to Statutory Auditors:

Northern India Hotels Limited

3 lakhs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

As auditors 1.10 1.10
For other services (Taxation Matters ) 0.20 0.20
For out-of pocket expenses 0.19 0.05
1.49 1.35

Note 20 : Exceptional Items
3 lakhs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Exceptional Items comprises the following :
Total

21. Notes on Account
21.1 Additional Information to the Financial Statements

21.1.1 Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

% lakhs

IS\I'o Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1. Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt NIL NIL

(b) Guarantees NIL NIL

(c) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable NIL NIL

Total NIL NIL

2. Commitments 295.26 682.70

Total NIL NIL

Note: Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements
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21.2 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

% lakhs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year* 28.97 14.48
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year NIL NIL
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond NIL ) NIL

the appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year NIL ) NIL
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year NIL NIL
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when NIL NIL

the interest dues as above are actually paid

Note:

(C) Duesto Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

(i) * Includes amount recognised under creditor for capital expenditure in Current Financial Liabilities.

21.3 Related Party Transactions

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant
financial year.

(a) Ultimate Holding Company

Holding as at
Name Country
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The Indian Hotels Company Limited India - -
(b) Holding Company
Holding as at
Name Country
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
PIEM Hotels Limited India 94.16% 94.16%
(c) Associates
Holding as at
Name Country
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
TAIDA TRADING AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED India - -
(a) Details of transactions made during the year:
(1) PIEM Hotels Limited
% lakhs
:o Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1. Operating/License Fees Income 147.89 69.16
2. Reimbursement of Services 11.23 12.74

3. Sundry Expenses - -
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2) PIEM Hotels Limited

% lakhs

:o. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1. Balance at the year end (Receivable) 64.00 19.78
(3) Taida Trading and Industries Ltd.

% lakhs

:o. Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1. Interest Received 29.43 0.74

2. ICD Given - 375.00

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

21.4 Earnings Per Share

3 lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/ (Loss) after tax Rs / lakhs 95.25 151.89
Number of Ordinary Shares 437600 437600
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares:
Considered in calculation of Basic EPS 437600 437600
Considered in calculation of Diluted EPS 437600 437600
Face Value per Ordinary Share 10 10
Earnings Per Share:(%)
Basic 21.77 34.71
Diluted 21.77 34.71
21.5 Income Tax recognised in Profit or loss:
3 lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Tax
In respect of the current year 2.04 52.15
In respect of earlier years 0.43 0.17
2.47 52.32
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year
MAT credit -
Other items 30.15 (0.22)
Adjustment to deferred tax attributable to changes in tax rates and laws - -
In respect of earlier years - -
30.15 (0.22)
Total tax expense recognised in the current year relating to continuing operations 32.62 52.10
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21.5.1 Transaction with Struck off Companies:

The Company has reviewed transactions to identify if there are any transactions with struck off companies. To the extent
information is available on struck off companies, there are no transactions with struck off companies.

21.6 Reconciliation of Tax Expense with the Effective Tax

% lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit before tax from continuing operations (a) 127.87 203.99
Income tax rate as applicable (b) 25.17% 25.17%
Calculated taxes based on above, without any adjustments for deductions [(a) x (b)] 32.19 51.34
Permanent tax differences due to:
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit - 0.59
Prior year taxes as shown above 0.43 0.17
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operations) 32.62 52.10
The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:
T lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (35.46) (5.31)
Net Deferred Tax Liability (35.46) (5.31)
Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:
Recognised in profit or loss
Particulars Opening Balance Impact of change Closing balance
. Others
in Income Tax Rate
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
Property. Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets (5.31) - (30.15) (35.46)
Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:
Recognised in profit or loss
Particulars Opening Balance Impact of change Closing balance
. Others
in Income Tax Rate
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
Property. Plant and equipment & Intangible Assets (5.53) - 0.22 (5.31)
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21.7 Financial Instruments
21.7.1 The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:
(a) As of 31st March, 2023

3 lakhs
Particulars FVPL FvoCI Amortised cost Total
Financial assets:
Investments
Equity Investment

Subsidiaries, JVs and Associates - - 10.33 10.33

External Companies - - 0.10 0.10
Other Financial Assets - - 0.59 0.59
Trade Receivables - - 64.00 64.00
Cash and cash equivalents - - 384.42 384.42
Bank Balance Other than Cash & Cash Equivalent - - 891.61 891.61
Loans - - - -
Total - Financial Assets - - 1351.05 1351.05
Financial liabilities:
Other Financial Liabilities - - 225.97 225.97
Total - Financial Liabilities - - 225.97 225.97
(b) As of 31st March, 2022

T lakhs
Particulars FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total
Financial assets:
Investments
Equity Investment

Subsidiaries, JVs and Associates - - 10.33 10.33

External Companies - - 0.10 0.10
Other Financial Assets - - 0.59 0.59
Trade Receivables - - 19.78 19.78
Cash and cash equivalents - - 743.93 743.93
Bank Balance Other than Cash & Cash Equivalent - - 1494.87 1494.87
Loans - - 375.00 375.00
Total - Financial Assets - - 2644.60 2644.60
Financial liabilities:
Other Financial Liabilities - - 58.45 58.45
Total - Financial Liabilities - - 58.45 58.45

21.8 Segment Reporting (Ind AS-108)

Disclosure of segment wise information is not applicable as Hoteliering is the Company’s only business segment.
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21.9 Payments to the Auditor Comprises of:

% lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Audit Fees (As statutory auditors) 1.10 1.10
Taxation Matters 0.20 0.20
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.19 0.05
Total 1.49 1.35
21.10 Events occurring after the Reporting Period
There are no events which qualify for events happening after the reporting period.
21.11 Ratio
The Following are analytical for the year end 31st March’2023 and March’2022:-
Particulars Numerator Denominator 31 March ;\;;; 31 March ;\(s)za; Variance
i) Current Ratio Current assets Current Liabilities 5.87 28.05 -79.06%
ii) Debts- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0% 0% 0.00%
iii) Debts Service Earning available for debt Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Coverage Ratio services
iv) Return on Equity (ROE) Net Profit after taxes Average Shareholder's 2.70% 4.46% -1.76%
Equity
v) Inventory Turnover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Ratio
vi) Trade receivable Revenue from Business  Average Trade 3.53 3.09 14.12%
turnover ratio Operation Receivable(4)
vii) Trade payables Purchase of services and  Average Trade Payables 0.00 0.00 0.00%
turnover ratio other expenses
viii) Net Capital turnover Revenue from Business ~ Working Capital 0.12 0.03 352.25%
ratio Operation
ix) Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 39.99% 66.65% -26.67%
X)  Return on capital Earning before interest Capital Employed 3.57% 5.86% -2.28%
employed (ROCE) and taxes
ix) Return on Investment Income generated from  Average Investments 3.53% 5.74% -2.22%

(ROI)

investments

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
There are no financial liabilities and assets that are off set during the financial years ending 31.03.2023 and 31.03.2022.

In terms of our report attached.

For O. P. Dadu & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 001201N

Abhey Dadu
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board

Sudhir L. Nagpal
Director
DIN No.- 00044762

Membership No.093313

New Delhi, April 17, 2023
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PIEM Hotels Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of PIEM Hotels Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of PIEM Hotels Limited (the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in

equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March 2023, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/
loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluatethe overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2A.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2023 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

a.

d(i)

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 23 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 39(e) to
the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(i)

(iii)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 39(f) to
the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or do otherwise, that the
Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this audit report is
in compliance accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

As stated in Note 41 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend
for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend
declared is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company only with effect from
1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:
a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required

to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022
Tarun Kinger
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105003
Date: April 17, 2023 ICAI UDIN:23105003BGYDKC6107
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
of even date)

(i)

(ii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(a)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by
which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance
with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No material discrepancies noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the
lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements
are held in the name of the Company, except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Whether .
Gross carrying promoter, Period held-
Description of . . ¢ indicate Reason for not being held in the name of the
property value Held in the name of director or range, where Company. Also indicate if in dispute
(T in lakhs) their relative or appropriate
employee
Piece of Landat  4.32 Zorawar Singh, Nathu No 1988 Due to non-availability of all signatories at
Agra (Freehold) Singh, Shri Mohan the same time, registration formalities are
Singh, Ramesh pending.
Chand, Dauji Ram
Land in Lucknow  818.54 Indian Hotels Yes (Promoter) 2003 Endorsement by the local development
(RoU Asset) Company Limited authority in its records of the assighment of
lease by the holding company in favour of
the Company is pending since 2003.
Land in Indore 2.98 PIEM Holdings NA 2002 Allotment is in the name of erstwhile
(RoU Asset) Limited subsidiary which got amalgamated with the

Company with effect from 2002.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than
10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from
banks. However, since the Company has not drawn any amount against the aforesaid sanctioned limits, it was not
required to file any returns with any banks during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company. The Company did not have any sanctioned working capital limits from financial institutions.
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(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any secured loans or secured or unsecured
advances in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
The Company has made investments in, granted unsecured loans and advances in the nature of loans to other parties
in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The Company has not made investments in or granted any
unsecured loans to firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year

(a) Basedon the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us the Company
has provided loans to employees as below:

Particulars Loans (% in lakhs)
Aggregate amount during the year 108.91
Others
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 97.37
Others

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, in
our opinion the investments made and the terms and conditions of the loans granted during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any advances in the nature of loans during the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the loans given to employees is not interest bearing and in our opinion the repayment of principal
has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular. Further, the Company has not given any
advance in the nature of loan to any party during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given. Further, the Company
has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans or provided guarantee or security and
therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly,
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable.
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(vii) (a)

(b)

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax during the year since
effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, in our opinion amounts
deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services
Tax, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a
few cases of Goods and Services Tax, Income-Tax, Professional Tax and Employees’ State Insurance. The Company
does not have liability in respect of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess
and other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. The Company does not have liability in respect of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute
are as follows:

Amount not . .
Amount Deposited Period to which
Name of the statute Nature of the dues Demanded p the amount Forum where dispute is pending
. Under Disputes
(T in lakhs) . relates
(% in lakhs)
Income Tax Act Income Tax 324.22 324.22 AY 2016-17 High Court / Commissioner of
Income Tax, Appeals.
The Finance Act,1994 Service Tax 419.15 412.15 FY 2010-11to Commissioner of Central GST and
2018-19 Central Excise, Lucknow
The Finance Act, 1994  Service Tax 157.60 157.60 FY 2005-06 to Commissioner of Central GST and
2010-11 Central Excise, Pune
The Finance Act, 1994  Service Tax 43.46 43.46  FY 2015-16to Commissioner of Central GST and
2017-18 Central Excise, Mumbai
State Goods and Service Goods and 202.96 202.96 FY 2018-19 Deputy Commissioner of
Act, 2017 Service Tax Maharashtra State GST, Mumbai
The U.P Sales Tax Act VAT 14.94 9.48 FY2013-14to Deputy Commissioner of State Tax
FY 2018-19
The Finance Act,1994 Service Tax 19.67 19.67 FY 2015-16 to Deputy Commissioner of Central
2017-18 GST and Central Excise, Mumbai
The U.P Sales Tax Act Sales Tax 0.82 0.82 FY 2007-08 Deputy Commissioner of State Tax
Luxury Tax Luxury Tax 11.55 11.55 FY 2004-05 Senior Assistant Commissioner of
Sales Tax
Entertainment Tax Entertainment 1.11 1.01 FY 1997-98 High Court, Allahabad
Tax
The Bombay Entertainment 166.00 166.00 FY 2010-2018 Brihanmumbai Mahanagar Palika
Entertainments Tax
Duty Act
Mumbai Municipal Property Tax 766.85 544.17  FY 2010- 2022 Brihanmumbai Mahanagar Palika
Corporation Act
Agra Municipal Property Tax 87.65 22.65 FY 2002-07 Agra Nagar Nigam

Corporation
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii) (a)

(xiii) (a)

(xiv) (a)

(b)
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not obtained any
term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet
of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate
companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by
the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the
Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. We have taken into consideration the whistle
blower complaints received under the vigil mechanism established voluntarily by the Company during the year and
shared with us while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties
are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any

non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Companyis not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,

clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Companyis notrequired to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has more than one CIC as part of the Group. The Group
has six CICs as part of the Group

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is

not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected

(xx)

dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order
are not applicable..

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Tarun Kinger

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105003
Date: April 17, 2023 ICAI UDIN:23105003BGYDKC6107
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PIEM Hotels Limited (“the Company”)
as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Tarun Kinger

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 105003
Date: April 17, 2023 ICAI UDIN:23105003BGYDKC6107
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as at March 31, 2023

T in lakhs
Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 44,440.22 46,694.64
Rights-of-Use Assets 3(b) 6,588.07 6,714.18
Capital work-in-progress 3(a) 162.78 518.98
Intangible Assets 4 69.90 56.23
51,260.97 53,984.03
Financial Assets
Investments 5(a) 14,437.29 14,521.49
Other Financial Assets 5(b) 418.40 420.38
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12 3,364.02 4,124.90
Advance Income Tax (Net) 144.82 636.78
Other Non Current Assets 7 1,017.21 601.32
Total Non-Current Assets 70,642.71 74,288.90
Current Assets
Inventories 8 1,179.65 901.09
Financial Assets
Investments 5(a) 4,353.49 501.20
Trade Receivables 5(c) 2,433.86 1,159.01
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5(d) 1,574.81 552.18
Other Balances with Banks 5(d) 72.80 538.36
Other Financial Assets 5(b) 974.99 579.78
Other Current Assets 6 2,085.54 1,794.52
Total Current Assets 12,675.14 6,026.14
Total Assets 83,317.85 80,315.04
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 9(a) 381.00 381.00
Other Equity 9(b) 64,684.40 60,218.67
Total Equity 65,065.40 60,599.67
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease Liabilities 10(c) 7,715.36 7,492.36
Other Financial Liabilities 10(a) 17.59 25.22
Provisions 11 534.26 542.19
Total Non-Current Liabilities 8,267.21 8,059.77
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10(c) - 2,500.00
Lease Liabilities 15.87 15.21
Trade Payables
Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 10(b) 337.85 333.30
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 10(b) 4,990.39 3,882.88
Other Financial Liabilities 10(a) 1,517.54 2,162.02
Other Current Liabilities 13 1,965.09 1,461.27
Provisions 11 1,158.50 1,300.92
Total Current Liabilities 9,985.24 11,655.60
Total Liabilities 18,252.45 19,715.37
Total Equity and Liabilities 83,317.85 80,315.03
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1-41

To be read along with our audit report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.
101248W / W-100022

Tarun Kinger
Membership No : 105003

Mumbai, April 17, 2023
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PIEM Hotels Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended March 31, 2023

< in lakhs
Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 14 49,702.58 26,207.69
Other Income 15 713.49 419.12
Total Income 50,416.07 26,626.81
Expenses
Food and Beverages Consumed 16 5,965.77 3,529.64
Employee benefit expenses and payment to contractors 17 10,554.30 9,462.18
Finance Costs 18 856.38 1,438.07
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 3a3,3b &4 3,808.12 4,090.06
Other Operating and General expenses 19 20,893.65 13,296.21
Total expenses 42,078.22 31,816.16
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax 8,337.85 (5,189.35)
Exceptional Item 33 - 3,516.34
Profit Before Tax 8,337.85 (1,673.01)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 20 1,430.81 -
Deferred Tax 20 2,222.83 (1,408.75)
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit (1,430.81) -
Total tax expenses 2,222.83 (1,408.75)
Profit/ (Loss) during the year 6,115.02 (264.26)
Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (72.22) (23.00)
Change in fair value of equity instruments designated irrevocably as Fair value through (84.20) 3,901.22
other comprehensive income
(Less) :-Income tax expense / (credit) 31.13 (449.62)
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (125.29) 3,428.60
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 5,989.73 3,164.34
Earnings per share - % (Basic and Diluted) 35 160.50 (6.94)
Face value per ordinary share - (%) 10.00 10.00
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1-41

To be read along with our audit report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants
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101248W / W-100022 (Chairman & Managing Director) (Jt. Managing Director)
DIN No. 07624616 DIN No. 00044762
Tarun Kinger Rajesh R. Nagpal Ms. Farzana Sam Billimoria
Membership No : 105003 (Jt. Managing Director) Company Secretary
DIN No. 00032123
Mumbai, April 17, 2023 Mumbai, April 17, 2023
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The Indian Hotels Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended March 31, 2023

T in lakhs
Reserves and Surplus
Equity Share Equity
ubsoed S fodempion STes Geners et TG
Reserve comprehensive
income
Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2021 381.00 375.61 77.00 2,011.00 12,834.04 36,376.95 5,886.46 57,942.05
Profit for the year - - - - (264.26) - (264.26)
Other Comprehensive Income for the - - - - - 3,445.20 3,445.20
year ended March 31, 2022, net of taxes,
excluding actuarial gain/ losses, given below
Actuarial Gains / Losses (Not Reclass to P&L) - - - - - (16.60) - (16.60)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - - (280.86) 3,445.20 3,164.34
2021/22
Dividends - - - - (506.73) - (506.73)
Balance at the end of March 31, 2022 381.00 375.61 77.00 2,011.00 12,834.04 35,589.36 9,331.66 60,599.67
Balance at the beginning of April 1, 2022 381.00 375.61 77.00 2,011.00 12,834.04 35,589.36 9,331.66 60,599.67
Profit for the period - - - - 6,115.02 - 6,115.02
Other Comprehensive Income for the - - - - - (74.39) (74.39)
year ended March 31, 2023, net of taxes,
excluding actuarial gain/ losses, given below
Actuarial Gains / Losses (Not Reclass to P&L) - - - - (50.90) - (50.90)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - - 6,064.12 (74.39) 5,989.73
ended 2022/23
Dividends - - - - (1,524.00) - (1,524.00)
Balance at the end of March 31, 2023 381.00 375.61 77.00 2,011.00 12,834.04 40,129.48 9,257.27 65,065.40
The accompanying notes form an integral 1-41

part of the financial statements

The above statement of changes in equity should be read along with our audit report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.
101248W / W-100022

Tarun Kinger
Membership No : 105003

Mumbai, April 17, 2023
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PIEM Hotels Limited

Cash Flows Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2023

2 in lakhs
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 8,337.85 (1,673.01)
Adjustments For :

Depreciation and Amortisation 3,808.12 4,090.06
Gain on termination of Ind AS 116 Lease / waiver of lease rent - (100.83)
Provision for Doubtful Debts (55.74) (26.68)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of non-current investments - (3,516.34)
(Profit)/Loss on sale of current investments (62.42) (10.22)
Loss on Sale/Discarding of Assets 51.68 101.31
SEIS Income written off - 92.48
Dividend Income (35.41) (16.00)
Interest Income (105.91) (49.60)
Interest Expense 98.46 701.02
Interest on Lease Liability (Ind AS 116) 757.92 737.06
Fair value moveme